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PART I

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

noow noou, noou "o non

When used in this Annual Report the words or pledséll likely result”, “are expected to”, “will cotinue”, “is anticipated”, “estimate”, "projectdr similar expression &
intended to identify “forward-looking statementsithin the meaning of the Private Securities Litiga Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are sl certain risks ar
uncertainties. By identifying these forwaabking statements for you in this manner, the Canyps alerting you to the possibility that itswadtresults and financial condition n
differ, possibly materially, from the anticipatezbults and financial condition indicated in themsvard-looking statements. Important factors ttatld cause the Comparsyactue
results and financial condition to differ from tledsdicated in the forward-looking statements ideluamong others:

« Credit quality and the effect of credit quality e adequacy of our allowance for loan losses

« Deterioration in financial markets that may resulimpairment charges relating to our securitiegfpto

« Competition in our primary market areas

« Significant government regulations, legislation aotential changes thereto

« Areduction in our ability to generate or origina¢@enu-producing assets as a result of compliance withHtened capital standar

« Increased cost of operations due to greater remylatersight, supervision and examination of baarkd bank holding companies, and higher depositamce premiums
« Limitations on our ability to expand consumer pretdand service offerings due to anticipated stricegssumer protection laws and regulations

« Other risks described herein and in the other te@ord statements we file with the S

These risks and uncertainties should be consideredaluating forwardeoking statements and undue reliance should ngldeed on such statements. The Company wist
caution readers not to place undue reliance orsanl forwardooking statements, which speak only as of the detde. The Company wishes to advise readersttadtttor
listed above could affect the Company'’s financeifprmance and could cause the Compamgtual results for future periods to differ migy from any opinions or stateme
expressed with respect to future periods in anyeotistatements. Additionally, all statementshis tlocument, including forwardoking statements, speak only as of the date
are made, and the Company undertakes no obligetiopdate any statement in light of new informatiorfiuture events.

ITEM 1: BUSINESS

General

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") is a fedlgrchartered midier holding company headquartered in Oswego, NexkY The primary business of the Company i
investment in Pathfinder Bank (the "Bank"). Then@any is majority owned by Pathfinder Bancorp, MCHa federallyehartered mutual holding company (the "Mutual Hod
Company"). At December 31, 2012, the Mutual HoddCompany held 1,583,239 shares of the Compamysron stock (“Common Stockfhe public and the Employee St
Ownership Plan (“‘ESOP”Xollectively, held 1,034,943 shares (the "Minoi8iockholders"). At December 31, 2012, Pathfindan&rp, Inc. and subsidiaries had total asst
$477.8 million, total deposits of $391.8 milliondashareholders' equity of $40.7 million.

The Company's executive office is located at 2140\Fest Street, Oswego, New York and the telephramaber at that address is (315) 343-0057.
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Pathfinder Bank

The Bank is a New York-chartered stock savings kemk its deposit accounts are insured up to afgéidamits by the FDIC through the Deposit Insurareund (“DIF”). The
Bank is subject to extensive regulation by the Newk State Department of Financial Services (thegBrtment”)as its chartering agency, and by the FDIC, asdfdit insure
and primary federal regulator. The Bank is reqglite file reports with, and is periodically examinby, the FDIC and the Department concerning itdviies and financie
condition and must obtain regulatory approvalsmtaoentering into certain transactions, includibgt not limited to, mergers with or acquisitiorisother banking institutions. T
Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bankest Nork (“FHLBNY”) and is subject to certain regtitans by the Federal Home Loan Bank System.

The Bank is primarily engaged in the business wheting deposits from the general public in thenlBs market area, and investing such depositsthegevith other sources
funds, in loans secured by one- to féamily residential real estate, commercial reahtestsmall business loans, and consumer loans.B&hk invests a portion of its asset
securities issued by the United States Governmmahtita agencies and sponsored enterprises, stdtenanicipal obligations, corporate debt securitiesfual funds, and equ
securities. The Bank also invests in mortghgeked securities primarily issued or guaranteedijed States Government sponsored enterpriskes.Bank's principal sources
funds are deposits, principal and interest paymenttoans and investments, as well as borrowings fcorrespondent financial institutions. The pipat source of income
interest on loans and investment securities. Tdr&kB principal expenses are interest paid on dspesnployee compensation and benefits, data psotg and facilities.

Pathfinder Bank also operates through a limitegopse commercial bank subsidiary, Pathfinder ComiaeBank, which serves the depository needs of wipalities and publi
entities in its market area.

The Bank has Pathfinder REIT, Inc., a New York cogtion, as its whollypwned real estate investment trust subsidiaryDé¢ember 31, 2012, Pathfinder REIT, Inc. held $
million in mortgages and mortgage related asselisdisclosures in this Form 1B-relating to the Bank's loans and investmentsuitelloans and investments that are hel
Pathfinder REIT, Inc.

The Bank also has 100% ownership in Whispering @skgelopment Corp., a New York corporation, whishiétained in case the need to operate or deveteplbsed real est:
emerges.

Additionally, the Bank has 100% ownership in Pattiér Risk Management Company, Inc. which was dstedal to record the 51% controlling interest upoa purchase of tl
Fitzgibbons Agency, an Oswego County property aaslalty and life and health insurance business $4%0,000 in annual revenues. The Company hasvegtcall require
regulatory approvals and, pending the completiotheffinal stages of due diligence to affirm theghase price allocation, this transaction is tadeb close prior to migtea
2013.

Finally, the Company has a nopnsolidated Delaware statutory trust subsidiagthfhder Statutory Trust Il, of which 100% of tltemmon equity is owned by t
Company. Pathfinder Statutory Trust Il was formmedonnection with the issuance of $5.2 milliortrimst preferred securities.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, the Bank had 102 full-tengployees and 16 paitne employees. The employees are not represéytedcollective bargaining unit and we cons
our relationship with our employees to be good.
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MARKET AREA AND COMPETITION

The economy in the Bank's market area is manufiaghariented and is also significantly dependent ugmn $tate University of New York College at Oswedte majo
manufacturing employers in the Bank's market areaEmtergy Nuclear Northeast, Novelis, ConstellgtiNRG and Huhtamaki. The Bank is the largest digpy institutior
headquartered in Oswego County. The Bank's busergs operating results are significantly affedtedhe general economic conditions prevalent imigsket areas.

The Bank encounters strong competition both iraetitng deposits and in originating real estate atheér loans. Its most direct competition for défsosomes from commerc
banks, savings banks, savings associations andt cneidns in its market area. Competition for Isacomes from such financial institutions as wellnasrtgage bankir
companies. The Bank competes for deposits byinffetepositors a high level of personal servicejde range of competitively priced financial seeg¢cand a strong network
branches, ATMs, and electronic banking. The Baoinmetes for real estate loans primarily throughittierest rates and loan fees it charges and asimert as well as t
originating and holding in its portfolio mortgageahs which do not necessarily conform to secondemket underwriting standards. The turmoil in tegidential mortgage sec
of the United States economy has caused certaipetitors to be less effective in the market pladéhile Central New York did not experience the lesfespeculative lending a
borrowing in residential real estate that has ablgraffected other regions on a national basigaicemortgage brokers and finance companies inaoea are either no long
operating, or have limited aggressive lending peast Additionally, as certain money centers ardé regional banks grapple with current econoroiditions and the relat
credit crisis, their ability to compete as effeetivhas been reduced. Management believes theg ttanditions have created a window of reduced etitign for local communit
and regional banks in residential loans, and &sadr extent, commercial real estate and smakéssioans. Of course, there are others, includixigxempt credit unions, whi
are aggressively taking advantage of that window.

REGULATION AND SUPERVISION
General

The Company and the Mutual Holding Company arerdlyechartered and, up until July 21, 2011, weubjsct to the regulations of the Office of Thriftiigrvision ("OTS") €
savings and loan holding companies. However, utidteDodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumeteetion Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”which is discussed further belc
the OTS'’s functions relating to savings and loalding companies were thereafter transferred toBib@rd of Governors of the Federal Reserve Systémdgral Reserve”)The
Company and the Mutual Holding Company (“MHC") aegulated as of the above date by the Federal Reser

Regulatory requirements applicable to the Bank, Goenpany and the Mutual Holding Company are refetce below or elsewhere herein. This descriptibrstatutory an
regulatory provisions does not purport to be a detepdescription of all such statutes and regutat@pplicable to the MHC, the Company, or the Bafky change in these la
or regulations, whether by Congress or the apgkcadgulatory agencies, could have a material agvienpact on the Bank, the Company or the Mutuddliig Company.

Dodd-Frank Act

The DoddFrank Act is significantly changing the current kaagulatory structure and affecting the lendimyeistment, trading and operating activities offfitial institutions an
their holding companies. The Doéfdlank Act has changed the current primary federglilator of the Company and the Mutual Holding Campfrom the OTS to the Fede
Reserve. Under the Dodetank Act, the Federal Reserve now supervises egdlates all savings and loan holding companiesh) si3 the Company and the Mutual Hol
Company. The Dodé&rank Act requires the Federal Reserve to set nuimiroapital levels for depository institution holdinoompanies that are as stringent as those redoirdile
insured depository subsidiaries, and the comporwnger 1 capital would be restricted to capitadtruments that are currently considered to be Teapital for insured depositc
institutions. Under the DodBrank Act, the proceeds of trust preferred seagiire excluded from Tier 1 capital unless suchres were issued prior to May 19, 2010 by
or savings and loan holding companies with lesa Bib billion of assets. The legislation also lelisaes a floor for capital requirements of insudegbository institutions, whi
cannot be lower than the standards in effect wherdgislation was enacted and directs the fedbenaking regulators to implement new leverage apitalarequirements. The
new leverage and capital requirements must takeaiotount offealance sheet activities and other risks, includisks relating to securitized products and deiwest Moreove
the Mutual Holding Company requires the approvathef Federal Reserve before it may waive the recdipny dividends from the Company, and theredsassurance that t
Federal Reserve will approve future dividend wavar what conditions it may impose on such waivierdact, by adopting Section 239.8(d) of regulatMM of the Interim fina
rule regarding dividends waived by Mutual Holdingripanies, the Federal Reserve has practically edsbat Mutual Holding Companies such as PathfiBercorp, MHC wil
not be able to waive dividend payments from theai-tier holding companies. See “Federal Holdingmany Regulation—Waivers of Dividends by Mutual ¢ioy Company”
below.
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The DoddFrank Act also created a new Consumer FinanciaieBtion Bureau with broad powers to supervise axfdree consumer protection laws. The Consumerrieiai
Protection Bureau has broad rueking authority for a wide range of consumer prioe laws that apply to all banks and savingsitimsbns such as Pathfinder Bank, incluc
the authority to prohibit “unfair, deceptive or aiue” acts and practices. The Consumer Financial PioteBureau has examination and enforcement aughovier all banks ar
savings institutions with more than $10 billionassets. Banks and savings institutions with $lldmior less in assets will be examined by thgiplacable bank regulators. T
Dodd-Frank Act also provides for regulations rempgiroriginators of certain securitized loans taaneta percentage of the risk for transferred loastablished regulatory rate-
setting for certain debit and interchange feesaibsa restrictions on the payment of interest onrnercial demand deposits and contained a numbefains related to mortga
originations. The legislation also weakened thdefal preemption available for national banks agdkfal savings associations, and gives state ajtorgeneral the ability
enforce applicable federal consumer protection laws

The DoddFrank Act broadened the base for Federal Depositrémce Corporation insurance assessments. Assgissare now being based on the average consalitiait:
assets less tangible equity capital of a finariogtitution. The legislation also permanently gesed the maximum amount of deposit insurancediokd) savings institutions
credit unions to $250,000 per depositor, and mberést bearing transaction accounts had unlindegbsit insurance through December 31, 2012. TdddBrank Act increase
stockholder influence over boards of directors byguiring companies to give stockholders a non-bipdiote on executive compensation and so-calleddégoparachute”
payments, and authorizing the Securities and Exggn@vommission to promulgate rules that would alsteckholders to nominate and solicit votes forrtbgin candidates using
companys own proxy materials. These particular requiresevere not imposed on the Company in 2012. Thisl&mn also directs the Federal Reserve to prgatal rule
prohibiting excessive compensation paid to bankihglcompany executives, regardless of whethecdngpany is publicly traded or not.

New York State Banking Law and FDIC Regulation

The Bank derives its lending, investment and othehority primarily from the applicable provisions New York State Banking Law and the regulatiohshe Department, :
limited by FDIC regulations. In particular, the &éipable provisions of New York State Banking Lawdaregulations governing the investment authoritgt aativities of an FDI
insured statehartered savings bank have been substantiallyelirly the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatigordwvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA") and the FDIC regtibns
issued pursuant thereto. Under these laws andaté&mns, savings banks, including the Bank, mayesgtin real estate mortgages, consumer and comah&rans, certain types
debt securities, including certain corporate debtsties and obligations of federal, state andllgovernments and agencies, certain types of caigequity securities and cert
other assets. New York State chartered savingksbasay also invest in subsidiaries under theirisergorporation investment authority. A savingskbaay use this power
invest in corporations that engage in various #tivauthorized for savings banks, plus any aold#i activities, which may be authorized by the IBag Board. Under FDICI.
and the FDIC's implementation of regulations, thenBs investment and service corporation activitieslanéed to activities permissible for a nationark unless the FDI
otherwise permits it.

The FDIC and the Superintendent have broad enfawuemuthority over the Bank. Under this authortbe FDIC and the Superintendent have the abitityssue formal ¢
informal orders to correct violations of laws oisafe or unsound banking practices.
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FDIC Insurance on Deposits

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or Fi€yres deposits at FDIC insured financial infithis such as the Bank. Deposit accounts in thé& Bam insured by the FD
generally up to a maximum of $250,000 per depositat up to a maximum of $250,000 for sdillected retirement accounts. The FDIC chargesnthared financial institutior
assessments to maintain the Deposit Insurance Fund.

Under the FDIC's current riskased assessment system, insured institutionssignad to one of four risk categories based oarsigory evaluations, regulatory capital levels
certain other risk factors. Assessments are baisélde risk category to which an institution isigsed and certain risk adjustments assigned by FBilations.

In February 2011, the FDIC published a final ruteler the Dodd-rank Act to reform the deposit insurance assesseystem. The rule redefined the assessment lszskfa
calculating deposit insurance assessments effedivié 1, 2011. Under the new rule, assessmergsbased on an instituticnaverage consolidated total assets minus av
tangible equity as opposed to total deposits. ésthe new base is much larger than the former llage DIC also lowered assessment rates so thdbtileamount of reven
collected from the industry was not significantlieeed. The new range is 2%z basis points to 45 lpmsnts of total consolidated assets less taaghlity. The new rule benefit
smaller financial institutions, which typically yeiore on deposits for funding, and shifts morehef burden for supporting the insurance fund tgdainstitutions, which ha'
greater access to nateposit sources of funding. As a result of thengeain the assessment base, the Company experiencagproximate 50% reduction in its quart
assessment charges effective with the second qué2e11.

The Dodd-Frank Act also extended the unlimited d@pimsurance on non-interest bearing transactimownts through December 31, 2012. Unlike the FBITemporar
Liquidity Guarantee Program, the insurance provideder the Dodd-Frank Act did not extend to lmierest NOW accounts, and there was no separagssment on cover
accounts.

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the FinanCiogporation (“FICO”)is authorized to impose and collect, with the applof the FDIC, assessments for anticipated payst
issuance costs and custodial fees on bonds issudtel~ICO in the 1980s to recapitalize the forfRederal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation.bbimels issued by t
FICO are due to mature in 2017 through 2019. Duttiegyear ended December 31, 2012, the Bank pai@82 in fees related to the FICO.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Ripigh a finding that an institution has engagedrisafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe aunmscondition to contint
operations or has violated any applicable law, le&@n, rule, order or condition imposed by the EDWe do not currently know of any practice, coieditor violation that me
lead to termination of our deposit insurance.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

The FDIC has adopted ridlased capital guidelines to which the Bank is stbjéhe guidelines establish a systematic analyfiganework that makes regulatory cag
requirements more sensitive to differences in pigkiles among banking organizations. The Banleguired to maintain certain levels of regulatorgita in relation to regulato
risk-weighted assets. The ratio of such regulatapital to regulatory risk-weighted assets is reféérto as the Bank's "risk-based capital ratioSkRiased capital ratios ¢
determined by allocating assets and specified alffifice sheet items to four risleighted categories ranging from 0% to 100%, withhér levels of capital being required for
categories perceived as representing greater risk.

These guidelines divide a savings bank's capitaltivo tiers. The first tier ("Tier ") includes wonon equity, retained earnings, certain womulative perpetual preferred st
(excluding auction rate issues) and minority inteseén equity accounts of consolidated subsidiatess goodwill and other intangible assets (exogmtgage servicing rights a
purchased credit card relationships subject tatetimitations). Supplementary (“Tier 11") capitimicludes, among other items, Tier 1 capital, cativé perpetual and longrn
limited-life preferred stock, mandatory convertible se@sitcertain hybrid capital instruments, term sdbwted debt and the allowance for loan and lezssek, subject to cert
limitations, less required deductions. Savings baarke required to maintain a total risk-based abaptio of at least 8%, and a Tier | risk basegitehlevel of at least 4%.
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In addition, the FDIC has established regulatioresgribing a minimum Tier | leverage ratio (Tiecdpital to adjusted total average assets as spedifithe regulations). The
regulations provide for a minimum Tier | leveraggio of 3% for banks that meet certain specifieitedr, including that they have the highest exation rating and are r
experiencing or anticipating significant growth! ther banks are required to maintain a Tier etege ratio of at least 4%.

The FDIC may set higher leverage and fisised capital requirements on individual institugievhen particular circumstances warrant. Savirggk® experiencing or anticipat
significant growth are expected to maintain cap#ibs, including tangible capital positions, wedlove the minimum levels.

On June 6, 2012, the FDIC and the other federak begulatory agencies issued a series of propaded that would revise their leverage and bslsed capital requirements .
the method for calculating riskeighted assets to make them consistent with agretsnthat were reached by the Basel Committee aRiBg Supervision and certain provision:
the Dodd-Frank Act. The proposed rules would applgll FDIC-insured depository institutions, ttpr bank holding companies with total consolidatsdets of $500 million
more and top-tier savings and loan holding comganfmong other things, the proposed rules establisrew common equity Tier 1 minimum capital reguoient (4.5% of risk-
weighted assets) and a higher minimum Tier 1 chjtdsk-based assets requirement (6% of vighkghted assets) and assign higher risk weighty@30 exposures that are m
than 90 days past due or are on nonaccrual statliseatain commercial real estate facilities tlrarfice the acquisition, development or construabioreal property. The propos
rules also require unrealized gains and lossesedaio securities holdings to be included for psgmof calculating regulatory capital requiremeritse proposed rules limi
banking organization’s capital distributions andtai@ discretionary bonus payments if the bankingaaization does not hold a “capital conservatioffds” consisting of
specified amount of common equity Tier 1 capitahddition to the amount necessary to meet its mimmiskbased capital requirements. The proposed rulésairgd! that th
final rules would become effective on January 1,2@nd the changes set forth in the final rulesldvbe phased in from January 1, 2013 through Jsriye2019. However, tl
agencies have indicated that, due to the volunpeiblic comments received, the final rule has bestay@d past January 1, 2013.

SBLF Participation

On September 1, 2011, the Company entered intocariies Purchase Agreement with the SecretanhefTreasury (“Treasury’pursuant to which the Company sold to
Treasury 13,000 shares of its Senior Non-Cumulaieepetual Preferred Stock, Series B (“Series BeResl Stock”),having a liquidation preference of $1,000 per star
aggregate proceeds of $13,000,000. This transaetas entered into as part of the Treasury’s SBiafliness Lending Fund Program (“SBLFIp connection therewith, tl
Company redeemed all 6,771 shares of its Fixed ®ateulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series &1 A Preferred Stocki) sold to the Treasury on September 11, 201
connection with the Treasury’s Capital Purchasgyfamm (“CPP”). The Company paid $6,786,045 to the Treasury toemadthe Series A Preferred Stock, which includec
original investment of $6,771,000, plus accruedddimds. In connection with our participation inl$B the Company repurchased from Treasury, a waftha “Warrant”)to
purchase 154,354 shares of the Company’s commok atan exercise price per share of $6.58. Theaffawas previously issued to Treasury in conpectiith the Compang’
participation in the CPP. The repurchase prich@eMWarrant was an agreed upon price of $537,633.

Accordingly, the Company is no longer subject ttrietions of the CPP program. The SBLF programsduave its own requirements, which are summabtizéulv:
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The Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to receiwe-cumulative dividends payable quarterly, orhelanuary 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1, begigrdctober 1, 2011. The
dividend rate, which is calculated on the aggregajaidation Amount, was initially set at 4.2% m@um based upon the current level of “QualifiecabBusiness Lending”, or
“QSBL" (as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreset) by the Bank. The dividend rate for dividgrediods subsequent to the initial period will belsesed upon the
“Percentage Change in Qualified Lending” (as defimethe Securities Purchase Agreement) betwedndigitiend period and the “Baseline” QSBL levelicB dividend rate may
vary from 1% per annum to 5% per annum for the sg¢brough tenth dividend periods, from 1% per anio 7% per annum for the eleventh through thé fiedf of the
nineteenth dividend periods. If the Series B &refl Stock remains outstanding for more than émgd-one-half years, the dividend rate will be fix¢®%. Prior to that time, in
general, the dividend rate decreases as the |étled Bank’s QSBL increases. The Company’s divéieate as of the date of this report is 1.00%hSlicidends are not
cumulative, but the Company may only declare anddddadends on its common stock (or any other ggsicurities junior to the Series B Preferred Skifdk has declared and
paid dividends for the current dividend period ba Series B Preferred Stock, and is subject ta eéstrictions on its ability to repurchase or remeother securities.

The Company may redeem the shares of Series Briz@f8tock, in whole or in part, at any time aedemption price equal to the sum of the Liquidafdmmount per share and t
per-share amount of any unpaid dividends for tee-tturrent period, subject to any required prigerapal by the Company’s primary federal bankingutatpr.

The Companys ability to pay common stock dividends is condiibon payment of the Series B Preferred Stockdeivils described above. In addition, the SBLF jamm
requires the Company to file quarterly reports d®BQ lending, which must be audited annually. Tr@mPany must also outreach and advertise the ai#jlatf QSBL to
organizations and individuals who represent mifesgjtwoman and veterans. The Company must anncedtify that no business loans are made to praisipf businesses w
have been convicted of a sex crime against a miRorally, the SBLF program requires the Companyfile® quarterly, annual and other reports providedshareholde
concurrently with the Treasury.

Limitations on Dividends and Other Capital Distributions

The FDIC has the authority to use its enforcememtgrs to prohibit a savings bank from paying divide if, in its opinion, the payment of dividendsulbconstitute an unsafe
unsound practice. Federal law also prohibits tagment of dividends by a bank that will result re tbank failing to meet its applicable capital iegsments on a pro forn
basis. New York law also restricts the Bank froecldring a dividend that would reduce its capitalolv the amount that is required to be maintaingdstate law an
regulation. The Bank is also subject to dividentifitation requirements to the Federal Reserveitiye of the Company being a savings and loanihgldompany. The Fede
Reserve may object to a proposed dividend if thekBaill become undercapitalized or the dividendégmed to be unsafe or unsound or violate a layuagon or order.

Since the Company has chosen to participate ifthasurys SBLF program, it is permitted to pay dividendsitsSncommon stock provided certain Tier 1 capit@imums ar
exceeded and SBLF dividends have been declarefdaaddo Treasury as of the most recent dividenebder

Prompt Corrective Action

The federal banking agencies have promulgated atigok to implement the system of prompt correctigéon required by federal law. Under the redatet, a bank shall |
deemed to be (i) "well capitalized" if it has totadk-based capital of 10% or more, has a Tiesk-ased capital ratio of 6% or more, has a Tier étage capital ratio of 5%
more and is not subject to any written capital oatedirective; (ii) "adequately capitalized" iflias a total risk based capital ratio of 8% or mar@ier | riskbased capital ratio
4% or more and a Tier | leverage capital ratio%fdr more (3% under certain circumstances) and doeseet the definition of "well capitalized";i{ifundercapitalized" if it he
a total risk-based capital ratio that is less tB&® a Tier | riskbased capital ratio that is less than 4% or a Tlewerage capital ratio that is less than 4% (39@ew certai
circumstances); (iv) "significantly undercapitali’éf it has a total risk-based capital ratio tiatess than 6%, a Tier | ridkased capital ratio that is less than 3% or a[M@rerag:
capital ratio that is less than 3%; and (v) "calig undercapitalized" if it has a ratio of tangitdquity to total assets that is equal to or leas 2%. Federal law and regulations
specify circumstances under which a federal bankiggncy may reclassify a well capitalized instiintias adequately capitalized and may require aguadely capitalize
institution to comply with supervisory actions & were in the next lower category (except theg EDIC may not reclassify a significantly undeitaljzed institution as critical
undercapitalized).
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The FDIC may order savings banks that have insefftecapital to take corrective actions. For exima savings bank that is categorized as “undéetaed” would be subject -
growth limitations, could generally not make capdgstributions, including paying dividends, and wla be required to submit an acceptable capitdabraon plan. A holdin
company that controls such a savings bank woultefeired to guarantee that the savings bank complith the restoration plan in an amount of upht® fesser of 5% of tl
institution’s total assets or the amount of capitaéded for the institution to achieve compliand# wegulatory capital requirements. A “signifitgnundercapitalized’saving:
bank would be subject to additional restrictio®avings banks deemed by the FDIC to be “criticaliylercapitalized'would be subject to the appointment of a receiwn
conservator within specified time frames.

The Bank currently meets the criteria to be clésifis a "well capitalized" savings institutionheTpreviously mentioned proposed capital rules Watld increase regulatc
capital requirements would adjust the prompt cdive@ction categories accordingly.

Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders

Under current federal law, transactions betweerosiggry institutions and their affiliates are gaved by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reskevand its implementir
regulations. An affiliate of a savings bank is amnpany or entity that controls, is controlled byjs under common control with the savings bankeothan a subsidiary of
savings bank. In a holding company context, at@imuim, the parent holding company of a savings pbank any companies that are controlled by sucénpdmlding compan
are affiliates of the savings bank. Generally, ®ac23A limits the extent to which the savings bankts subsidiaries may engage in “covered traimas’ with any one affiliate t
an amount equal to 10% of such savings bmnkpital stock and surplus and contains an aggrdigat on all such transactions with all affikst to an amount equal to 20% of <
capital stock and surplus. The term “covered tretima’ includes the making of loans or other extensionsretlit to an affiliate, the purchase of assetsnfian affiliate, a
investment in the securities of an affiliate, tiveeptance of securities of an affiliate as colkdtéar a loan or extension of credit, the issuasica guarantee, acceptance, or lett
credit on behalf of an affiliate and certain otlemsactions resulting in credit exposure to afli@tf. Section 23A also establishes specificatellal requirements for cert
transactions such as loans or extensions of d@dir guarantees, acceptances on letters of dssdiéd on behalf of an affiliate. Section 23B iesgithat covered transactions
a broad list of other specified transactions béeoms substantially the same, or no less favorébliie savings bank or its subsidiary as simimgactions with nonaffiliates.

Further, Section 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Ad iés implementing regulations restrict a savibgsk with respect to loans to directors, executiffecers, and principi
stockholders. Under Section 22(h), loans to dimsctexecutive officers and stockholders who conttisectly or indirectly, 10% or more of voting seities of a savings bank &
certain related interests of any of the foregoingy not exceed, together with all other outstanddags to such persons and affiliated entities sthengs bank's total unimpail
capital and unimpaired surplus. Section 22(h) gezhibits loans above amounts prescribed by theoapiate federal banking agency to directors, etteguofficers, an
stockholders who control 10% or more of voting séies of a stock savings bank, and their respeatdlated interests, unless such loan is apprevedvance by a majority of t
board of directors of the savings bank. Any "int¢ed" director may not participate in the votingrtRer, pursuant to Section 22(h), loans to dimsctexecutive officers ai
principal stockholders must generally be made ongesubstantially the same as offered in compatedaesactions to other persons. Section 22(g)ef#deral Reserve Act pla
additional limitations on loans to executive offiee
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In order for the Company and the Mutual Holding @amy to be regulated as savings and loan holdingpaaies (rather than as bank holding companieff)fiRder Bank must
qualify as a Qualified Thrift Lender. To qualifg a Qualified Thrift Lender, Pathfinder Bank musteb“*domestic building and loan associatiag"defined in the Internal Rever
Code, or comply with the Qualified Thrift Lendeste Under the Qualified Thrift Lender test, a s@g bank is required to maintain at least 65%sofgortfolio assets”tbtal asset
less: (1) specified liquid assets up to 20% ofl tasaets; (2) intangibles, including goodwill; &8) the value of property used to conduct businiessgrtain “qualified thrift
investments” (primarily residential mortgages a@kted investments, including certain mortgage-edand related securities) in at least nine momtih®f each 12-month
period. As of December 31, 2012 Pathfinder Bankthie Qualified Thrift Lender test.

Supervisory Agreement

During May 2009, the Company entered into a Superyi Agreement with the OTS. The agreement wase@ssn connection with the identification of centaiiolations o
applicable statutory and regulatory restrictionscapital distributions and transactions with adfiis. As a result of the identified violationse #Bompany recorded $41,00C
income relating to certain transactions with itcamsolidated parent company Pathfinder Bancorp, MHCaddition the Company is prohibited from ado®p or directin
Pathfinder Bank to declare or pay a dividend oepttapital distributions without the prior writtepproval of the OTS. With the change in our Hajd@ompany regulator to t
Federal Reserve, this Supervisory Agreement iswitlvthat Regulator. All violations have been ested and the Company believes it is in compliamitie the Agreement.

Federal Holding Company Regulation

General . The Company and the Mutual Holding Company haleeted to be regulated as nondiversified savimgslean holding companies within the meaning of fueme
Owners’' Loan Act. The Company and the Mutual Holding Compare registered with the Federal Reserve andsalgect to Federal Reserve regulations, examirg
supervision and reporting requirements. As sucl, Rederal Reserve has enforcement authority dveeiCbmpany and the Mutual Holding Company, andr thensaving:
institution subsidiaries. Among other things, thighority permits the Federal Reserve to resticprohibit activities that are determined to beesious risk to the subsidi
savings institution. The Federal Reserve assumgalatory authority over savings and loan holdingnpanies from OTS on July 21, 2011, pursuant tdDted+Frank Act. Se
“The Dodd-Frank Act” above.

Permitted Activities. Under federal regulation and policy, a mutudtimy company and a federally chartered riédl-holding company, such as the Company, maygagathe
following activities: (i) investing in the stock ef savings association; (ii) acquiring a mutuabesgion through the merger of such associatiom énsavings association subsid
of such holding company or an interim savings assion subsidiary of such holding company; (iii) mi@g with or acquiring another holding companye @i whose subsidiari
is a savings association; (iv) investing in a coagion, the capital stock of which is available farchase by a savings association under fedevabtaunder the law of any st
where the subsidiary savings association or adtmusashare their home offices; (v) furnishing @rfprming management services for a savings adsmtiaubsidiary of suc
company; (vi) holding, managing or liquidating assewned or acquired from a savings subsidiaryushscompany; (vii) holding or managing propertisedi or occupied by
savings association subsidiary of such companyi) agting as trustee under deeds of trust; (i¥) ather activity that (A) has been deemed to benjssible for bank holdir
companies under Section 4(c) of the Bank Holdingh@any Act of 1956, unless the Federal Reserveedylation, prohibits or limits any such activity &avings and loan holdi
companies; or (B) in which multiple savings andnldelding companies were authorized (by regulationjlirectly engage in March 5, 1987; (x) any attiypermissible fa
financial holding companies under Section 4(k) lné Bank Holding Company Act (provided certain ciiteare met), including securities and insurancdemwriting; ant
(xi) purchasing, holding, or disposing of stock @iced in connection with a qualified stock issuaifcie purchase of such stock by such savingslaaa holding company
approved by the Federal Reserve. If a mutual hgldompany acquires or merges with another holdamgpany, the holding company acquired or the hgldiompany resultir
from such merger or acquisition may only invesagsets and engage in activities listed in (i) thho(xi) above, and has a period of two years tee@ay nonconforming activiti
and divest of any nonconforming investments.
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The Home Ownerdoan Act prohibits a savings and loan holding conypalirectly or indirectly, or through one or maebsidiaries, from acquiring another savings assioci o
holding company thereof, without prior written appal of the Federal Reserve. It also prohibits dlequisition or retention of, with certain excepsp more than 5% of
nonsubsidiary savings association, a nonsubsitialging company, or a nonsubsidiary company engagedtivities other than those permitted by thertédOwners’Loan Act
or acquiring or retaining control of an institutitimat is not federally insured. In evaluating dgations by holding companies to acquire saving®eiations, the Federal Rese
must consider the financial and managerial resaurceure prospects of the company and associatimived, the effect of the acquisition on the riskthe insurance fund, t
convenience and needs of the community and coriveetictors.

The Federal Reserve is prohibited from approvingasguisition that would result in a multiple saysrand loan holding company controlling saving®eissions in more than o
state, subject to two exceptions: (i) the appr@fainterstate supervisory acquisitions by savingd ban holding companies, and (ii) the acquisitidra savings institution
another state if the laws of the state of the tasg&ings institution specifically permit such aisifions. The states vary in the extent to whichyt permit interstate savings
loan holding company acquisitions.

Unlike bank holding companies, savings and loardihgl companies are not currently subject to spedfinsolidated regulatory capital requirementse ToddFrank Act
however, requires the promulgation of such capigjuirements for depository institution holding quamies that are no less stringent, both quantiigtiand in terms «
components of capital, than those applicable ttitin®ns themselvesThat will eliminate the inclusion of certain instnents from tier 1 capital that are currently inebt fo
bank holding companies, such as trust preferredrsies. The Dodd-rank Act provides that instruments issued befoeey M9, 2010 will be grandfathered for companie
consolidated assets of $15 billion or less. Thed¥erank Act further provides that holding companiest twere not regulated by the Federal Reserve dagfl9, 2010 (whic
would include most savings and loan holding comgs)nare subject to a five-year transition periaanfrthe July 21, 2010 date of enactment of the Diedohk Act before suc
capital requirements apply. The proposed capiflasrdiscussed earlier would implement the conateidl capital requirements for savings and loanihgldompanies. Howew:
notwithstanding the Dodd-Frank Astlanguage, the proposed rules did not incorpdtetereferenced grandfather for instruments isswefdré May 19, 2010 or the transit
period, so it is uncertain whether any final ruié do so.

The Dodd-Frank Act extended the “source of stréhgibctrine to savings and loan holding companiese fdgulatory agencies must promulgate regulationeimenting th
“source of strengthpolicy that requires holding companies act as acsoaf strength to their subsidiary depositoryitnbns by providing capital, liquidity and othsupport it
times of financial stress.

The Federal Reserve has issued a policy stateraegatding the payment of dividends and other capittibutions by bank holding companies that it Imaade applicable
savings and loan holding companies as well. Ireggnthe policy provides that dividends shouldoaé only out of current earnings and only if thhegpective rate of earnin
retention by the holding company appears consistétht the organizatiors capital needs, asset quality and overall findrooadition. Regulatory guidance provides for
regulatory consultation with respect to capitatriisitions in certain circumstances such as whegecbmpanys net income for the past three years, net of divid previously pa
over that period, is insufficient to fully fund tlividend or the company’s overall rate of earningtention is inconsistent with the compangapital needs and overall finan
condition. The ability of a holding company to pdiyidends may be restricted if a subsidiary depogiinstitution becomes undercapitalized. Thesgulatory policies cou
affect the ability of the Company to pay dividendsurchase shares of common stock or otherwisagenig capital distributions.

Waivers of Dividends by Mutual Holding Company. The Dodd-Frank Act requires federaijartered mutual holding companies to give the FedReserve notice before waiv
the receipt of dividends, and provides that in¢hse of “grandfathered” mutual holding companig®, the Mutual Holding Company, the Federal Resémay not objectto ¢
dividend waiver if the board of directors of thetoml holding company waiving dividends determinteat the waiver: (i) would not be detrimental to #ade and sound operat
of the subsidiary savings bank; and (ii) is comsistwith the board fiduciary duties to members of the mutual holdbognpany. To qualify as a grandfathered mutuatlihg
company, a mutual holding company must have beenefd, issued stock and waived dividends prior toebgber 1, 2009. The Dod&ank Act further provides that the Fed
Reserve may not consider waived dividends in deréng an appropriate exchange ratio upon the camwerof a grandfathered mutual holding companytéeks form. Ir
September 2011, however, the Federal Reserve issu@uterim final rule that also requires, as aditton to waiving dividends, that each mutual hofglicompany obtain tl
approval of a majority of the eligible votes of itembers within 12 months prior to the declaratibthe dividend being waived. The Federal Resbagrequested comments
the interim final rule, and there can be no assigdhat the rule will be amended to eliminate odifyothe member vote requirement for dividend wasviey grandfathered mutt
holding companies, such as the Mutual Holding Cargpa the future, or as to what conditions the Fatl®eserve may place on any dividend waivers. NMinéual Holding
Company has not requested a current dividend waiver is not planning to waive future dividendshé time.

Page 12




Table of Contents

Conversion of the Mutual Holding Company to Stock Brm . Federal regulations permit the Mutual Holdingn@any to convert from the mutual form of organiaatto the
capital stock form of organization (a "Conversiomiisaction"). There can be no assurance whergeif @ Conversion Transaction will occur, and tlwaf8l of Directors has |
current intention or plan to undertake a Converdiansaction. In a Conversion Transaction a neldihg company would be formed as the successdrgdCompany (the "Ne
Holding Company"), the Mutual Holding Company'spmmate existence would end, and certain depositotise Bank would receive the right to subscribeddditional shares
the New Holding Company. In a Conversion Transacteach share of common stock held by stockholotrsr than the Mutual Holding Company ("Minorityogkholders"
would be automatically converted into a numbertafres of common stock of the New Holding Compartgrd@ned pursuant to an exchange ratio (determtiyeah independe
valuation) that ensures that Minority Stockholdans the same percentage of common stock in the N@ding Company as they owned in the Company imateti prior to th
Conversion Transaction. The total number of ehdreld by Minority Stockholders after a Conversimansaction also would be increased by any pueshéy Minority
Stockholders in the stock offering conducted as giathe Conversion Transaction.

Federal Securities Law

The common stock of the Company is registered with SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1834amended (“Exchange ActThe Company is subject to -
information, proxy solicitation, insider tradingstéctions and other requirements of the SEC uttteExchange Act.

The Company Common Stock held by persons who éitatas (generally officers, directors and priraligtockholders) of the Company may not be resaldout registration ¢
unless sold in accordance with certain resaleicéstrs. If the Company meets specified currertljotinformation requirements, each affiliate oétBompany is able to sell in-
public market, without registration, a limited nuentof shares in any three-month period.

Securities and Exchange Commission Reporting

The Company maintains an Internet website locatediav.pathfinderbank.com on which, among other gsirthe Company makes available, free of charg&u&reports that
files with or furnishes to the Securities and Exae Commission, including its Annual Report on FdrtnK, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and curmemorts on Form 8-
K. These reports are made available as soon asmahbly practicable after filing with the Secustiand Exchange Commission. The Company has alse aaailable on i
website its Audit Committee Charter, Compensatiam@ittee Charter, Governance Guidelines (whichesewthe Nominating / Governance Committegiarter) and Code
Ethics.

The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K may bessrd on the Company's website at www.pathfindérbam/annualmeeting
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Federal Reserve System

The Federal Reserve requires all depository ingiiig to maintain noninterebearing reserves at specified levels against theisaction accounts (primarily checking, mc
management and NOW checking accounts). At DeceBihe?012, the Bank was in compliance with theseme requirements.

Federal Community Reinvestment Regulation

Under the Community Reinvestment Act, as amended"€RA"), as implemented by FDIC regulations, @rsgs bank has a continuing and affirmative oblmatconsistent wit
its safe and sound operation, to help meet theataredds of its entire community, including low amdderate income neighborhoods. The CRA doesstabksh specific lendir
requirements or programs for financial institutioms does it limit an institution's discretion tewtlop the types of products and services thaglieves are best suited to
particular community, consistent with the CRA. T®RA requires the FDIC, in connection with its exaation of a savings institution, to assess thétut®n's record of meetir
the credit needs of its community and to take secbrd into account in its evaluation of certaiplagations by such institution. The CRA requires £DIC to provide a writte
evaluation of an institution's CRA performanceizitilg a four-tiered descriptive rating system. Bank's latest CRA rating was "satisfactory."

New York State Community Reinvestment Regulation

The Bank is also subject to provisions of the NewrKYState Banking Law which impose continuing affitraative obligations upon banking institutionsganized in New Yor
State to serve the credit needs of its local conitytNYCRA") which are substantially similar todse imposed by the CRA. Pursuant to the NYCRAgr&kbmust file an annt
NYCRA report and copies of all federal CRA repavith the Department. The NYCRA requires the Daparit to make a biennial written assessment of &'daompliance wit
the NYCRA, utilizing a fourtiered rating system and make such assessmenalaieatb the public. The NYCRA also requires th@eintendent to consider a bank's NYC
rating when reviewing a bank's application to emgiagcertain transactions, including mergers, gssathases and the establishment of branch officasitomated teller machin
and provides that such assessment may serve assddrahe denial of any such application. ThalBsNYCRA rating as of its latest examination Weetisfactory."

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes Oxleydswigned into law on July 30, 2002. SarbdDekey is a law that addresses, among other issoepprate governanc
auditing and accounting, executive compensatiod,earhanced and timely disclosure of corporate iméiion. As directed by Section 302(a) of SarbaDeley, the Compang’
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officare each required to certify that the Comparguarterly and annual reports do not contain angue statement of a mate
fact. The rules have several requirements, inotutliaving these officers certify that: they argoesible for establishing, maintaining and regylastaluating the effectiveness
our internal controls; they have made certain dmales to our auditors and the audit committeehefBoard of Directors about our internal contrelsd they have includ
information in our quarterly and annual reports whiieir evaluation and whether there have beenifgignt changes in our internal controls or inestliactors that cou
significantly affect internal controls subsequemntte evaluation. As part of the DoBidank Act, the outside auditor attestation requéetron internal controls of companies v
less than $75 million in market capitalizationglithe Company, was rescinded. Disclosure of mamegeattestations on internal control over finahagorting will continue t
be required for smaller reporting companies, iniclgdhe Company. We have existing policies, proces and systems designed to comply with thesdatigus, and continue

further enhance and document our policies, proesdand systems to ensure continued compliancelvégge regulations.
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FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION
Federal Taxation

The following discussion of federal taxation iseimtled only to summarize certain pertinent federabme tax matters and is not a comprehensive géscriof the tax rule
applicable to the Company or the Bank.

Bad Debt Reserves . Prior to the Tax Reform Act of 1996 (“the 1996tActhe Bank was permitted to establish a reserve d&ar debts and to make annual additions tc
reserve. The Bank has chosen to be on the dinectye-off method, net of recoveries, in its caltataof taxable income.

Taxable Distributions and Recapture . Prior to the 1996 Act, bad debt reserves crejatied to January 1, 1988 were subject to recaphicetaxable income should the Bank fa
meet certain thrift asset and definition&sts. New federal legislation eliminated thes#ttrelated recapture rules. However, under aurfaw, pre1988 reserves remain sub,
to recapture should the Bank cease to retain a biatilkift charter or make certain non-dividendtdisitions.

Minimum Tax . The Internal Revenue Code imposes an altematinimum tax ("AMT") at a rate of 20% on a baseredular taxable income plus certain tax prefers
("alternative minimum taxable income" or "AMTI")The AMT is payable to the extent such AMTI is ircegs of an exemption amount. Net operating losaeffset no mo
than 90% of AMTI. Certain payments of alternatim@mimum tax may be used as credits against reganaiabilities in future years.

Net Operating Loss Carryovers. A financial institution may carry back net opérg losses to the preceding two taxable yearsfamehrd to the succeeding 20 taxable years.
State Taxation

New York Taxation . The Company is subject to the New York Statenémegse Tax on Banking Corporations in an annualwarhequal to the greater of (i) 7.1% of the Ba
"entire net income" allocable to New York Stateidgrthe taxable year, or (ii) the applicable altgive minimum tax. The alternative minimum taxgisnerally the greater
(a) 0.01% of the value of the Bank's assets allec&bNew York State with certain modifications) @6 of the Companyg' "alternative entire net income" allocable to Néark
State, or (c) $1,250. Entire net income is simitafederal taxable income, subject to certain fications and alternative entire net income is étmintire net income witho
certain modifications. Net operating losses agisinthe current period can be carried forwarchieogucceeding 20 taxable years.

Neither the Internal Revenue Service nor New Ydekeshas examined our federal or state tax rewithén the past 5 year

ITEM 1A: RISK FACTORS

Not required of a smaller reporting compa

ITEM 1B: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2: PROPERTIES

The Bank conducts its business through its maiiceffocated in Oswego, New York, six branch offidesated in Oswego County, and a branch locatio©irondag
County. Management believes that the BarfiCilities are adequate for the business condudtiee following table sets forth certain inforneaticoncerning the main office ¢
each branch office of the Bank at December 31, 201#% aggregate net book value of the Bank's mesrnd equipment was $10.1 million at DecembeR@12. For addition
information regarding the Bank's properties, setebl8 and 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statesnen

LOCATION

OPENING
DATE

OWNED/LEASED

Main Office
214 West First Stret
Oswego, New York 1312

Plaza Brancl
Route 104, Ames Pla:
Oswego, New York 1312

Mexico Branck
Norman & Main Street
Mexico, New York 1311:

Oswego East Branc
34 East Bridge Stre:
Oswego, New York 1312

Lacona Brancl
1897 Harwood Driv¢
Lacona, New York 1308

Fulton Branct
5 West First Street Sou
Fulton, New York 1306!

Central Square Branc
3025 East Ave
Central Square, New York 130

Cicero Branct
6194 State Route &
Cicero, New York 1303

(1) The building is owned; the underlying land is lehggth an annual rent of $22,01
(2) The building is owned; the underlying land is lehggth an annual rent of $31,0!
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ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are various claims and lawsuits to whichGbenpany is periodically involved that are incidéntathe Company's business. In the opinion of ag@ment, such claims &
lawsuits in the aggregate are not expected to hameterial adverse impact on the Company's coraelidfinancial condition and results of operations

ITEM 4: MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

PART I

ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, REL ATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s common stock currentiylés on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symiBBHC". There were 442 shareholders of recordfalslarch 12
2013. The following table sets forth the high &l closing bid prices and dividends paid per steireommon stock for the periods indicated:

Dividenc
Quarter Endec High Low Paic
December 31, 201 $ 11.0C $ 10.0C $ 0.0z
September 30, 201 $ 1068 $ 9.0 $ 0.0¢
June 30, 201 $ 10.0C $ 88C $ 0.0z
March 31, 201. $ 9.7t  $ 8.8: $ 0.0¢
December 31, 201 $ 10.2C $ 8.01 $ 0.0z
September 30, 201 $ 10.0¢ % 83: $ 0.0z
June 30, 201 $ 102t $ 8871 $ 0.0z
March 31, 201: $ 10.1f  $ 8.1 $ 0.02

Dividends and Dividend History

The Company has historically paid regular quartedgh dividends on its common stock. The Boardictors presently intends to continue the payneémégular quarterly ca
dividends, subject to the need for those funddfst service and other purposes. Payment of didglen the common stock is subject to determinadiwh declaration by tl
Board of Directors and will depend upon a numbefaofors, including capital requirements, regulaionitations on the payment of dividends, Pathén8ank and its subsidiar
results of operations and financial condition, tarsiderations, and general economic conditioftee Tompany's mutual holding company, PathfindercBgm M.H.C., may ele
to waive or receive dividends each time the Compieulares a dividend. Dividend waivers must rexd¢he nomsbjection of the Federal Reserve and the apprdvideoMutua
Holding Company’s members who are comprised oBitwek’s depositors. Historically, the Federal Resdras not provided its nabjection to the waiver of dividends by mut
holding companies. The Mutual Holding Company ritid waive the right to receive its portion of tresk dividends declared during 2012 or 2011.
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ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The Company is the parent company of the Bank athififder Statutory Trust Il. The Bank has thrperating subsidiaries Rathfinder Commercial Bank, Pathfinder REIT,
and Whispering Oaks Development Corp.

The following selected consolidated financial degts forth certain financial highlights of the Ccamg and should be read in conjunction with the otidated financial stateme
and related notes, and the "Management's DiscusamhAnalysis of Financial Condition and Result©gkrations” included elsewhere in this annualotn Form 10-K.

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Year End (In thousands)
Total asset $ 477,79  $ 44298( $ 408,54! $ 371,69: $ 352,76(
Loans receivable, ni 329,24 300,77( 281,64¢ 259,38 247,40(
Deposits 391,80! 366,12¢ 326,50: 296,83¢ 269,43t
Equity 40,74° 37,84 30,59: 29,23¢ 19,49t
For the Year (In thousands)
Net interest incom $ 14857 $ 14,26: $ 13,33: $ 11,777 $ 10,67¢
Core noninterest income ( 2,627 2,451 2,85¢ 2,72¢ 2,78¢
Net gains/(losses) on sales, redemptions

impairment of investment securiti 37t 791 211 112 (2,199
Net gains (losses) on sales of loans

foreclosed real esta 61 (50) (45) 54 (44)
Noninterest expense ( 13,207 12,75¢ 11,27 10,38: 9,88:
Regulatory assessmel 311 39C 51F 74% 53
Net income 2,64¢ 2,328 2,50¢ 1,61¢ 36¢
Per Share
Net income (basic $ 08¢ $ 05 $ 08z $ 061 $ 0.1f
Net income (diluted 0.87 0.52 0.8z 0.61 0.1¢
Book value per common she 10.6( 9.4¢ 9.81 9.31 8.0
Tangible book value per common share 9.1z 8.0z 8.2¢€ 1.71 6.5C
Cash dividends declare 0.1Z 0.1z 0.1Z 0.1Z 0.41
Ratios
Return on average ass 0.57% 0.55% 0.64% 0.45% 0.11%
Return on average equi 6.6¢ 6.7 8.07 7.04 1.7¢C
Return on average tangible equity 7.4C 7.5¢ 9.2C 8.4t 2.07
Average equity to average ass 8.4¢ 8.21 7.8¢ 6.4C 6.3z
Dividend payout ratio (d 11.3% 12.87 11.9C 18.4¢ 232.6:
Allowance for loan losses to loans receive 1.3t 1.31 1.2¢ 1.17 0.9¢
Net interest rate sprei 3.3¢ 3.62 3.5¢ 3.4C 3.2Z
Noninterest income to average as: 0.6¢€ 0.7€ 0.77 0.81 0.1¢€
Noninterest expense to average as 2.8¢ 3.14 3.0C 3.1C 2.91
Efficiency ratio (e] 75.5% 77.5¢€ 71.9¢ 76.3¢ 73.0z

(a) Exclusive of net gains (losses) on sales and impit of investment securities and net gains (I9ssesales of loans and foreclosed real es

(b) Exclusive of regulatory assessmel

(c) Tangible equity excludes intangible ass

(d) The dividend payout ratio is calculated using davids declared and not waived by the Mutual Hol@ogpany, divided by net incom

(e) The efficiency ratio is calculated as noninteregiemse, including regulatory assessments, divigeth® sum of taxablequivalent net interest income and nonintt
income excluding net gains (losses) on sales, rptlens and impairment of investment securities etdgains (losses) on sales of loans and foreclesgestate
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ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
INTRODUCTION

Throughout Management’'s Discussion and AnalysisO¥&A”) the term, “the Company”refers to the consolidated entity of Pathfinder &ap, Inc. Pathfinder Bank a
Pathfinder Statutory Trust Il are wholly owned sdizsies of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc., however, fatfer Statutory Trust Il is not consolidated feporting purposes (see Note
of the consolidated financial statements). PatlginCommercial Bank, Pathfinder REIT, Inc., and ¥gering Oaks Development Corp. are wholly ownedsisiigries o
Pathfinder Bank. At December 31, 2012, Pathfirgkmcorp, M.H.C, the Compars/mutual holding company parent, whose activitresat included in the consolidated finan
statements or the MD&A, held 60.5% of the Compamyitstanding common stock and the public held 3%5#e outstanding common stock.

The Company's business strategy is to operatewasl-@apitalized, profitable, and independent comityubank dedicated to providing valaglded products and services to
customers. Generally, the Company has sought péeiment this strategy by emphasizing retail, bussnand municipal deposits as its primary sourceimds. These funds ¢
redeployed in locallwriginated residential first mortgage loans, loembusiness enterprises operating in its markets, ® a lesser extent, in investment securitipecHically,
the Company's business strategy incorporates tlweviog elements: (i) operating as an independemimunity-oriented financial institution; (ii) maintaining jgiéal in excess (
regulatory requirements; (iii) emphasizing investimi@ one-tofour family residential mortgage loans, loans taaBrusinesses, and investment securities; andh{aiptaining
strong retail, business and municipal deposit base.

The Company's net income is primarily dependeritoonet interest income, which is the differencengen interest income earned on its investmentsdrtgage and other loa
investment securities and other assets, and itso€dands consisting of interest paid on depoaitd borrowings. The Company's net income is dfextad by its provision fc
loan losses, noninterest income; (service chargdssarvicing rights, net gains and losses on satesredemptions of securities, loans and foreclosad estate), noninter:
expense; (employee compensation and benefits, ancymnd equipment costs, data processing costbjnaome taxes. Earnings of the Company are affected significantl
by general economic and competitive conditionsti@aliarly changes in market interest rates, goveminpolicies, and actions of regulatory authoriti#hese events are bey:
the control of the Company. In particular, the grahlevel of market interest rates tend to be ligighiclical.

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's consolidated financial statementgpegpared in accordance with accounting princigleserally accepted in the United States and foltoactices within tl
banking industry. Application of these principlesjuires management to make estimates, assumptichgidgments that affect the amounts reportetienconsolidated financ
statements and accompanying notes. These estjraagsnptions and judgments are based on informatiailable as of the date of the financial stateseaccordingly, as t
information changes, the financial statements ceefléct different estimates, assumptions and juelgms Certain policies inherently have a greahamce on the use of estim:
assumptions and judgments and as such have a rgpessbility of producing results that could betemilly different than originally reported. Estites, assumptions
judgments are necessary when assets and liabditeesequired to be recorded at fair value or wdreasset or liability needs to be recorded contingpon a future event. Carn
assets and liabilities at fair value inherentlyulessin more financial statement volatility. Thearfvalues, and information used to record valuaéidjustments for certain assets
liabilities, are based on quoted market pricesrerprovided by other thirgarty sources, when available. When third parfgrination is not available, valuation adjustmem
estimated in good faith by management.

The most significant accounting policies followey the Company are presented in Note 1 to the cimfaet! financial statements. These policies, alith the disclosure
presented in the other financial statement notddrathis discussion, provide information on hogrsficant assets and liabilities are valued indbasolidated financial stateme
and how those values are determined. Based owaloation techniques used and the sensitivity oérftial statement amounts to the methods, assumsptand estimat
underlying those amounts, management has identtiie@llowance for loan losses, deferred incomesagension obligations, the evaluation of investrsecurities for other th
temporary impairment, the annual evaluation of@eenpanys goodwill for possible impairment, and the estiorabf fair values for accounting and disclosurepmses to be ti
accounting areas that require the most subjectidecamplex judgments. These areas could be thé snbgect to revision as new information becomeailable. Manageme
performs an annual evaluation of the Comparmggodwill for possible impairment. Based on thguits of the 2012 evaluation, management hasndieted that the carrying val
of goodwill is not impaired as of December 31, 20The evaluation approach is described in NotétBeconsolidated financial statements.
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The allowance for loan losses represents managenestimate of probable loan losses inherent irldae portfolio. Determining the amount of theoatance for loan losse
considered a critical accounting estimate becausguires significant judgment on the use of estés related to the amount and timing of expeatadd cash flows on impai
loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneoms lbased on historical loss experience, and camgide of current economic trends and conditiodspfawhich may k
susceptible to significant change. The Compangbéishes a specific allowance for all loans idésdifas being impaired with a balance in excess180®00 which are

nonaccrual and have been risk rated under the Qoytgpask rating system as substandard, doubtfulpss.lin addition, an accruing substandard loandcbelidentified as be
impaired. The measurement of impaired loans i@y based upon the present value of future dlasts discounted at the historical effective in&treate, except that
collateral-dependent loans are measured for imgaitrbased on the fair value of the collateral, kEssts to sell. The majority of the Companympaired loans are collate
dependent. For all other loans and leases, thep@oynuses the general allocation methodology thi@béshes an allowance to estimate the probableried loss for each ri
rating category. The loan portfolio also represdhe largest asset type on the consolidated stateof condition. Note 1 to the consolidated ficiahstatements describes
methodology used to determine the allowance fan loases and a discussion of the factors driviremgks in the amount of the allowance for loan bgsecluded in this report.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arerdeteed using the liability method. Under this naththe net deferred tax asset or liability is griped for the future te
consequences. This is attributable to the diffegerbetween the financial statement carrying ansoofnéxisting assets and liabilities and their eespe tax bases as well as
operating and capital loss carry forwards. Defétex assets and liabilities are measured usingtethdax rates applied to taxable income in thesygawhich those tempore
differences are expected to be recovered or setlleeé affect on deferred tax assets and lialsliGEa change in tax rates is recognized in inctareexpense in the period t
includes the enactment date. If current availaiglence about the future raises doubt about #ediHbod of a deferred tax asset being realizeslalaation allowance
established. The judgment about the level of &utiaxable income, including that which is considetapital, is inherently subjective and is reviewsda continual basis
regulatory and business factors change. A valpailtowance of $458,000 was maintained at DecerBibeR012, as management believes it may not genetdficient capit
gains to offset its capital loss carry forward.eTBompany's effective tax rate differs from thetwtiary rate due primarily to nomxable income from investment securities
bank owned life insurance.

Pension and posetirement benefit plan liabilities and expenses l@sed upon actuarial assumptions of future everdsiding fair value of plan assets, interesesatand th
length of time the Company will have to providegbdoenefits. The assumptions used by managengedisaussed in Note 12 to the consolidated anmehdial statements.

The Company carries all of its investments ataiue with any unrealized gains or losses repantf tax as an adjustment to shareholders' equitlyincluded in accumulai
other comprehensive income (loss), except for tieelicrelated portion of debt security impairmensdes and other-than-temporary impairment (“OT®F)equity securitie:
which are charged to earnings. The Company'styldi fully realize the value of its investmentsvarious securities, including corporate debt séesr is dependent on t
underlying creditworthiness of the issuing orgatia In evaluating the debt security portfolio fither-thantemporary impairment losses, management considigiswWe intenc
to sell the security; (2) if it is “more likely thanot” we will be required to sell the security beforeaery of its amortized cost basis; or (3) if thegent value of expected c
flows is not sufficient to recover the entire anmat cost basis. In determining whether OTTI besurred for equity securities, the Company considiee applicable factc
described above and the length of time the eqeityisty’s fair value has been below the carrying amourandgement continually analyzes the portfolio tedeine if furthe
impairment has occurred that may be deemed as-ththertemporary. Further charges are possiblerdipg on future economic conditions.
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The estimation of fair value is significant to seeof our assets, including investment securigieailable for sale, the interest rate derivativgéangible assets, foreclosed

estate, and the value of loan collateral when wgllbans. These are all recorded at either fdireyaor the lower of cost or fair value. Fair valuse determined based on th
party sources, when available. Furthermore, adomyprinciples generally accepted in the Unitedt&t require disclosure of the fair value of finahimstruments as a part of

notes to the consolidated financial statements: Védues on our available-farale securities may be influenced by a numberaibfs, including market interest rates, prepay!
speeds, discount rates and the shape of yield €urve

Fair values for securities available for sale areimed from an independent third party pricingveer. Where available, fair values are based astegliprices on a nationa
recognized securities exchange. If quoted pricesnat available, fair values are measured usirgeglimarket prices for similar benchmark securitignagement made
adjustments to the fair value quotes that wereigealvby the pricing source. The fair values okefdosed real estate and the underlying collateahlevof impaired loans &
typically determined based on evaluations by thadies, less estimated costs to sell. When nagessppraisals are updated to reflect changesikehconditions.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Earnings performance metrics for 2012 were geneiralbroved over those reported for 2011 as netrireand return on assets increased.

Net income for 2012 was $2.6 million, a $325,00&éase from 2011 and return on average assetg®amd on average equity were 0.57% and 6.68%, c&sply, as compared
0.55% and 6.75% in 2011. Net interest income msed $594,000 in 2012 as compared to 2011 due ilwcerase in earning assets and a reduction imaties paid on intere
bearing liabilities. Additionally, a reduction the provision for loan losses of $115,000 and ac#dn in the provision for income taxes of $11% Gipported the improvemen
net income. Offsets to these increases includedianil personnel expenses of $420,000 and a refugt the net gains on sales and redemptions \@siment securities
$416,000. The reasons for these changes are prbiridhe sections titled “Noninterest Income” &Ndninterest Expense”.

Total assets increased $34.8 million to $477.8tialyr funded by deposits which grew by $25.7 roffliduring 2012 primarily as a result of increasesnoney market depo
accounts and CDARS deposits. Both product inceeagze in support of the Compasystrategy to accommodate the funding needs olbtire growth that was expected in
marketplace through 2012. As such, the loan pastfepresented a greater proportion of the in@dasassets with a smaller proportion of the inseewithin the investme
securities portfolio. The loan portfolio recordadyear over year increase of $29.0 million to $338illion at December 31, 2012 whereas the investrsecurities portfoli
recorded an increase of $7.9 million to $108.3iomillat December 31, 2012. The Company will corgittiuemphasize its focus in the Cicero, CentrabBguand Fulton marke
where it feels further market penetration oppottasiexist. Additionally, we will pursue expandiogmmercial deposit relationships with our existiegding customers as well
expanding our commercial loan growth in the greStgacuse market.

Asset quality continues to remain stable as net thearge-offs as a percentage of total loans f&22@ere 0.10%, significantly less than the 0.21%orded in 2011. Net charge-
offs for 2012 were $304,000 as compared to $6080@011 and $480,000 in 2010. Management corgitu@dhere to conservative underwriting policied works closely wit
borrowers who have experienced difficulty in thiscaertain economic climate to mitigate loss to tlenlB The ratio of allowance for loan losses to gue@nd loans increas
slightly to 1.35% at December 31, 2012 as compardd31% at December 31, 2011 and 1.28% at Dece&ihe&2010. Nonperforming loans to period end ldaoseased to 1.66
at December 31, 2012 from 1.55% at December 311 B0fdecreased significantly from 2.08% recordddexember 31, 2010.
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The Company improved its equity position in 201252y9 million when compared to year end 2011 thhoadditional retained earnings of $2.1 million,imsprovement in the
after tax impact of unrealized holding gains ofatsilable-for-sale securities portfolio, and thsitive impact of the pension plan freeze whichuoed in the second quarter of
2012. Partially offsetting this improvement was tbompany’s election to purchase the CPP warremts the U.S. Treasury, causing a $537,000 redutbi@uquity.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the Company's primary soofceperating income for payment of operating exgesnand providing for possible loan losses. théamount by whic
interest earned on interesérning deposits, loans and investment securikieseels the interest paid on deposits and borrowateyn Changes in net interest income and th
interest margin ratio result from the interactia@iviieen the volume and composition of earning asisgésest-bearing liabilities, and their respeetyields and funding costs.

The following comments refer to the table of Ave&plances and Rates and the Rate/Volume Anabgais,of which follow below.

Net interest income, on a -equivalent basis, increased $771,000, or 5.3%]1%03$million for the year ended December 31, 2@k2;ompared to $14.5 million for the year er
December 31, 2011. The Company's net interestim&og 2012 decreased to 3.50% from 3.76% in 20Ife increase in net interest income is attrib@tabiclusively to &
increase in average earning assets. When comp20it® against 2011, the yield on average earnisgtaisleclined by 48 basis points, whereas the paielson interest beari
liabilities declined by 24 basis points.

The average balance of interest-earning assetsased $50.2 million, or 13.0%, during 2012 andaherage balance of interdstaring liabilities increased by $39.1 million
11.4%. The increase in the average balance aksttearning assets primarily resulted from a $88lon increase in the average balance of the jpartfolio and a $26.1 millic
increase in the average balance of the securigsinvent portfolio. This was funded by a $39.1iolincrease in interestearing liabilities driven largely by an increasenone
market deposit accounts (“MMDA"and time deposits. The makeup of the latter iregewas largely composed of CDARS deposits. Thegeases in interest bearing liabilit
initiated to fund the loan growth needs, were tiead result of the Company’s strategic plan presly addressed. Interest income, on agguivalent basis, increased $338,!
or 1.8%, during 2012. The decrease in yield onré@stieearning assets to 4.40% in 2012 from 4.8820i1 was more than offset by the 13.0% increasevémage volume. Tk
increase in average volume was primarily centemea/erage investment securities and, secondaviérage residential real estate loans and commdoein. Interest expense
interestbearing liabilities decreased $433,000, or 10.084he rates paid dropped 24 basis points to 1.022012 from 1.26% in 2011. The principal reasarttie decline in rat
paid was due to the greater concentration of CDABRSosits within time deposits, as the Company etettt acquire shorter term CDARS deposits at cufoem market rates

provide the liquidity for the expected loan growth.
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Average Balances and Rates

The following table sets forth information conceigiaverage interest-earning assets and intbessing liabilities and the yields and rates therdoterest income and result
yield information in the table is on a fully -equivalent basis using marginal federal incomerédes of 34%. Averages are computed on the dadya@e balance for each mc
in the period divided by the number of days in pleeiod. Yields and amounts earned include loan fdes-accrual loans have been included in intezasgting assets for purpo
of these calculations.

For the Years Ended December 3]

2012 2011 2010
Average Average Average
Average Yield / Average Yield / Average Yield /
(Dollars in thousands Balance Interest Cosl Balance Interest Cosl Balance Interest Cosl
Interest-earning assets
Real estate loans residen $ 168,35: $ 8,23t 48% $ 153,73 $  8,02¢ 522% $ 138,49° $ 7,67 5.5/%
Real estate loans commerc 72,89: 4,19¢ 5.7%% 70,05( 4,372 6.24% 65,12( 4,04¢ 6.21%
Commercial loan 45,59¢ 2,161 4.74% 38,53 1,904 4.94% 37,70( 1,89 5.02%
Consumer loan 26,95¢ 1,53t 5.6%% 28,46¢ 1,72¢ 6.0€% 29,50¢ 1,774 6.01%
Taxable investment securiti 93,35: 1,927 2.06% 79,23¢ 2,231 2.82% 75,66( 2,54¢ 3.31%
Tax-exempt investment securiti 23,71¢ 1,10C 4.64% 11,71¢ 571 4.87% 8,587 39¢ 4.65%
Interes-earning time depos 1,99/ 24 1.2(% 17¢€ 2 1.14% - - 0.0%
Interes-earning deposit 3,42¢ 4 0.12% 4,14 5 0.12% 8,14( 7 0.0¢%
Total interes-earning asse 436,29( 19,17¢ 4.4(% 386,06: 18,84( 4.88% 363,21( 18,33¢ 5.05%
Noninterest-earning assets
Other asset 32,59¢ 35,647 32,08
Allowance for loan losse (4,224 (3,872 (3,420
Net unrealized gair
on available for sale securiti 2,594 1,29: 1,51:
Total asset $ 467,25: $ 419,12 $ 393,39(
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW account: $ 31,81¢ 82 0.2¢% $ 30,27: 87 0.2¢% $ 29,81¢ 7¢ 0.26%
Money management accoul 14,39¢ 43 0.3(% 12,96« 43 0.32% 12,10: 3¢ 0.32%
MMDA accounts 77,40 427 0.55% 64,35: 43¢ 0.6% 50,72: 33€ 0.6€%
Savings and club accour 63,96: 54 0.0¢% 60,71: 78 0.1% 57,81( 84 0.15%
Time deposit: 159,28: 2,29( 1.4%% 139,29¢ 2,59( 1.8€% 137,97! 2,871 2.0&%
Junior subordinated debentu 5,15¢ 16¢ 3.28% 5,15¢ 162 3.16% 5,15¢ 164 3.1&%
Borrowings 31,07¢ 843 2.71% 31,25t 942 3.01% 34,10: 1,23¢ 3.62%
Total interes-bearing liabilities 383,09: 3,90¢ 1.02% 344,01. 4,341 1.26% 327,68: 4,80¢ 1.47%
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposit 40,75¢ 35,97 29,47¢
Other liabilities 3,76¢ 4,72% 5,17:¢
Total liabilities 427,61t 384,70! 362,33:
Shareholders' equi 39,63¢ 34,42« 31,057
Total liabilities & shareholders’
equity $ 467,25 $ 419,12¢ $ 393,39(
Net interest incom $ 15,27( $  14,49¢ $ 13,53
Net interest rate spre: 3.38% 3.62% 3.5¢%
Net interest margi 3.5(% 3.7¢% 3.7:%
Ratio of average intere-earning asse’
to average intere-bearing liabilities 113.8% 112.22% 110.8%
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Interest Income

Changes in interest income result from changelératerage balances of loans, securities, ancstarning deposits and the related yields on tholkmbes. Interest income
a tax-equivalent basis increased $338,000, or 1.8%.

Average interest earning asset balances increg&@@olin 2012, with yields decreasing 48 basis potnt4.40%. The Company's average residentialgaget loan portfoli
increased $14.6 million, or 9.5%, when comparing2tb 2011. The average yield on this portfoliordased 33 basis points to 4.89% in 2012 as higlieramortizing mortgag
were replaced with new originations reflecting eatrmarket rates. The average balance of comrheecibestate loans recorded a modest increasg.8frillion, or 4.1%, ar
the yield decreased 49 basis points to 5.75% ir2 2@lerage commercial loans recorded a signifitacriease of $7.1 million, or 18.3%, while the dielecreased 20 basis po
to 4.74% in 2012. This increase in average comialdmans is in direct support of the Company’snpla continue to diversify its loan portfolio.

Interest income on taxable investment securitiesedsed 13.6% from 2011 as the average yield desuie# basis points to 2.06% in 2012 from 2.82%0ihl. This was offset |
an increase of $14.1 million, or 17.8%, in the ager balance of taxable investment securities.rdateéncome on tarxempt securities increased $529,000, or 92.6%n
compared to the prior year as tax equivalent yieldthese issues continued to be attractive invadtalternatives.

Interest Expense

Changes in interest expense result from changéseimverage balances of deposits and borrowinggtendelated interest costs on those balancesrebttexpense decrea
$433,000, or 10.0%, in 2012 compared to 2011. dVerage rate paid on all interémtaring deposits was 1.02% in 2012 as compared2@?d in 2011, a 24 basis pc
decrease. Average balances for total intdveating liabilities increased by $39.1 million i812 when compared to 2011, principally due to a@Hh3illion increase in avera
MMDA and a $20.0 million increase in time deposi#hile average balances in both of these majopsiejareas increased, the rates paid on each s¢ thecreased 13 be
points and 42 basis points, respectively, resulim@ year over year decrease in interest expeh§419000 and $300,000, respectively. Time depdsitiude certificates
deposits and CDARS deposits. Maturing certificaiesleposits continue to be replaced with curremtelr cost certificates, contributing to the deceeasrates paid on tin
deposits.

The decrease in the cost of interest bearing liegsilalso resulted from a decrease of 30 basistpai the average cost of borrowings, as the ntigsiof borrowings, generally t
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, with highereghave been replaced by lower rates on borrovdndseflecting current market conditions. Saviagd club accounts
significant source of core deposits, recorded ayekmlances of $64.0 million in 2012 reflecting.4% increase over 2011. Average rates paid ore thesounts decreased 5 b
points to 0.08%.
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Rate/Volume Analysis

Net interest income can also be analyzed in teriiheoimpact of changing interest rates on int-earning assets and interésaring liabilities, and changes in the volum
amount of these assets and liabilities. The folfmatable represents the extent to which changegeénest rates and changes in the volume of inte@sing assets and interest-
bearing liabilities have affected the Companyiterest income and interest expense during #negs indicated. Information is provided in eactiegory with respect to:
changes attributable to changes in volume (chamgelume multiplied by prior rate); (ii) changesriutable to changes in rate (changes in rateiphield by prior volume); ar
(iiii) total increase or decrease. Changes attitiletto both rate and volume have been allocatedlya

Years Ended December 31

2012 vs. 201: 2011 vs. 201(
Increase/(Decrease) Due t Increase/(Decrease) Due t
Total Total
Increase Increase
(In thousands \olume Rate (Decrease’ Volume Rate (Decrease’
Interest Income:
Real estate loans resident $ 73z % (52¢) $ 204 % 81t $ (45¢) $ 357
Real estate loans commerc 17z (35)) (7€) 30¢ 20 32¢
Commercial loan 337 (80) 257 41 (€)) 10
Consumer loan (89) (102 (297) (63) 5 (48)
Taxable investment securiti 35¢ (662) (309 11¢F (4393) (31¢)
Tax-exempt investment securiti 557 (28) 52¢ 152 0 17z
Interes-earning time deposi 22 - 22 2 - 2
Interes-earning deposit (3) 2 (1) (4) 2 (2)
Total interest incom 2,087 (1,749 33€ 1,36¢€ (86E) 501
Interest Expense:
NOW account: 4 (©) 5) 1 7 8
Money management accoul 4 (4) - 3 1 4
MMDA accounts 81 (92 (12) 92 10 10z
Savings and club accour 4 (28) (24) 5 (1) (6)
Time deposits 33¢ (63€) (300) 27 (30€) (281)
Junior subordinated debentu - 6 6 - Q) Q)
Borrowings (5) (94) (99) (97) (196) (293)
Total interest expens 42€ (859) (432 31 (49¢) (467)
Net change in net interest incol $ 1,661 $ 890) $ 771 $ 1,33 $ 367 $ 96¢

Provision for Loan Losses

This year, 2012, the Company recorded $825,00@avigion for loan losses as compared to $940,000rded in the prior year. This year over year ease is due to lower lev
of net chargesffs, offset partially by the need for additionabpision due to the growth in the loan portfoliheTCompany views its current level of allowancelé@n losses i
adequate to absorb the probable and estimableslogten its loan portfolio.
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Noninterest Income

The Company's noninterest income is primarily casgat of fees on deposit account balances and tmiss, loan servicing, commissions and net gam®sses on securitie
loans, and foreclosed real estate.

The following table sets forth certain information noninterest income for the years indicated.

Twelve Months Ended December .

(In thousands 201z 2011 Change

Service charges on deposit accot $ 1,112 $ 1,131 % (29) -1.7%
Earnings and gain on bank owned life insure 30¢ 224 85 37.%
Loan servicing fee 211 19¢ i5 7.1%
Debit card interchange fe 42€ 36¢ 57 15.4%
Other charges, commissions and { 56¢ 531 38 7.2%
Noninterest income before gains (loss 2,627 2,451 17¢€ 7.2%
Net gains on sales and redemptions of investmentites 37t 791 (41€) -52.%
Net gains (losses) on sales of loans and foreclessdstat 61 (50) 111 -222.(%
Total noninterest incom $ 3,060 $ 3,192 $ (129 -4.C%

As indicated in the above table, total noninteiesbme for the twelve months ended December 312 2@treased from the prior year due principallihlower level of net gai
on sales and redemptions of investment securitie2011, the Company restructured a portion ofnit&estment securities portfolio due to falling irgst rates and a signific:
mismatch between the demand for, and availablelgupbank qualified fixed income products in therketplace at that time. Partially offsettingstdecrease was a year ¢
year improvement in net gains on sales of loansfaretliosed real estate, an increase in earnindgyaim on bank owned life insurance (stemming ftbmrecorded gain on li
insurance proceeds due to the death of a formemp@oyndirector), and an increase in debit card éhi@nge fees driven by increased usage.

Noninterest Expense
The following table sets forth certain information noninterest expense for the years indicated.

Twelve Months Ended December .

(In thousands 201z 2011 Change

Salaries and employee bene $ 7,49 % 7,07¢ $ 42( 5.%
Building occupanc 1,425 1,39t 32 2.2%
Data processin 1,43 1,39¢ 39 2.&%
Professional and other servic 654 681 (27) -4.(%
Advertising 452 437 16 3.7%
FDIC assessmen 311 39C (79) -20.2%
Audits and exam 24¢ 162 86 53.1%
Other expense 1,497 1,60¢ (117) -7.2%
Total noninterest expens $ 13,51¢ $ 13,14¢ $ 37C 2.€%

As indicated above, total noninterest expense @dr22ncreased over the prior year due largely &oiticrease in salaries and employee benefits steghfrom wage increast
stock option and ESOPompensation expenses. The annualized rate ofgmenests did not decrease until the pension freeas announced by the Company on May
2012. Further, pension costs in 2013 will decre2£9,000 from the 2012 level. The Company didbegin recording stock option costs until the selcquarter of 2011 a
ESOP compensation expenses until the third quaft2f11, hence 2012 was the first full year of rded expenses under the stock option awards gramtéghe 2011, and t
ESOP plan initiated in July 2011. Partially offsey these expense increases was a reduction @ epenses due to a change in program charaicteiiétthe Companyg’ debi
rewards card program and reduced FDIC assessmeenges due to the new assessment base formuladdo@011.
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Income Tax Expense

In 2012, the Company reported income tax expen929,000 compared with $1.0 million in 2011. HEifective tax rate decreased to 26.0% in 2012 coetptp a tax rate
31.0% in 2011 due to additional income from taxnege securities and additional earnings and gainbamk owned life insurance. See Note 15 to thesaafated financic
statements for the reconciliation of the statutasyrate to the effective tax rate.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share was $0.88 in 2012 as gechpa $0.53 in 2011. Diluted earnings per shaas $0.87 in 2012 as compared to $0.52 in 20Tkese increases in basic
diluted earnings per share were due principallihioaccelerated accretion of the discount on medestock which totaled $470,000 or $0.19 per bastt diluted share in 20
related to the Company’s participation in and dsaim the CPP and, separately, the dividends onptieéerred stock related to the Companyarticipation in the SBLF
Additionally, the $325,000 increase in net incorséaeen 2011 and 2012 resulted in an increase d8%ger basic and diluted share between these tersye

CHANGESIN FINANCIAL CONDITION
Investment Securities

The investment portfolio represents 27% of the Camyfs average earning assets and is designed to germefavorable rate of return consistent with saétprincipal while
assisting the Company in meeting its liquidity reeead interest rate risk strategies. All of thenpanys investments are classified as available for salee Company inves
primarily in securities issued by United States &ament agencies and sponsored enterprises, me#bgaged securities, state and municipal obligatiomstual funds, equi
securities, investment grade corporate debt ingnis) and common stock issued by the Federal Havaa Bank of New York (FHLBNY). By investing in the types of asse
the Company reduces the credit risk of its asse¢ lbait must accept lower yields than would typjchi available on loan products. Our mortgage @ddecurities portfolio
comprised predominantly of pass-through securgiesranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie Btad does not, to our knowledge, include any gesibacked by sub-
prime or other high-risk mortgages.

At December 31, 2012, investment securities in@@as9% to $108.3 million from $100.4 million at é&enber 31, 2011. There were no securities thagesled 10% (
consolidated shareholders’ equity. See Note Adabnsolidated financial statements for furthecassion on securities.

The following table sets forth the carrying valddl®e Company's investment portfolio at December 31

(In Thousands 2012 2011
Investment Securities:
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 6,18: $ 5,07:
State and political subdivisiol 27,47 20,30¢
Corporate 23,00¢ 20,43¢
Residential mortga-backec 48,55¢ 51,57¢
Mutual funds 2,691 2,56t
Equity securities 432 444
Total investment securiti $ 108,33¢ $ 100,39!
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The following table sets forth the scheduled méesj amortized cost, fair values and average yifld the Company's investment securities at Deee®b, 2012. Average Yie
is calculated on the amortized cost to maturity adidsted to a fully tax-equivalent basis.

One Year or Less

One to Five Years

Five to Ten Years

Annualized Annualized Annualized
Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted
(Dollars in thousands Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Avg Yield
Debt investment securities
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 3,001 13¢% $ 2,15¢ 0.8:% $ 1,02( 1.5%
State and political subdivisiol 1,34 1.71% 4,357 1.88% 6,37¢ 3.1&%
Corporate 3,55¢ 1.34% 15,01¢ 2.0(% 1,011 3.16%
Total $ 7,907 1.42% $ 21,520 1.8t% $ 8,40¢ 2.98%
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential mortga-backec $ - - $ 21C 5.21% $ 11,76¢ 2.41%
Total $ = - 3 21C 5.21% $ 11,76¢ 2.41%
Other non-maturity investments:
Mutual funds $ 2,37¢ 34% $ - - $ = =
Equity securities 42C 2.5/% - - - -
Total $ 2,794 3.31% $ = - $ = =
Total investment securitie $ 10,70: 1.92% $ 21,73% 1.8% $ 20,17: 2.6%
Total
Investment
More Than Ten Years Securities
Annualized Annualized
Amortized Weighted Amortized Fair Weighted
(Dollars in thousands Cosl Avg Yield Cosl Value Avg Yield
Debt investment securities
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ = - 3 6,17t $ 6,18:% 1.22%
State and political subdivisiol 14,33t 3.25% 26,41 27,47 2.9%
Corporate 3,35¢ 2.45% 22,94 23,00¢ 2.01%
Total $ 17,69: 3.09% $ 55,53( $ 56,66( 2.31%
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential mortga-backec $ 35,43 2.3%% $ 47,40¢  $ 48,55¢ 2.31%
Total $ 35,43: 2.3% $ 47,40¢ $ 48,55¢ 2.31%
Other non-maturity investments:
Mutual funds $ = - $ 237 $ 2,691 3.41%
Equity securities - - 42C 432 2.5%
Total $ = - $ 2,79¢ $ 3,12: 3.3¢%
Total investment securitie $ 53,12 2.5% $ 105,73. $ 108,33 2.3%

The above noted yield information does not giveaffo changes in fair value that are reflectegiccumulated other comprehensive loss in consotidgitareholders’ equity.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable represent 72% of the Compaayerage earning assets and account for the gireatgion of total interest income. The Compauyrently has the largest porti
of its loan portfolio in the residential real est@roduct segment and it anticipates a continuethdtment to financing the purchase or improveménesidential real estate in
market area. The Company also extends creditsmésses within its marketplace secured by comedeezl estate, equipment, inventories, and aceaeceivable. In support
the strategy to diversify its loan portfolio, it @ticipated that small business lending in thenfaf mortgages, term loans, leases, and lines editcwill provide the mo:
opportunity for balance sheet and revenue growdr the near term. At December 31, 2012, commeacidimunicipal loans comprised 15% of the totahIpartfolio, and 78% ¢
the Company'’s total loan portfolio consisted ofrlsaecured by first mortgages on residential anthoercial real estate.
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December 31

(In thousands 2012 2011 201( 200¢ 200¢
Residential real estate ( $ 176,96¢ $ 162,39" $ 147,72. $ 135,10. $ 136,21¢
Commercial real esta 82,351 73,62¢ 69,06( 62,25( 55,06
Commercial and municipal loal 48,82¢ 40,33¢ 39,83 35,44 30,68¢
Home Equity and junior lier 22,14 24,25 25,27 26,08¢ 24,39:
Consumer loan 3,45¢ 4,14(C 3,41( 3,58( 3,51¢

Total loans receivab $ 333,74t  $ 304,75( $ 285,29t $ 262,46' $ 249,87.

(1) Includes loans held for sale at December 3092(None at December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, an8)200

The following table shows the amount of loans @uitding, including net deferred costs, as of DecerBhbe2012 which, based on remaining scheduledyrepats of principal, a
due in the periods indicated. Demand loans havingtated schedule of repayments, no stated matarnitl overdrafts are reported as one year or lgdgistable and floating re
loans are included in the period on which interatgs are next scheduled to adjust, rather thapetied in which they contractually mature. Fixaete loans are included in -
period in which the final contractual repaymendis.

Due Unde Due 15 Due Ove

(In thousands One Yea Years Five Year: Total
Real estate

Commercial real esta $ 102 % 5471 $ 76,78.  $ 82,357

Residential real esta 83 4,761 172,12 176,96¢
Total real estat 18€ 10,23: 248,90° 259,32!
Other commercie 24,21¢ 16,457 8,151 48,82¢
Home equity and junior lier 40 1,05¢ 21,04¢ 22,14:
Consume 55(C 2,10¢ 79¢ 3,45¢
Total loans $ 24,99: $ 29,85 $ 278,90. $ 333,74¢
Interest rates

Fixed $ 6,29¢ $ 19,51 $ 152,99: $ 178,80(

Variable 18,70( 10,33¢ 125,91( 154,94¢
Total loans $ 24,99: $ 29,85 $ 278,90. $ 333,74¢

Total loans receivable increased $29.0 million &% when compared to the prior year, primarily duea $14.6 million or 9.0% increase in residentedl estate loans. T
Company does not originate sub-prime, Althegative amortizing or other higher risk struetliresidential mortgages. Commercial and munidgeais increased $8.5 million
21.0% in support of the Compasystrategy to balance its diversification amongitsduct segments. Commercial real estate loaasraported significant growth as this segr
reported a $8.7 million or 11.9% year over yeargéase. At December 31, 2012, total loans recedviaaving a fixed interest rate represented 53.6%eportfolio as compared
51.3% at December 31, 2011. This represents ancimg shift to fixed interest rate products, givitre historically lower fixed rates and the markedesire to lock in low:
borrowing costs.

Consumer loans, which include second mortgage Jdame equity lines of credit, direct installmesmd revolving credit loans, decreased 9.8% to $28llén at December 3
2012. The decrease resulted from a decrease ie Bqgmity lines of credit as a result of the curreatket and economic conditions.
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Non-performing Loans and Assets
The following table represents information concegrthe aggregate amount of non-performing assets:

December 31

(In thousands 2012 2011 201( 200¢ 200¢
Nonaccrual loans:
Commercial real estate and commer $ 2,72¢  $ 2592 $ 422¢  $ 1,021 % 1,45t
Consumel 77¢€ 70€ 36E 111 254
Residential real esta 2,04¢€ 1,42¢ 1,33¢ 1,181 614
Total nonaccrual loar 5,54¢ 4,72¢ 5,924 2,31: 2,32%
Total nor-performing loan: 5,54¢ 4,72¢ 5,92/ 2,31% 2,328
Foreclosed real este 42€ 53€ 37E 181 33E
Total nor-performing assel $ 597« $ 526/ $ 6,29¢ $ 249 $ 2,65¢
Troubled debt restructurings not included ah $ 1937 $ 59t $ 1587 $ 68C $ =
Non-performing loans to total loat 1.6€% 1.55% 2.08% 0.8¢% 0.9:%
Nor-performing assets to total ass 1.25% 1.15% 1.5% 0.67% 0.75%

Non-performing assets include nonaccrual loans, nonattroubled debt restructurings (“TDR”), and faased real estate. Loans are considered modifiedTiDR when, due
to a borrower’s financial difficulties, the Compamakes a concession(s) to the borrower that it dvaot otherwise consider. These modifications majude an extension of
the term of the loan, and granting a period wheer@st-only payments can be made, with the prihgiggments made over the remaining term of the tweat maturity. TDRs
are included in the above table within the follogvitategories of nonaccrual loans or TDRs not ireduabove (the latter also known as accruing TDRS).

As indicated in the above table, total non-perfoigribans increased at December 31, 2012, when gechpa December 31, 2011, but slightly less thanattmounts recorded at
December 31, 2010. The increase in 2012 over 2@Klcentered largely in residential real estatadpa result of the continued challenging econanigronment within the
Company’s market area. Management continues tatarand react to national and local economic tseasl well as general portfolio conditions which nrapact the quality
of the portfolio, and considers these environmefatetors in support of the allowance for loan losserve. Management believes that the current &d\tbe allowance for loan
losses, at $4.5 million, adequately addressestutrertt level of risk within the loan portfolio. THgompany has also maintained strict loan undemygristandards and carefully
monitors the performance of the loan portfolio.

Foreclosed real estate (“FRE”) balances decreas#d, 00 to $426,000 at December 31, 2012, from mbee 31, 2011 as the Company successfully redusédventory of
other real estate properties from eleven to eightrough the twelve months of 2012, the sale ofpi@perties resulted in a net gain of $20,000, iconrfig that the Company’s
FRE carrying value is a valid approximation of emtr market conditions. As indicated above, theenirlevel of foreclosed real estate balances kamficantly decreased
from the balances recorded a year ago.

Additionally, the Company is carrying a repossedsmat in other assets with a carrying value of $233.
The Company generally places a loan on nonacctai@issand ceases accruing interest when loan pdyreeiormance is deemed unsatisfactory and theitopast due 90 days

or more. There are no loans that are past duag@g®at more and still accruing interest. The Camgpaonsiders a loan impaired when, based on cuimérmation and events,
it is probable that the Company will be unabledtiect the scheduled payments of principal and@siewhen due according to the contractual ternteeofoan.
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The measurement of impaired loans is generallydapen the fair value of the collateral, with atpor of the impaired loans measured based upoprésent value of future
cash flows discounted at the historical effectiveliest rate. The Company used the fair valueoltéteral to measure impairment on commercial loam$ commercial real
estate loans. At December 31, 2012 and Decemhe2@®1, the Company had $6.7 million and $4.3 millin loans, which were deemed to be impaired, rttagpecific
reserves of $923,000 and $619,000, respectivefie $2.4 million year over year increase in impaihs was principally due to the addition of f@@mmercial real estate
borrowers totaling $1.6 million, offset by $230,0@Che reduction of impaired loans from two comaigrreal estate relationships through forecloguoeeedings and transfer
to FRE or through the satisfaction of debt. Impairesidential mortgage loans increased by $853@d@een these same two time periods through thdi@ad of nine
residential mortgages associated with commerdiatioaships identified as impaired.

Management has identified potential problem loataling $11.7 million as of December 31, 2012, caned to $8.0 million as of December 31, 2011. €Heans have been
internally classified as special mention or subdad, yet are not currently considered impaire¢haron-accrual status. Management has identif@ergial credit problems
which may result in the borrowers not being abledmply with the current loan repayment terms ahditivmay result in possible future impaired loaporting. The increase
in problem loans reflects increases in classificatiof 1-4 family residential mortgages in the anmiaf $966,000 and commercial real estate loariseéramount of $894,000,
the latter due principally to one large commeroidtionship being downgraded to special menti@ommercial lines and loans, in aggregate, recoaseiticrease in potential
problem loans of $1.1 million from year end 201¥éar end 2012. The significant increase in p@éeptoblem loans evidenced by a disproportionatesase in the amount of
residential real estate loans, commercial reattesstmd commercial loans risk rated as Special Menwhen compared to December 31, 2011. As atrethal ratio of the
allowance to loan and lease losses to period-esntslat December 31, 2012 was 1.35% as compareddeniber 31, 2011 of 1.31%. The increase was dhyehe required
provision for loan losses prompted by the strorgydase in gross loans and an increase in the dedditavance for impaired commercial real estateso@ported in the third
quarter of 2012. Management reviews delinquencyaadit quality trends in its assessment of thalitptive factors used in the support of the alloe&for loan losses and
believes that the current allowance for loan losseslequate to cover probable credit losses icuhent loan portfolio.

Appraisals are obtained at the time a real esttared loan is originated. For commercial reghtesheld as collateral, the property is inspeeteery two years. When
evaluating our ability to collect from secondaryses, appraised values are adjusted to reflecadeeof appraisal, the condition of the propeittg, ¢urrent local real estate
market, and cost to sell. Properties are re-apgdaivhen our evaluation of the current propertydit@n and the local real estate market suggedtesanay not be accurate.

In the normal course of business, Pathfinder Baag dold residential mortgage loans and participatiterests in commercial loans. As is typicalhe industry, Pathfinder
Bank makes certain representations and warrarmidsetbuyer. Pathfinder Bank maintains a qualitytiad program for closed loans and considers thlesrand uncertainties
associated with potential repurchase requiremertte tminimal. There are no known or alleged defatthe securitization process or in the mortgdmgimentation.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established thrqurgvision for loan losses and reduced by loamgehaffs net of recoveries. The allowance for loars&ssrepresents the amc
available for probable credit losses in the Compagan portfolio as estimated by management. Tompgany maintains an allowance for loan losses baped a monthl
evaluation of known and inherent risks in the Igamtfolio. This includes a review of the balan@®l composition of the loan portfolio, as well amlgzing the level ¢
delinquencies in each segment of the loan portfolio

The Company establishes a specific allocation lfdoans identified as being impaired with a balame excess of $100,000. These loans are on nardamr have been risk rai
under the Compang’risk rating system as substandard, doubtfuloss.| The measurement of impaired loans is genepagd upon the present value of future cash

discounted at the historical effective interesera&xcept that all collaterdiependent loans are measured for impairment basédedfair value of the collateral, less costseth.
The majority of the Company’s impaired loans arkbateral-dependent. The Company uses the fair value oditendl, less costs to sell to measure impairmemoommercial an
commercial real estate loans. Residential reatedbans in excess of $300,000 may also be indlidthis individual loan review. At December 3012 and 2011, the Compe
had $6.7 million and $4.3 million in loans, ide@d as impaired, having valuation allowances of330@0 and $619,000, respectively. For all othantand leases, the Comp
uses the general allocation methodology that eésteds an allowance to estimate the probable induoss for each riskating category that reflects actual loss expes
delinquency trends, current economic conditiond, several other environmental factors.
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The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2022011 was $4.5 million and $4.0 million, or 28&nd 1.31% of total period end loans, respectivélgt loan chargeffs
were $304,000 during 2012, as compared to $608/0@D11. The majority of the current year net geaoff activity is the result of net chargéfs of $128,000 within tt
commercial real estate product segment, with thieeioconsumer loans’ product segment reportingchatge-offs of $102,000. The 1-4 family fit&n residential mortgage lo
product segment reported a modest amount of negetadfs of $33,000 for 2012. See Note 6 of thesddidated Financial Statements for complete detailnet charge-offs.

The following table sets forth the allocation dibalance for loan losses by loan category for théops indicated. The allocation of the allowangechtegory is not necessa
indicative of future losses and does not resthietuse of the allowance to absorb losses in amgost.

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Allocation  Percentc  Allocation Percentc Allocation  Percentc  Allocation Percentc  Allocation  Percentc

of the Loans t( of the Loans t( of the Loans t( of the Loans t( of the Loans t(

Total Total Total Total Total

(Dollars in thousands Allowance Loan:  Allowance Loans  Allowance Loan:  Allowance Loan:  Allowance Loans
Residential real esta $ 811 53.1% $ 664 53.2% $ 75C 51.1% $ 762 51.5% $ 67¢ 54.5%
Commercial real esta 1,74¢ 24.% 1,34¢ 24.2% 1,204 24.2% 1,00¢ 23.1% 907 22.(%
Commercial and municipi 1,192 14.7% 1,11« 13.2% 1,08: 14.(% 864 13.5% 50& 12.2%
Home equity and junior lier 494 6.€% 501 8.C% 424 8.% 39C 9.% 33< 9.8%
Consumer loan 16€ 1.C% 162 1.4% 89 1.2% 76 1.4% 48 1.4%

Unallocatec 88 19¢ 98 (24) -

Total $ 4,501 100.(% $  3,98( 100.(% $  3,64¢ 100.(% $  3,07¢ 100.(% $ 2,47 100.%
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The following table sets forth the allowance faaridosses for the periods indicated and relatéalstat

(In thousands 2012 2011 201( 200¢ 200¢
Balance at beginning of yea $ 398 $ 364¢ % 3,07¢  $ 247 % 1,70¢
Provisions charged to operating exper 82E 94C 1,05( 87€ 82(
Recoveries of loans previously charge-off:
Commercial real estate and loz 64 1 55 - 17
Consumel 65 49 36 2C 3C
Residential real esta 75 49 19 3 -
Total recoverie: 204 99 11C 23 47
Loans charged off:
Commercial real estate and loz (23)) (309 (385) (74) (46)
Consumel (16¢ (16€) (157) (139 (52
Residential real esta (10¢) (237) (48) (85 -
Total charge-off (50¢) (707) (590) (29< (98)
Net charg-offs (304) (60¢) (480) (270) (51)
Balance at end of yea $ 4501 $ 398 $ 364t $ 3,07¢  $ 2,472
Net charg-offs to average loans outstand 0.1(% 0.21% 0.1¢% 0.11% 0.02%
Allowance for loan losses to y+-end loans 1.35% 1.31% 1.28% 1.17% 0.9%%
Deposits

The Company’s deposit base is drawn from eightdeilice offices in its market area. The depos#iebeonsists of demand deposits, money managemennaney marke
deposit accounts, savings, and time deposits. @12, 59% of the Company's average deposit fad883.6 million consisted of core deposits. Cdeposits, which exclur
time deposits, are considered to be more stablgoendde the Company with a lower cost source afiithan time deposits. The Company will contittuemphasize retail cc
deposits by maintaining its network of full servicffices and providing depositors with a full rangfedeposit product offerings. In addition, Patldér Commercial Bank, o
commercial bank subsidiary, seeks business growfhdusing on its local identification and serviecellence within the municipal deposit marketplace

Average deposits increased $44.0 million, or 12.8%en compared to 2011. The increase in averagesis primarily related to a $1.9 million increasehe average balance
municipal deposits and a $43.1 million increaseetail deposits, the latter due largely to theéase in CDARS deposits to fund the Company’s laani objectives.

At December 31, 2012, time deposits in excess 60FDO0 totaled $85.1 million, or 52% of time dep®sind 22% of total deposits. At December 31, 2€idse deposits total
$69.6 million, or 45% of time deposits and 19%atét deposits.

The following table indicates the amount of the @amy’s certificates of deposit of $100,000 or misyeime remaining until maturity as of December 201 2:

(In thousands
Remaining Maturity:

Three months or les $ 35,40¢
Three through six montt 12,02¢
Six through twelve montt 18,76¢
Over twelve month 18,94:

Total $ 85,14¢
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Borrowings

Shortterm borrowings are comprised primarily of advanaed overnight borrowing at the FHLBNY. At DecemB&, 2012 and December 31, 2011 there were $9l@manc
$0 million, respectively, in short-term borrowingststanding.

The following table represents information regagdéhort-term borrowings during 2012, 2011 and 2010:

(Dollars in thousands 2012 2011 201(
Maximum outstanding at any month € $ 14,08 $ 11,10¢ $ 13,00(
Average amount outstanding during the y 5,781 5,371 74E
Average interest rate during the y: 0.45% 0.5(% 0.47%

Long-term borrowed funds consist of advances and repseclgreements from the FHLBNY and CitiGroup amibjusubordinated debentures associated with otgtanding
Trust Preferred Securities. Lomgrm borrowed funds and junior subordinated debresttotaled $31.1 million at December 31, 2012amspared to $31.2 million at December
2011.

Capital

Shareholders' equity at December 31, 2012, was/$4llion as compared to $37.8 million at DecemBgy 2011. The Company added $2.6 million to reiearnings throut
net income and a reduction in accumulated otherpcehensive loss of $1.3 million. The latter wae dor a $494,000 increase in unrealized holdingsgam available-fosale
securities and the financial derivative, the pemgtan curtailment of $1.2 million, and the amaation of prior period actuarial losses of $237,00fset by the net change
current year actuarial net loss in the retireméam$ of $536,000, all net of tax. Offsetting thészreases were preferred stock and common stetttetids declared of $750,0
and the cost of the Company'’s repurchase of theants from the U.S. Treasury (detailed in the Camy{sa2012 Istquarter 10-Q filing on March 14, 2012) of $537,000.

Risk-based capital provides the basis for which all Baaule evaluated in terms of capital adequacy. t@lapilequacy is evaluated primarily by the useatibs which measu
capital against total assets, as well as agaiteitdesets that are weighted based on definedhigkacteristics. The Compasyjoal is to support growth and expansion acti,
while maintaining a strong capital position andeeding regulatory standards. At December 31, 202Bank exceeded all regulatory required mininuapital ratios and m
the regulatory definition of a “well-capitalizedfistitution, i.e. a leverage capital ratio exceedifig a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio exceedingadb a total risksased capital rat
exceeding 10%. As a result of the Dodd-Frank Aat, Companys ability to raise new capital through the userostt preferred securities may be limited becauseetsecuritie
will no longer be included in Tier 1 capital. Iddition, our ability to generate or originate addhitl revenue producing assets may be constramé#teifuture in order to comy
with anticipated heightened capital standards requby state and federal regulation. See Note i1Bat@onsolidated financial statements for furtiiscussion on regulatory cap
requirements.

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity management involves the Compasgbility to generate cash or otherwise obtain $uadreasonable rates to support asset growth, aepesit withdrawals, mainte
reserve requirements, and otherwise operate thep@wyron an ongoing basis. The Company's primarcss of funds are deposits, borrowed funds, apativin and prepayme
of loans and maturities of investment securitied atiher shorterm investments, and earnings and funds provided bperations. While scheduled principal repaytsien loan
are a relatively predictable source of funds, diéflasvs and loan prepayments are greatly influehlog general interest rates, economic conditionscampetition. The Compa
manages the pricing of deposits to maintain a eésieposit balance. In addition, the Company itsvescess funds in short-term intereatning and other assets, which pro
liquidity to meet lending requirements.
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The Company's liquidity has been enhanced by iit#yato borrow from the Federal Home Loan BankNéw York, whose competitive advance programs ameksliof cred
provide the Company with a safe, reliable, and eoient source of funds. A significant decreasedposits in the future could result in the Comphaying to seek other sour:
of funds for liquidity purposes. Such sources dantlude, but are not limited to, additional bavings, brokered deposits, negotiated time depdbi¢ssale of "available-fogale'
investment securities, the sale of securitizeddpan the sale of whole loans. Such actions ceeddlt in higher interest expense costs and/oetoss the sale of securities
loans.

For the year ended 2012, as indicated in the Citatet Statement of Cash Flows, the Company repare¢ cash flows from financing activities of $33n#llion generated k
increased balances of demand and savings depositey market deposit accounts, certificates of siépobrokered deposits, and shiemm borrowings. Additionally, $2
million was provided through operating activiti€bhis was invested in available-feale investment securities of $7.8 million, net] aet increase in loan outstandings of $
million. As a recurring source of liquidity, theo@panys investment securities provided $26.3 million ingeeds from maturities and principal reductionglie year ended 201

The Company has a number of existing credit faedifivailable to it. Total credit available untlee existing lines is approximately $105.4 millioat December 31, 2012, t
Company had $34.0 million outstanding under existiredit facilities with $71.4 million available.

The Asset Liability Management Committee of the @any is responsible for implementing the policiad guidelines for the maintenance of prudent leeélbquidity. As of
December 31, 2012, management reported to the Bddaectors that the Company is in compliancehvitis liquidity policy guidelines.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company is also a party to financial instrursemith off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of busitesseet the financing needs of its customers.s&Hmancie
instruments include commitments to extend credit standby letters of credit. At December 31, 2@4&,Company had $45.6 million in outstanding cotmmants to extend cre:
and standby letters of credit. See Note 16 irmtttmpanying consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Not required of a smaller reporting compa
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN®EPORTING

The Company’s management is responsible for estabtj and maintaining adequate internal control éivencial reporting, as such term is defined id® 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, azaded. Because of its inherent limitations, inteaeentrol over financial reporting may not prevemtdetect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivesiés future periods are subject to the risk thatrads may become inadequate because of changesditions, or that the degree
of compliance with policies or procedures may detate. The Company’s internal control over finaheeporting is a process designed under the sigi@anvof the Company’s

principal executive officer and principal financiafficer to provide reasonable assurance regarthiegreliability of financial reporting and the pezption of the Company’s
financial statements for external reporting purgdseaccordance with United States generally aeceptcounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participatiom@nagement, including the Company’s principal atiee officer and principal financial officer, tht@ompany conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal tcoinover financial reporting based on the framewir Internal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis@@ased on its evaluation under that framework,agament concluded that the Company'’s internal oboirer financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2012addition, based on our assessment, managemermntetersnined that there were no material weaknessései Company’s
internal controls over financial reporting.

This annual report does not include an attestagport of the Company’s independent registeredipaaicounting firm regarding internal control o¥ancial reporting pursuant
to the rules of the Dodd-Frank Act that exemptsGbenpany from such attestation and requires onlyagement’s report.

/sl Thomas W. Schneider /sl James A. Dow
Thomas W. Schneidi James A. Dowt
President & Chief Executive Offict Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Oswego, New York
March 18, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourting

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Oswego, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatts of condition of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. anthsidiaries (the “Companygs of December 31, 2012 and 2011 ani
related consolidated statements of income, compsde income, changes in shareholders’ equity asth dlows for each of the years then ended. PaifiBancorp, Incs
management is responsible for these consolidataddial statements. Our responsibility is to expasopinion on these consolidated financial statesbased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standards require thgilan and perform ti
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whétkeconsolidated financial statements are free aferral misstatement. The Company is not requicetiave, nor were v
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal cdraxer financial reporting. Our audit included ciiegation of internal control over financial repog as a basis for designing at
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstareé not for the purpose of expressing an opiniotthe effectiveness of the Compaiternal control over financial reportil
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aullibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosures in the cafeted financial statemer
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well agagirgj the overall financial statement presentatiia believe that our aud
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all maler@spects, the financial position of PathfindenBarp, Inc. and subsidiaries a:
December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the results of dpeirations and their cash flows for each of thery¢hen ended in conformity with accounting pptes generally accepted
the United States of America.

/s BONADIO & CO., LLP

Syracuse, New York
March 18, 2013

Page 3¢




Table of Contents

PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

December 3: December 3:
(In thousands, except share da 2012 2011
ASSETS:
Cash and due from ban $ 6,43¢ 6,99:
Interest earning depos 2,23( 3,22¢
Total cash and cash equivale 8,66 10,21¢
Interest earning time depos 2,00( 2,00(
Investment securities, at fair val 108,33¢ 100,39!
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at ¢ 1,92¢ 1,52¢
Loans 333,74t 304,75(
Less: Allowance for loan loss: 4,501 3,98(
Loans receivable, ni 329,24° 300,77(
Premises and equipment, | 10,10¢ 10,697
Accrued interest receivah 1,717 1,68¢
Foreclosed real este 42¢ 53€
Goodwill 3,84( 3,84(
Bank owned life insuranc 8,04¢ 7,93¢
Other asset 3,47¢ 3,37%
Total asset $ 477,79t 442,98(
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Deposits:
Interes-bearing $ 347,89 328,97t
Noninteres-bearing 43,91% 37,15
Total deposit: 391,80! 366,12¢
Shor-term borrowings 9,00( -
Long-term borrowings 25,96¢ 26,07«
Junior subordinated debentu 5,15¢ 5,15¢
Accrued interest payab 14C 14&
Other liabilities 4,98t 7,63¢€
Total liabilities 437,04¢ 405,13¢
Shareholders' equit
Preferred stoc- SBLF, par value $0.01 per share; $1,000 liquiaagiceference
13,000 shares authorized; 13,000 shares issueduastdnding 13,00( 13,00(
Common stock, par value $0.01; authorized 10,0@sb@res
2,980,469 and 2,979,969 shares issued and 2,618tB2,617,682
shares outstanding, respectiv 30 30
Additional paid in capita 8,12( 8,73(
Retained earninc 26,68¢ 24,61¢
Accumulated other comprehensive | (1,319 (2,669
Unearned ESO (93€) (1,039
Treasury stock, at cost; 362,287 sh: (4,834 (4,834
Total shareholders' equi 40,74% 37,84
Total liabilities and shareholders' equ $ 477,79t 442,98(

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdnsolidated financial statemer
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PATH FINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years ende!
December 3: December 3:
(In thousands, except per share d¢ 2012 2011
Interest and dividend income:
Loans, including fee $ 16,08: $ 15,98t¢
Debt securities
Taxable 1,76z 2,08(
Tax-exempl 72€ 37¢
Dividends 165 152
Interest earning time depos 24 2
Federal funds sold and interest earning dep 4 4
Total interest incorr 18,76¢ 18,60«
Interest expense:
Interest on deposi 2,89¢ 3,23¢
Interest on sho-term borrowings 26 27
Interest on lon-term borrowing:s 98€ 1,07¢
Total interest expen 3,90¢ 4,341
Net interest incon 14,85 14,26:
Provision for loan losse 82E 94C
Net interest income after provision foan losse 14,03: 13,32:
Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accot 1,11z 1,131
Earnings and gain on bank owned life insure 30¢ 224
Loan servicing fee 211 19¢
Net gains on sales and redemptions of investmentites 37¢ 791
Net gains (losses) on sales of loans and foreclessdstat 61 (50
Debit card interchange fe 42¢ 36¢
Other charges, commissions & fe 56¢ 531
Total noninterest incon 3,06 3,192
Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee bene 7,49¢ 7,07¢
Building occupanc 1,427 1,39¢
Data processin 1,437 1,39¢
Professional and other servic 654 681
Advertising 452 437
FDIC assessmen 311 39C
Audits and exam 24¢ 162
Other expense 1,492 1,60¢
Total noninterest expens 13,51¢ 13,14¢
Income before income tax 3,571 3,361
Provision for income taxe 92¢ 1,044
Net income 2,64¢ 2,32:
Preferred stock dividends and discount accretion 44¢ 1,008
Net income available to common shareholdel $ 2,19¢  $ 1,32(
Earnings per common share- basic $ 08t $ 0.5¢
Earnings per common share- diluted $ 087 $ 0.5Z
Dividends per common share $ 01z $ 0.1Z

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdnsolidated financial statemer
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PATHFINDER BANCORP INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Endel
December 3: December 3:

(In thousands 2012 2011
Net Income 2,64¢ 2,328
Other Comprehensive income (10ss)
Retirement Plans

Retirement plan net losses recognized in plan esqs 39t 267

Gain on pension plan curtailment and additionah ptsses not recognized in plan exper 1,02¢ (2,899
Net unrealized gains (Ioss) on retirement p 1,42( (2,632
Unrealized holding gain (loss) on financial derivat

Change in unrealized holding loss on financial\agive (53 (152)

Reclassification adjustment for interest expenskided in net incom 58 61
Net unrealized gain (loss) on financial derivar 5 (90)
Unrealized holding gains on availa-for-sale securities

Unrealized holding gains arising during the pel 1,192 2,30¢

Reclassification adjustment for net gains inclugtedet income (375) (797)
Net unrealized gains on securities avail-for-sale 817 1,51¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), before 2,24z (1,207
Tax effect (896€) 482
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of 1,34¢ (725)
Comprehensive Incon 3,99/ 1,59¢
Tax Effect Allocated to Each Component of Other @aghensive Incom
Retirement plan net losses recognized in plan esgs (15§) (107)
Gain on pension plan curtailment and additionalostes not recognized in plan exper (410) 1,15¢
Change in unrealized holding loss on financial\dgive 21 60
Reclassification adjustment for interest expenskided in net incom (23) (24)
Unrealized holding gains arising during the pel (47€) (922)
Reclassification adjustment for net gains inclugtedet income 15C 31€
Income tax effect related to other comprehensieerime (89€) 482

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUI TY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND DECEMBER 31, 201.

Accumulate
Additional Other Cor-
Preferre: Commor Paid ir Retaine: prehensiv Unearne Treasur
(In thousands, except share de Stock Stock Capita Earning: Loss ESOF Stock Total
Balance, January 1, 201: $ 13,000 $ 30 % 8,73( $ 24,61¢ $ (2,669 $ (1,039 $ 4,839 $ 37,84
Comprehensive incom
Net income 2,64¢ 2,64¢
Other comprehensive incorr
net of tax:
Unrealized gains on securiti
available for sale (net of
$326 tax expenst 491 491
Unrealized gains on financi
derivative (net of $2 ta
expense 3 3
Retirement plan net loss
recognized in plan expens
(net of $158 tax expens 237 237
Defined benefit plan free:
net of losses not recogniz
in plan expenses (net of
$410 tax expense) 61F 61E
Total comprehensiv
income 3,99«
Purchase of CPP Warrants fro
Treasury (70€) 16¢ (537)
Preferred stock dividends -
SBLF (449) (449
ESOP shares earned (11,¢
shares 11 10z 114
Stock based compensati 79 79
Stock options exercise 6 6
Common stock dividends
declared ($0.12 per shai (301) (301)
Balance, December 31, 201 $ 13,000 $ 30 $ 8,12( $ 26,68t $ (1,31f) $ (9360 $ (4,839 $ 40,74
Balance, January 1, 201. $ 6,22t $ 30 % 8,61t $ 24,16! $ (1,93) $ - % (6,502 $ 30,59:
Comprehensive incom
Net income 2,32¢ 2,32¢
Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax
Unrealized gains on securiti
available for sale (net «
$607 tax expenst 90¢ 90¢
Unrealized loss on financi
derivative (net of $36 tax
benefit) (54) (54)
Retirement plan net loss
recognized in plan expens
(net of $1,053 tax benefi (1,579 (1,579
Total comprehensiv
income 1,59¢
Sale of preferred sto- SBLF 13,00( 13,00(
Redemption of CPP Preferred
stock (6,777) (6,777)
Preferred stock discount
accretion 54¢€ (54€) -
Preferred stock dividen-- CPP
and SBLF (457) (457)
Sale of treasury stock to ES( (56€) (1,109 1,66¢ -
ESOP shares earned (7,105
shares 2 63 65
Stock based compensati 47 47
Stock options exercise 66 66
Common stock dividends
declared ($0.12 per sha (299) (299)
Balance, December 31, 201 $ 13,000 $ 30 $ 8,73C $ 24,61¢ $ (2,669 $ (1,039 $ (4,83) $ 37,84.

The accompanying notes are an integral parteottimsolidated financial statements.
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CON SOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

PATHFINDER BANCORP, INC.

Years Ended December &

(In thousands 2012 2011
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income 2,64t $ 2,32
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashdlirom operating activitie:
Provision for loan losse 82t 94C
Deferred income tax (benefit) exper (27€) 1,19:
Proceeds from sales of loe 21z -
Originations of loans he-for-sale (195) -
Realized (gains) losses on sales and redemptiol
Real estate acquired through foreclos (44) 50
Loans (17) -
Available-for-sale investment securiti (375) (79))
Depreciatior 781 728
Amortization of mortgage servicing rigr 7 27
Amortization of deferred loan cos 16C 16C
Earnings on bank owned life insurar (272) (229)
Realized gain on proceeds from bank owned liferarsce 37 -
Net amortization of premiums and discounts on itmesit securitie 1,05: 614
Stock based compensation and ESOP exg 19z 112
Net change in accrued interest receiv: (32 24
Pension plan contributic (2,600 -
Net change in other assets and liabili 73E (1,147
Net cash flows from operating activities 2,76¢ 4,01(
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of interest earning time depc - (2,000
Purchase of investment securities avail-for-sale (50,66:) (60,647)
(Purchases) redemptions of Federal Home Loan Back (407) 60€
Proceeds from maturities and principal reductidr
investment securities availa-for-sale 26,34¢ 32,17:
Proceeds from sales and redemption:
Available-for-sale investment securiti 16,51: 15,09:
Real estate acquired through foreclos 47C 75C
Premises and equipme - 5
Purchase of bank owned life insurai - (800)
Proceeds from bank owned life insural 20z -
Net change in loar (29,819 (20,985
Purchase of premises and equipn (192) (1,999
Net cash flows from investing activities (37,545 (37,795
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in demand deposits, NOW accounts, ssaogpunts
money management deposit accounts, MMDA account&scrow deposit 15,70( 42,41(
Net change in time deposits and brokered dep 9,97¢ (2,789
Net change in shc-term borrowings 9,00( (13,000
Payments on lor-term borrowings (4,110 (6,000
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 4,00( 4,07¢
Proceeds from sale of preferred st- SBLF - 13,00(
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Proceeds from exercise of stock optis 5 66
Redemption of preferred sto- CPP - (6,777)
Purchase of CPP warrants from the US Trea (537 -
Cash dividends paid to preferred sharehc- SBLF and CPI (507) (457)
Cash dividends paid to common shareholi (307) (299)
Net cash flows from financing activities 33,22¢ 30,24(
Change in cash and cash equivalen (1,559 (3,545
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 10,21¢ 13,76
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peric 8,66¢ 10,21¢
CASH PAID DURING THE PERIOD FOR:
Interest 3,91: 4,344
Income taxe: 40¢ 1,507
NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITY
Real Estate acquired in exchange for Ic 357 1,08:
= 25¢

Repossessed assets acquired in exchange for

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statemer
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statemasmiside the accounts of Pathfinder Bancorp, Ince (tCompany”)and its wholly owned subsidiary, Pathfinder Barthe
“Bank”). The Bank has four wholly owned operating subsid@rPathfinder Commercial Bank, Pathfinder Risk &gment, Inc., Pathfinder REIT, Inc. and Whispe ks
Development Corp. All significant intemempany accounts and activity have been eliminatednsolidation. The Company has seven officeatkd in Oswego County and a
branch, which opened for business on February 11 20 northern Onondaga County. The Company imamily engaged in the business of attracting depdsdm the gener
public in the Company’s market area, and invessinch deposits, together with other sources of fuindsans secured by one-fodr family residential real estate, commercial
estate, business assets and in investment sesuritie

Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C., (the “Holding Compang’)mutual holding company whose activity is not urdd in the accompanying consolidated financigkestants, owr
approximately 60.5% of the outstanding common stifcke Company.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of ConsolidateBinancial Statements

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtconformity with accounting principles geneyadiccepted in the United States of America requinesagement to ma
estimates and assumptions that affect the reparteslints of assets and liabilities and disclosureootingent assets and liabilities at the datéheffinancial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngepiorting period. Actual results could differrfrahose estimates. Management has identifiedItbwance for loan losse
deferred income taxes, pension obligations, théuatian of goodwill for impairment and the evalwatiof investment securities for other than temporepairment to be tt
accounting areas that require the most subjectidecamplex judgments, and as such, could be thé¢ snbgect to revision as new information becomeslable.

The Company is subject to the regulations of varigovernmental agencies. The Company also undepm@dic examinations by the regulatory agenesigish may subject it 1
further changes with respect to asset valuatiomguats of required loss allowances, and opera@sgyictions resulting from the regulators' judgnsebased on informatic
available to them at the time of their examinations

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Company'’s activities are with custormecsted primarily in Oswego and Onondaga courtfddew York State. A large portion of the Companpbrtfolio is centere
in residential and commercial real estate. The @om closely monitors real estate collateral valaed requires additional reviews of commercial resthte appraisals by
qualified third party for commercial real estatars in excess of $400,000. Note 4 discusses s tyf securities that the Company invests in.eNotliscusses the types
lending that the Company engages in. The Compaag dot have any significant concentrations toaveyindustry or customer.

Advertising

The Company follows the policy of charging the sasitadvertising to expense as incurred.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handjrasndue from banks and interest-bearing depasith original maturity of three months or less).
Investment Securities

The Company classifies investment securities adade-for-sale. Available-fosale securities are reported at fair value, withumeealized gains and losses reflected as a 4e
component of shareholders’ equity, net of the @pplie income tax effect. None of the Company’s stment securities have been classified as tradihgld-to-maturity.

Gains or losses on investment security transactiomdased on the amortized cost of the specifiorges sold. Premiums and discounts on secaritie amortized and accre
into income using the interest method over thegoet® maturity.

Note 4 to the consolidated financial statementldes additional information about the Comg’s accounting policies with respect to the impainingf investment securities.
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Federal law requires a member institution of thddfal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB"$ystem to hold stock of its district FHLB accorditaga predetermined formula. The stoc
carried at cost.

Mortgage Loans Held-for-Sale

Mortgage loans held-for-sale are carried at theetoof cost or fair value. Fair value is determiriedhe aggregate. There were no loans heldsdbe-or forward commitmer
outstanding as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets, including saleahk and loan participations, are accounted feabes when control over the assets has been sareshdControl over transfen
assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) thts &ss/e been isolated from the Company, (2) #iesteree obtains the right (free of conditions ttatstrain it from takin
advantage of that right) to pledge or exchangertmesferred assets, and (3) the Company does riataimaeffective control over the transferred asshtough an agreement
repurchase them before their maturity.

Loans

The Company grants mortgage, commercial, municgrad, consumer loans to customers. Loans that mamarg has the intent and ability to hold for theeéeeable future or ur
maturity or pay-off are stated at their outstandingaid principal balances, less the allowancédan losses plus net deferred loan originationscoie ability of the Company’
debtors to honor their contracts is dependent tipemeal estate and general economic conditiotiseimarket area. Interest income is generallygeieed when income is earr
using the interest method. Nonrefundable loan feesived and related direct origination costs irediare deferred and amortized over the life ofidae using the interest meth
resulting in a constant effective yield over tharlderm. Deferred fees are recognized into incontkedeferred costs are charged to income immediagiyn prepayment of t
related loan.
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The loans receivable portfolio is segmented ingidential mortgage, commercial and consumer lodie residential mortgage segment consists of otiedr family firstlien
residential mortgages and construction loans. Ceroial loans consist of the following classes: resfate, other commercial and industrial, linesciedit and municipi
loans. Consumer loans include both home equigslof credit and loans with junior liens and otb@msumer loans.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents managé&srestimate of losses inherent in the loan portfati@f the date of the statement of condition &mirecorded as a reductior
loans. The allowance is increased by the provisanoan losses, and decreased by chafg-net of recoveries. Loans deemed to be uecitile are charged against
allowance for loan losses, and subsequent recayefiany, are credited to the allowance. Allpart, of the principal balance of loans receivabte charged off to the allowar
as soon as it is determined that the repaymeni,afrgpart, of the principal balance is highly ikely. Non+esidential consumer loans are generally chargedmfater than 12
days past due on a contractual basis, unless pieewuollection efforts are providing results. Gamer loans may be charged off earlier in the esEbankruptcy, or if there is
amount that is deemed uncollectible. No portiotthef allowance for loan losses is restricted to iadwidual loan and the entire allowance is aJa#ato absorb any and all Ic
losses.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained awvel leonsidered adequate to provide for lossescduatbe reasonably anticipated. Management perfarqerterly evaluation
the adequacy of the allowance. The allowancesgedan the Comparg/’past loan loss experience, known and inherekd nisthe portfolio, adverse situations that mefgctfthe
borrowers ability to repay, the estimated value of any ulyileg collateral, composition of the loan portfmlicurrent economic conditions and other relevactdrs. Thi
evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requiregterial estimates that may be susceptible taf&ignt revision as more information becomes aldda

The allowance consists of specific, general andlargted components. The specific component rel&teloans that are classified as impaired. Fandothat are classifi
impaired, an allowance is established when theodisted cash flows or collateral value of the impdiloan are lower than the carrying value of thahl

The general component covers pools of loans, by tass, not considered impaired, smaller balameeogenous loans, such as residential real estatee kequity and oth
consumer loans. These pools of loans are evaldatddss exposure first based on historical leges for each of these categories of loans. The eé&net chargeffs to loar
outstandings within each product segment, overntibst recent eight quarters, lagged by one quaater,used to generate the historical loss ratesdtition, qualitative ¢
environmental factors are added to the historwss kates in arriving at the total allowance fanldoss need. These factors include:

Lending policies and procedures, including undermgistandards and collection, che-off and recovery practice
National, regional and local economic and busiesslitions

Nature and volume of the portfol

Experience, ability and depth of the lending managye and stai

Volume and severity of past due, classified anc-accrual loan:

Each factor is assigned a value to reflect imprgystable or declining conditions based on managémeéest judgment using relevant information avadadd the time of tt
evaluation. Adjustments to the factors are sugpobthrough documentation of changes in conditions inarrative accompanying the allowance for lazss lanalysis ai
calculation.
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An unallocated component is maintained to coveertamties that could affect managemsmstimate of probable losses. The unallocatepooemnt of the allowance reflects
margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying@asptions used in the methodologies for estimatjperific and general losses in the portfolio andegally comprises less th
10% of the total allowance for loan loss.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuinéormation and events, it is probable that tleenpany will be unable to collect the scheduled payts of principal or intere
when due according to the contractual terms oldha agreement. Factors considered by managemeletérmining impairment include payment statufiataral value and tt
probability of collecting scheduled principal amdeirest payments when due. Loans that experiesggnificant payment delays and payment shorttgiserally are not classifi
as impaired. Management determines the signifeafigayment delays and shortfalls on a dasease basis, taking into consideration all of dlleumstances surrounding
loan and the borrower, including the length andeeafor the delay, the borrowsrprior payment record and the amount of shorifatkelation to what is owed. Impairmen
measured by either the present value of the exppduatere cash flows discounted at the Isaeffective interest rate or the fair value of tirelerlying collateral if the loan
collateral dependent.

An allowance for loan loss is established for apaired loan if its carrying value exceeds its eated fair value. The estimated fair values of wut&lly all of the Company’
impaired loans are measured based on the estirfeateclue of the loan’s collateral. For loanswed by real estate, estimated fair values areméted primarily through third-
party appraisals. When a real estate securedbleesmes impaired, a decision is made regardinghehein updated certified appraisal of the reatestanecessary. This decis
is based on various considerations, including geed the most recent appraisal, the loanghe ratio based on the original appraisal, aedctindition of the property. Apprais
values are discounted to arrive at the estimatiidgerice of the collateral, which is consideredbe the estimated fair value. The discounts ialslode estimated costs to sell
property.

For commercial and industrial loans secured by me@h-estate collateral, such as accounts receivaivlentory and equipment, estimated fair valuesdatermined based on
borrowers financial statements, inventory reports, accoeo¢ivable agings or equipment appraisals or imsidndications of value from these sources anergdly discounte
based on the age of the financial information erghality of the assets.

Large groups of homogeneous loans are collectigegluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Compaloes not separately identify individual residdmtirtgage loans le
than $300,000, home equity and other consumer [fmanmpairment disclosures, unless such loanseleted to borrowers with impaired commercial loanshey are the subje
to a troubled debt restructuring agreement forehwish a carrying value in excess of $100,000.

Loans whose terms are modified are classified asbted debt restructurings if the Company granthsorrowers concessions and it is deemed thaetbosrowers al
experiencing financial difficulty. Concessions mped under a troubled debt restructuring geneiatifude but are not limited to a temporary reduttio the interest rate or
extension of a loas’stated maturity date. Loans classified as texliblebt restructurings with a carrying value inessscof $100,000 are designated as impaired andadedla
discussed above.

The allowance calculation methodology includestiertsegregation of loan classes into risk ratinggmies. The borrowes’overall financial condition, repayment sour

guarantors and value of the collateral, if appratgri are evaluated not less then annually for caxiaidoans or when credit deficiencies arise dnadns. Credit quality ris
ratings include regulatory classifications of spéaiention, substandard, doubtful and loss. See Bléor a description of these regulatory clasatfons.
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In addition, Federal regulatory agencies, as agial part of their examination process, periotiiaaview the Company'’s allowance for loan lossed may require the Company
to recognize additions to the allowance based ein fidgments about information available to therthe time of their examination, which may not loerently available to
management. Based on management’s comprehensilysiarof the loan portfolio, management believesdurrent level of the allowance for loan lossesdequate.

Income Recognition on Impaired and Non-accrual Loag

For all classes of loans receivable, the accruahtefest is discontinued when the contractual paynof principal or interest has become 90 day$ géas or management |
serious doubts about further collectibility of mipal or interest, even though the loan may beeruly performing. A loan may remain on accruatugaf it is in the process
collection and is either guaranteed or well secuithen a loan is placed on non-accrual statusaidripterest is reversed and charged to interesinie. Interest received on non-
accrual loans, including impaired loans, generslligither applied against principal or reportedrésrest income, according to managenmepidgment as to the collectibility
principal. Generally, loans are restored to adcstetus when the obligation is brought curren parformed in accordance with the contractual $efon a reasonable period
time and the ultimate collectibility of the totabrtractual principal and interest is no longer oulot. Nonaccrual troubled debt restructurings are restooedctrual status
principal and interest payments, under the modiéehs, are current for six consecutive monthg afiedification.

For non-accrual loans, when future collectabilifyttee recorded loan balance is expected, intenestnie may be recognized on a cash basis. In tleevdasre a noccrual loa
had been partially charged off, recognition of iegt on a cash basis is limited to that which wdnade been recognized on the recorded loan baktribe contractual interest re
Cash interest receipts in excess of that amourearmrded as recoveries to the allowance for loasds until prior charge-offs have been fully reced.

Off-Balance Sheet Credit Related Financial Instrumats

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyehsared into commitments to extend credit, inclgdiommitments under standby letters of creditchSinancial instrumen
are recorded when they are funded.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, leasnatated depreciation. Depreciation is computedairaightine basis over the estimated useful lives of tlated asse!
ranging up to 40 years for premises and 10 yearsdoipment. Maintenance and repairs are chargegdrating expenses as incurred. The asset costcaumulated depreciati
are removed from the accounts for assets soldicedeand any resulting gain or loss is includethia determination of income.

Foreclosed Real Estate

Properties acquired through foreclosure, or by dediu of foreclosure, are recorded at their faatue less estimated costs to sell. Fair valugpgally determined based
evaluations by third parties. Costs incurred inreztion with preparing the foreclosed real edmtelisposition are capitalized to the extent thaly enhance the overall fair va
of the property. Any write-downs on the assdtir value less costs to sell at the date of aden are charged to the allowance for loan lessBubsequent write downs
expenses of foreclosed real estate are includad/akiation allowance and recorded in nonintergsémse.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acoquistiver the fair value of the net assets acquifedodwill is not amortized, but is evaluated antyufar impairment.
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Mortgage Servicing Rights

Originated mortgage servicing rights are recordetieir fair value at the time of transfer of thedated loans and are amortized in proportion toausd the period of estimated
servicing income or loss. The carrying value o tiriginated mortgage servicing rights is perioijcavaluated for impairment or between annual ezibns under certe
circumstances.

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation costs related to share-based paymesattions are recognized based on the grantalatealue of the stockased compensation issued. Compensation co:
recognized over the period that an employee previgevice in exchange for the award.

Retirement Benefits

The Company has a naontributory defined benefit pension plan that cedesubstantially all employees. On May 14, 2048 ,Gompany informed its employees of its decisa
freeze participation and benefit accruals underplae, primarily to reduce some of the volatility @éarnings that can accompany the maintenancedefimed benefit plan. TI
freeze became effective June 30, 2012. Compensagimed by employees up to June 30, 2012 is vsgulifposes of calculating benefits under the platnthere will be no futu
benefit accruals after this date. Participantsfaiune 30, 2012 will continue to earn vesting itredth respect to their frozen accrued benefitshes continue to work. Pensi
expense under these plans is charged to currerdtapes and consists of several components of ergsipn cost based on various actuarial assumptigesding future experien
under the plans.

Gains and losses, prior service costs and crealitd, any remaining transition amounts that haveyettbeen recognized through net periodic beneft eve recognized
accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of factsf until they are amortized as a componenebperiodic cost. Plan assets and obligationsre@sured as of the Company’
statement of condition date.

The Company has unfunded deferred compensatios@pulemental executive retirement plans for sefecterent and former employees and officers thavige benefits thi
cannot be paid from a qualified retirement plan thuénternal Revenue Code restrictions. These pdesonqualified under the Internal Revenue Cadd, assets used to fu
benefit payments are not segregated from othetsagbthe Company, therefore, in general, a padiai's or beneficiary's claim to benefits undes¢hglans is as a general credi

The Company sponsors an Employee Stock Ownersaip(FESOP”)covering substantially all full time employees. eT¢ost of shares issued to the ESOP but not coethiit b
released to the participants is presented in thedalmated statement of condition as a reductioshafeholders2quity. ESOP shares are released to the partisipaoportionatel
as the loan is repaid. The Company records ES@pensation expense based on the shares commitbedredeased and allocated to the particigaatcounts multiplied by t
average share price of the Company'’s stock ovepé¢hied. Dividends related to unallocated sharesecorded as compensation expense.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are recorded on the statement of cimmdds assets and liabilities measured at thairvilue. The accounting for increases and decreast® value of derivativi
depends upon the use of derivatives and whethetdtieatives qualify for hedge accounting. The @any currently has one interest rate swap, whishble@n determined to b
cash flow hedge. The fair value of cash-flow hadghstruments (“Cash Flow Hedge%)recorded in either other assets or other ligdsli On an ongoing basis, the stateme
condition is adjusted to reflect the then currat ¥alue of the Cash Flow Hedge. The related gairiesses are reported in other comprehensiveredéoss) and are subseque
reclassified into earnings, as a yield adjustmerthé same period in which the related interesherhedged item (primarily a varialiate debt obligation) affect earnings. To
extent that the Cash Flow Hedge is not effective,imeffective portion of the Cash Flow Hedge imiedliately recognized as interest expense.
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Income Taxes

Provisions for income taxes are based on taxesgmilyrpayable or refundable and deferred incomedan temporary differences between the tax bésissets and liabilities a
their reported amounts in the consolidated findrat&tements. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiegeported in the consolidated financial statematturrently enacted income
rates applicable to the period in which the defétex assets and liabilities are expected to Hezesbor settled.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share are computed ligirtdivnet income, after preferred stock dividendd areferred stock discount accretion, by the wefaverage number
common shares outstanding throughout each yeduteBiearnings per share gives effect to weightedame shares that would be outstanding assuménexércise of issued stc
options and warrants using the treasury stock ndetlunallocated shares of the CompaniZSOP plan are not included when computing easnpeg share until they ¢
committed to be released.

Comprehensive Income (LosS)

Accounting principles generally require that redagd revenue, expenses, gains and losses be iddluget income. Although certain changes in asaetl liabilities are report
as a separate component of the equity sectioreasttitement of condition, such items, along withim@me, are components of comprehensive income.

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income sgmts the sum of these items, with the exceptionetfincome, as of the balance sheet date angbiesented in the tat
below.

(In thousands As of December 3!

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss By Componen 201z 2011 201(C
Unrealized loss for pension and other postretirérobligations $ (4,609 $ (6,029 $ (60%)
Tax effect 1,84 2,417 242
Net unrealized loss for pension and other posém@ignt obligation (2,765) (3,617%) (36%)
Unrealized loss on financial derivative instrumeiged in cash flow hedging relationsh (29%) (200) (110
Tax effect 78 80 44
Net unrealized loss on financial derivative instams used in cash flow hedging relationsl (117) (120) (66)
Unrealized gains on availal-for-sale securitie 2,60¢ 1,78¢ (141)
Tax effect (1,042 (71€) 56
Net unrealized gains on availa-for-sale securitie 1,564 1,07: (85)
Accumulated other comprehensive | $ (1,31f) $ (2,669 $ (519
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2011 consolidated finarstetements have been reclassified to conform teuhent year presentation. These reclassificatitl no effect on net inco
as previously reported.
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NOTE 2: NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

No material accounting pronouncements applicabtegédCompany

NOTE 3: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividiegincome available to common shareholders bywbighted average number of common shares outsigtdliring th
period. Net income available to common sharehslidenet income less the total of preferred divitbedeclared and the amortization of the preferrecksdiscount value under 1
CPP program during 2011. Diluted earnings pereshranlude the potential dilutive effect that cookttur upon the assumed exercise of issued stoakngpnd the warrants isst
to the U.S. Treasury using the treasury stock neethdnallocated common shares held by the ESORari@cluded in the weighteaverage number of common shares outstal
for purposes of calculating earnings per commoneshatil they are committed to be released to pkaicipants.

The following table sets forth the calculation ek and diluted earnings per share:

Years Endel
December 31
(In thousands, except per share d¢ 201z 2011
Basic Earnings Per Common Sh
Net income available to common shareholc $ 2,19¢ $ 1,32(
Weighted average common shares outstar 2,504 2,49(
Basic earnings per common sh $ 08¢ $ 0.5¢
Diluted Earnings Per Common Shi
Net income available to common shareholc $ 2,19¢ % 1,32(
Weighted average common shares outstar 2,50¢ 2,49(
Effect of assumed exercise of stock opti 8 3
Effect of assumed exercise of stock warr: 4 43
Diluted weighted average common shares outstar 2,51¢ 2,53¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 087 $ 0.52
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NOTE 4: INVESTMENT SECURITIES — AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

The amortized cost and estimated fair value ofstment securities are summarized as follows:

December 31, 201

Gros:t Gros:t Estimates
Amortizec Unrealize( Unrealize( Fair
(In thousands Cos Gains Losse Value
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 6,17¢ 16 $ @8 $ 6,18:%
State and political subdivisiol 26,41 1,06t W) 27,47
Corporate 22,94: 46€ (404) 23,00¢
Residential mortga-backed- US agency 47,11 1,13¢ Q) 48,25
Residential mortga-backec- private labe 29€ 9 - 30E
Total 102,93¢ 2,691 (420) 105,21¢
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 1,28¢ 5 - 1,291
Large cap equity fun 90t 17€ - 1,081
Other mutual fund 18z 13€ - 31¢
Common stocl- financial services industi 42C 12 - 432
Total 2,79¢ 32¢ - 3,12:¢
Total investment securitie $ 105,73¢ 3,02¢ $ (4200 $ 108,33¢
December 31, 201
Gros: Gros: Estimates
Amortizec Unrealize« Unrealize« Fair
(In thousands Cos Gain: Losse Value
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 5,02¢ 48 % - % 5,07
State and political subdivisiol 19,50¢ 797 (0] 20,30+
Corporate 21,08¢ 38 (690 20,43«
Residential mortga-backec- US agency 49,66¢ 1,39¢ (4) 51,05¢
Residential mortga-backed- private labe 50% 14 - 51¢
Total 95,78¢ 2,29 (69E) 97,38t
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 1,28¢ 12 - 1,29¢
Large cap equity fun 90t 11¢ - 1,02¢
Other mutual fund 18z 60 - 245
Common stocl- financial services indust 443 2 (1) 444
Total 2,81 193 (1) 3,00¢
Total investment securitie $ 98,60¢ 2,48t % (69€) $ 100,39!
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of delEstments at December 31, 2012 by contractuliniaare shown below. Expected maturities mayedifrom contractu:
maturities because borrowers may have the rigbaliar prepay obligations with or without penadtie

Amortizec Estimate:
Cos Fair Value

(In thousands
Due in one year or le: $ 7,901 $ 7,94
Due after one year through five ye 21,527 21,99¢
Due after five years through ten ye 8,40t 8,79(
Due after ten yeal 17,69: 17,93(
Mortgagebacked securitie 47,40¢ 48,55¢
Totals $ 102,93¢ $ 105,21¢

The Company’s investment securities’ gross unredllpsses and fair value, aggregated by investozagory and length of time that individual sedesithave been in a
continuous unrealized loss position, is as follows:

December 31, 201

Less than Twelve Montt Twelve Months or Mort Total

Number of Number of Number of

Individual Unrealized Fair Individual Unrealizec Fair Individual Unrealized Fair

Securities Losses Value Securities Losses Value Securities Losses Value
(Dollars in thousands
US Treasury, agencies a
GSE's 1 $ B % 992 -8 - % - 1 3 B $ 992
State and political
subdivisions 8 (@) 2,00¢ - - - 8 (@) 2,00¢
Corporate 2 (19 974 2 (390 1,58( 4 (404 2,55¢
Residential mortgagkacke(
- US agenc 2 (1) 1,411 - - - 2 (1) 1,411
Totals 13 $ 30) $ 5,38¢ 2 $ (390 $ 1,58( 15 $ (4200 $ 6,96¢

December 31, 201

Less than Twelve Montt Twelve Months or Mort Total

Number of Number of Number of

Individual Unrealized Fair Individual Unrealizec Fair Individual Unrealized Fair

Securities Losses Value Securities Losses Value Securities Losses Value
(Dollars in thousands
State and political
subdivisions 1 3 @ $ 412 - % - 8 - 1 $ @ $ 412
Corporate 19 (131) 13,48¢ 2 (559 1,41( 21 (690) 14,89¢
Residential mortga-backe(
- US agenc) 2 (4) 1,89¢ - - - 2 (4) 1,89¢
Common stock-financial
services industr - - - 1 (1) 3 1 (1) 3
Totals 22 3 (136) $ 15,79: 3 $ (560 $ 1,41% 25 $ (6960 $ 17,21(

The Company conducts a formal review of investnseurities on a quarterly basis for the presenathafr-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI"'he Company assesses whe
OTTI is present when the fair value of a debt siégis less than its amortized cost basis at thestent of condition date. Under these circumssn©TTI is considered to he
occurred (1) if we intend to sell the security; {2}t is “more likely than not'we will be required to sell the security beforeawery of its amortized cost basis; or (3) the pmé
value of expected cash flows is not anticipateteaufficient to recover the entire amortized dizgis. The guidance requires that creelttted OTTI is recognized in earnil
while non-credit-related OTTI on securities not esfed to be sold is recognized in other comprekenisicome (“OCI”). Non-creditelated OTTI is based on other fact
including illiquidity and changes in the generakest rate environment. Presentation of OTTI aslenin the consolidated statement of income orossgrasis, including both 1
portion recognized in earnings as well as the pontecorded in OCI. The gross OTTI would then fised by the amount of non-creditated OTTI, showing the net as the im|
on earnings.
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The Company'’s investment securities portfolio iles two corporate securities representing trusepesl issuances from large money center finamegitutions. The securities
have been in an unrealized loss position for muoae L2 months. The securities are both floatite mates that adjust quarterly to LIBOR (“Londotehibank Offered

Rate”). These securities are reflecting a netalized loss due to current similar offerings beimigginated at higher spreads to LIBOR, as the margently demands a greater
pricing premium for the associated risk. Managenhastperformed a detailed credit analysis on tleriying companies and has concluded that neiisereiis credit

impaired. Due to the fact that each security gsaimately 15 years until final maturity, and rmgement has determined that there is no relatelit argairment, the associat
pricing risk is managed similar to long-term, loiglgding, 15 and 30-year fixed rate residential mages carried in the Company’s loan portfolio. Tikk is managed through the
Company’s extensive interest rate risk managenmaepures. The Company expects the present vakipected cash flows will be sufficient to recotlee amortized cost
basis. Thus, the securities are not deemed tohee-than-temporarily impaired.

Management does not believe any individual unredlipss in other securities within the portfoliooddDecember 31, 2012 represents OTTI. All relatecdurities are rated Bae
better by Moodys with the exception of the two corporate secigitieted above. The unrealized losses in the fiortioe primarily attributable to changes in insreates. Tt
Company does not intend to sell these securiti@sisnit more likely than not that the Company Wi required to sell these securities prior torfw®very of the amortized cost.

In determining whether OTTI has occurred for eqsitgurities, the Company considers the applicalofs described above and the length of time diuéyesecuritys fair value
has been below the carrying amount. Managementésmined that we have the intent and abilityetain the equity securities for a sufficient permfdtime to allow fo
recovery. All of the Company’s equity securitiesl feafair value greater than the book value at Déegr@1, 2012.

The following table presents a roll-forward of gmmount related to credit losses recognized in egsnior the years ended December 31:

(In thousands 2012 2011
Beginning balanc- January ! $ - 8 87t
Reductions for securities sc - (875)
Ending balanc- December 3: $ - 3 =

The above credit losses were related to one sgd¢hét was sold at a small gain during the periodieel December 31, 2011.

Gross realized gains (losses) on sales and redmmspif securities for the years ended Decembere8tietailed below:

(In thousands 201z 2011
Realized gain $ 397 % 79€
Realized losse (22 5)

$ 37t $ 791

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 risesuwith a fair value of $46.0 million and $43udillion, respectively, were pledged to collatezelicertain municip
deposit relationships. As of the same dates, &euwith a fair value of $37.8 million and $2T@llion were pledged against certain borrowing agements. Total borrowings
$5.0 million were outstanding relating to the abawged collateralized borrowing arrangements dmdi December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.
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Management has reviewed its loan and mortgage-dasseurities portfolios and determined that, toliést of its knowledge, little or no exposure extstsub-prime or other high-
risk residential mortgages. The Company is ndhépractice of investing in, or originating, thégees of investments or loans.

NOTE 5: LOANS

Major classifications of loans are as follows:

December 3: December 3:

(In thousands 2012 2011
Residential mortgage loans

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 173,95 % 158,38

Constructior 2,65¢ 3,93¢
Total residential mortgage loa 176,61( 162,31¢
Commercial loans

Real estat: 82,32¢ 73,42(

Lines of credit 13,74¢ 13,79:

Other commercial and industri 31,471 22,70:

Municipal 3,58¢ 3,61¢
Total commercial loan 131,14: 113,53:
Consumer loan:

Home equity and junior lier 22,07 24,17

Other consume 3,46¢ 4,14(
Total consumer loar 25,54 28,31:
Total loans 333,29¢ 304,16:

Net deferred loan cos 454 58¢

Less allowance for loan loss (4,507) (3,980
Loans receivable, ni $ 329,24 $ 300,77(

The Company originates residential mortgage, coroisesind consumer loans largely to customers througOswego, Onondaga, Jefferson, and Oneida esurtithough the
Company has a diversified loan portfolio, a subtshportion of its borrowers’ abilities to hondnetir contracts is dependent upon the counties’ eynpént and economic
conditions.

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011dewsal mortgage loans with a carrying value of $58illion and $65.8 million, respectively, haveebepledged by the
Company to the Federal Home Loan Bank of New YtFKILBNY”) under a blanket collateral agreement &zgre the Company’s line of credit and term bornmsi

Loan Origination / Risk Manageme
The Company has lending policies and procedurgdaice that are designed to maximize loan incomhbimvéin acceptable level of risk. Management aedBbard of Directol
reviews and approves these policies and procedurasregular basis. A reporting system supplentbetseview process by frequently providing managigmwvith reports relate

to loan production, loan quality, loan delinquescieonperforming and potential problem loans. Diversifion in the loan portfolio is a means of managisg associated wi
fluctuations in economic conditions.
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Risk Characteristics of Portfolio Segments
Each portfolio segment generally carries its owigue risk characteristics.

The residential mortgage loan segment is impacyegeberal economic conditions, unemployment rateébe Banks service area, real estate values and the forexqrelctation ¢
improvement or deterioration in economic conditions

The commercial loan segment is impacted by geremahomic conditions but, more specifically, theusisly segment in which each borrower participatdsiqgue competitiv
changes within a borrower’s specific industry, epgraphic location could cause significant charigeke borrowers revenue stream, and therefore, impact its altdityepay it
obligations. Commercial real estate is also suhfegeneral economic conditions but changes withis segment typically lag changes seen withincttresumer and commerc
segment. Included within this portfolio are bothiner occupied real estate, in which the borroweupies the majority of the real estate property @ooh which the majority
the sources of repayment of the obligation is ddpath upon, and noawner occupied real estate, in which several tenaomprise the repayment source for this port
segment. The composition and competitive posibibtine tenant structure may cause adverse changke repayment of debt obligations for the mwmer occupied class witt
this segment.

The consumer loan segment is impacted by geneceloetic conditions, unemployment rates in the Comfmservice area, and the forward expectation of avgment c
deterioration in economic conditions.

Real estate loans, including residential mortgagemymercial real estate loans and home equity, aemB4% of the portfolio in 2012, approximately 186s than the sar
composition in 2011. Loans secured by real egtateide the best collateral protection and thusifitantly reduce the inherent risk in the portfoli

Management has reviewed its loan portfolio andrd@teed that, to the best of its knowledge, littteno exposure exists to sub-prime or other higkresidential mortgages. 1
Company is not in the practice of originating thggees of loans.

Description of Credit Quality Indicators
The Company utilizes an eight tier risk rating systto evaluate the quality of its loan portfolicoans that are risk rated “1” through “4” are colesed “Pass’loans. h
accordance with regulatory guidelines, loans ré&dhrough “8” are termed “criticized” loans anddns rated “6” through “8” are termed “classifiddans. A description of tl
Company'’s credit quality indicators follows.
For Commercial Loans
1. Prime: A loan that is fully secured by properly margineathfinder Bank deposit account(s) or an oblgatf the US Government. It may also be unsecifréds
supported by a very strong financial condition aindthe case of a commercial loan, excellent mamege. There exists an unquestioned ability to yepa loan il
accordance with its term
2. Strong: Desirable relationship of somewhat less statham Prime grade. Possesses a sound documentsaneqt source, and back up, which will allow repawi

within the terms of the loan. Individual loans ked by solid assets, character and integrity. ibibf individual or company management is good amell
established. Probability of serious financial det@tion is unlikely.
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3. Satisfactory. Stable financial condition with cash flow suféiot for debt service coverage. Satisfactory loafreverage strength having some deficiency orenalbility
to changing economic or industry conditions butfgrening as agreed with documented evidence of neeay capacity. May be unsecured loans to borrowstts
satisfactory credit and financial strength. Satigfry provisions for management succession aeganslary source of repayment exi

4. Satisfactory Watch A four is not a criticized or classified credithese credits do not display the characteristica afiticized asset as defined by the regulé
definitions. A credit is given a Satisfactory Watdbsignation if there are matters or trends obsedeserving attention somewhat beyond normal mongo Borrowing
obligations may be handled according to agreemahttbuld be adversely impacted by developing facgrch as industry conditions, operating probléitigation
pending of a significant nature or declining calal quality and adequacy.

5. Special Mention A warning risk grade that portrays one or moeaknesses that may be tolerated in the short t&sgets in this category are currently protectetdaine
potentially weak. This loan would not normally beoked as a new credit, but may have redeemingacteaistics persuading the Bank to continue workirit the
borrower. Loans accorded this classification hpotential weaknesses which may, if not checkedoorected, weaken the compasyassets, inadequately protect
Bank's position or effect the orderly, scheduled redurctf the debt at some future tin

6. Substandard The relationship is inadequately protected by turrent net worth and cash flow capacity of tloerdwer, guarantor/endorser, or of the colla
pledged. Assets have a wdkfined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardizertiegly liquidation of the debt. The relationshlspows deteriorating trends or ot
deficient areas. The loan may be m@rforming and expected to remain so for the faabkke future. Relationship balances may be adelyus¢cured by asset val
however a deteriorated financial condition may ssitate collateral liquidation to effect repaymeAtrelationship with an unacceptable financial dition requiring
excessive attention of the officer due to the reatfrthe credit risk or lack of borrower cooperatidAll loans on noraccrual or in a bankruptcy are not graded higher
Substandarc

7. Doubtful : The relationship has all the weaknesses inhénemtcredit graded 5 with the added characteribtit the weaknesses make collection on the bésisrently
existing facts, conditions and value, highly questble or improbable. The possibility of some lssextremely high, however its classification asaaticipated loss
deferred until a more exact determination of thieetxof loss is determined. Loans in this categougt be on nc-accrual.

8. Loss: Loans are considered uncollectible and of sittth /alue that continuance as bankable assetstigvarranted. It is not practicable or desirablelefer writing of
this basically worthless asset even though pagi@very may be possible in the futL

For Residential Mortgage and Consumer Loe
Residential mortgage and consumer loans are ass@fféass” rating unless the loan has demonstsitd of weakness as indicated by the ratings below
5. Special Mentior: All loans sixty days past due are classified $edention. The loan is not upgraded until it ieeen current for six consecutive mont

6. Substandar: All loans 90 days past due are classified Suldstah The loan is not upgraded until it has beereatifor six consecutive montt

Page 5¢




Table of Contents

Table of Contents
7. Doubtful : The relationship has all the weaknesses inhémemtcredit graded 5 with the added characteribtit the weaknesses make collection on the bésisrently
existing facts, conditions and value, highly quasiible or improbable. The possibility of some ligssxtremely high

The risk ratings for classified loans are evaluakeléast quarterly for commercial loans or wheeditrdeficiencies arise, such as delinquent logmeats, for commercial,
residential mortgage or consumer loans. See fudiBeussion of risk ratings in Note 1.
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The following table presents the segments and edasé the loan portfolio summarized by the aggreegstss rating and the criticized and classifiethgatof special mentio
substandard and doubtful within the Company's ivatlerisk rating system:

As of December 31, 201

Specia

(In thousands Pas Mentior Substandai Doubtful Total
Residential mortgage loar

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 166,80: $ 1,32: % 5831 $ - 3% 173,95!

Constructior 2,65¢ - - - 2,65¢
Total residential mortgage loa 169,45t 1,32% 5,831 - 176,61(
Commercial loans

Real estat 76,71¢ 1,68¢ 3,92t - 82,32¢

Lines of credit 12,02¢ - 1,647 75 13,74¢

Other commercial and industri 29,70¢ 237 1,50¢ 35 31,471

Municipal 3,58¢ - - - 3,58¢
Total commercial loan 122,03t 1,922 7,072 11C 131,14:
Consumer loan:

Home equity and junior lier 20,07¢ 14¢& 1,801 49 22,07

Other consume 3,19¢ 132 111 26 3,46¢
Total consumer loar 23,27 27¢ 1,912 75 25,54
Total loans $ 314,77. $ 3,52: $ 14,81 $ 18t $ 333,29:

As of December 31, 201
Specia

(In thousands Pas Mentior Substandai Doubtful Total
Residential mortgage loar

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 153,04¢ % 1,05C $ 428 $ - % 158,38

Constructior 3,93¢ - - - 3,93¢
Total residential mortgage loa 156,98« 1,05( 4,28¢ - 162,31¢
Commercial loans

Real estat 69,731 212 3,471 - 73,42(

Lines of credit 12,57¢ 49 1,162 - 13,79:

Other commercial and industri 21,97¢ 89 591 43 22,70:

Municipal 3,61¢ - - - 3,61¢
Total commercial loan 107,91 35( 5,22¢ 43 113,53:
Consumer loan:

Home equity and junior lier 22,50( 162 1,45¢ 53 24,17

Other consume 3,927 61 122 34 4,14(C
Total consumer loar 26,42: 223 1,57¢ 87 28,31:
Total loans $ 291,31¢ $ 1,62 $ 11,08¢ $ 13C $ 304,16:

Management has reviewed its loan portfolio andrddteed that, to the best of its knowledge, no expesxists to sub-prime or other highk residential mortgages. 1
Company is not in the practice of originating thggees of loans.
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Nor-accrual and Past Due Loans

Loans are considered past due if the required ipahend interest payments have not been receivihvthirty days of the payment due date.
An age analysis of past due loans, exclusive afrdedl costs, segregated by class of loans wedlaw$:

As of December 31, 201

3C-59 Day: 6C-89 Day: 90 Day: Total Total Loan:

(In thousands Past Du Past Du and Ove Past Du Curren Receivabl
Residential mortgage loar

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 2,69t $ 1,161 $ 2,046 $ 590t $ 168,05( $ 173,95!

Constructior - - - - 2,65t 2,65t
Total residential mortgage loa 2,69¢ 1,161 2,04¢ 5,90¢ 170,70! 176,61(
Commercial loans

Real estat: 1,70¢ 1,83: 1,79¢ 5,33: 76,99¢ 82,32¢

Lines of credi 49€ 152 334 98¢ 12,76¢ 13,74¢

Other commercial and industri 1,27¢ 85 59¢ 1,96: 29,51t 31,477

Municipal - - - - 3,58¢ 3,58¢
Total commercial loan 3,481 2,071 2,72¢ 8,27¢ 122,86¢ 131,14:
Consumer loan

Home equity and junior lier 207 40E 73C 1,342 20,73 22,07

Other consume 26 42 46 114 3,35¢ 3,46¢
Total consumer loar 23Z 447 77€ 1,45¢€ 24,08¢ 25,54
Total loans $ 6,41: $ 367¢ $ 554¢ $ 1563¢ $ 317,65 $ 333,29:

As of December 31, 201
3C-59 Day: 6C-89 Day: 90 Day: Total Total Loan:

(In thousands Past Du Past Du and Ove Past Du Curren Receivabl
Residential mortgage loar

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 287C % 934 $ 1,42¢ $ 523: $ 153,15. $ 158,38

Constructior - - - - 3,93t 3,93t
Total residential mortgage loa 2,87( 934 1,42¢ 5,23. 157,08 162,31
Commercial loans

Real estat: 2,01¢ 4 1,62 3,642 69,77¢ 73,42(

Lines of credit 337 75 467 87¢ 12,91: 13,79:

Other commercial and industri 35€ 39z 504 1,25z 21,44¢ 22,70

Municipal - - - - 3,61¢ 3,61¢
Total commercial loan 2,70¢ 471 2,594 5,77 107,75t 113,53:
Consumer loan:

Home equity and junior lier 357 182 55C 1,08¢ 23,08: 24,17:

Other consume 55 2 15€ 213 3,927 4,14(
Total consumer loar 412 184 70€ 1,307 27,00¢ 28,31:
Total loans $ 599( $ 158¢ $ 4,72¢  $ 12300 $ 29185 $ 304,16:
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Year-end non-accrual loans, segregated by cldssof were as follows:

December 3. December 3:
(In thousands 2012 2011
Residential mortgage loar
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 2,046 $ 1,42¢
Constructior - -
2,04¢ 1,42¢
Commercial loans
Real estat 1,79¢ 1,62%
Lines of credi 334 467
Other commercial and industri 59¢ 504
Municipal - -
2,72¢ 2,59/
Consumer loan:
Home equity and junior lier 73C 55C
Other consume 46 15€
77¢€ 70€
Total nonaccrual loar $ 554¢ $ 4,72¢

There were no loans past due ninety days or matestilhaccruing interest at December 31, 20120112

The Company is required to disclose certain a@witelated to Troubled Debt Restructurings (“TDRits accordance with accounting guidance. Certaams have been
modified in a TDR where economic concessions haaenbgranted to a borrower who is experiencing, xpeeted to experience, financial difficulties. $heeconomic
concessions could include a reduction in the loderést rate, extension of payment terms, reduafoprincipal amortization, or other actions thiatvould not otherwise
consider for a new loan with similar risk charaisizs. The Company has determined that there %&re million of recorded investment in new TDRslie twelve month
period ended December 31, 2012. The following liggks the qualitative and quantitative informatimyloan class.

« Modifications made within the commercial real esta@n class included two loans with -modification and po-modification recorded investments of $564,000
$358,000, respectively. Economic concessions gdainicluded interest only periods, extended payreenis and a reduction in loan interest rate. Campany we
required to increase the reserve against theséoams by $211,000 which was a component of theigi@vfor loan losses in the third quarter of 2C

Modifications made within the home equity and juniens loan class included two loans with pre-rfiodtion and postnodification recorded investments wt
were unchanged at $279,000. Economic concessimargeg included interest only periods, extendedmeay terms and a reduction in loan interest rate
additional provision was not required as a resilbese modifications

« The first modification made within the other commial and industrial loan class included a consdiitteof three credit facilities into a single loawith a pre
modification and post-maodification recorded invesitnof $439,000 and $468,000, respectively. The-mpaslification recorded investment included late gea
accrued interest, and closing costs as a resuheofestructuring. Economic concessions granteltidied reduced principal amortization and an extdnaeymer
term. Managemerd’ review indicates adequate collateral coveragesupport of this loan. An additional provision wast required as a result of t
modification. The second modification made in tluan class resulted in a pre-modification and Jpesdlification recorded investment of $84,000 and,$08
respectively. Economic concessions granted induaie advance of additional monies without an aasediincrease in collateral and a 12 month intevesi
period. The Company was required to increasedberve against this loan by $90,000, which wasaponent of the provision for loan losses in thetioguarter c
2012.
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There were three loans under one relationship wivte in payment default within the twelve monthipe ended December 31, 2012 for TDRs modifiedrduthe preceding
twelve months. Two of these loans are Home Eqoiys$ in the amount of $306,000 and one loan isran@rcial Real Estate loan in the amount of $337,000

When the Company modifies a loan within a portfeégment, a potential impairment is analyzed eitlased on the present value of the expected foasgle flows discounted
at the interest rate of the original loan termsher fair value of the collateral less costs to. sHlit is determined that the value of the loaridss than its recorded investment,
then impairment is recognized as a component optbeision for loan losses, an associated increasige allowance for loan losses or as a chargéadfie allowance for loan

losses in the current period.
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Impaired Loans

The following table summarizes impaired loans infation by portfolio class:

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Unpaic Unpaic
Recorde Principa Relatel Recorde Principa Relate«
(In thousands Investmer Balanct Allowance Investmer Balanct Allowance
With no related allowance recorded:
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 844 $ 844 $ = 4z  $ 4z  $ =
Residential construction mortga - - - - - -
Commercial real esta 1,55¢ 1,571 - 96¢€ 1,09¢ -
Commercial lines of cred 35¢ 37C - 74 74 -
Other commercial and industri 657 801 - 257 257 -
Municipal - - - - - -
Home equity and junior lier 38C 38C - 31z 31z -
Other consume - - - - - -
With an allowance recorded:
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage 1,307 1,307 21t 85€ 85€ 14¢
Residential construction mortga - - - - - -
Commercial real esta 1,18 1,18 401 73t 73t 10¢
Commercial lines of cred - - - 37¢ 37¢ 17¢
Other commercial and industri 22t 23C 207 122 122 122
Municipal - - - - - -
Home equity and junior lier 15¢ 15¢ 95 13€ 13€ 61
Other consume 5 5 5 - - -
Total:
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage 2,151 2,151 21t 1,29¢ 1,29¢ 14¢
Residential construction mortga - - - - - -
Commercial real esta 2,73¢ 2,75: 401 1,70z 1,831 10¢
Commercial lines of cred 35¢ 37C - 452 452 17¢
Other commercial and industri 882 1,031 207 37¢ 37¢ 122
Municipal - - - - - -
Home equity and junior lier 538 538 95 44¢ 44¢ 61
Other consume 5 5 5 - - -
Totals $ 6,661 $ 6,84t $ 928 4280 $ 4,40¢  $ 61¢
The following table presents the average recordeestment in impaired loans for the years endeceidéer 31:
(In thousands 2012 2011
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 1,68 $ 1,15€
Commercial real esta 2,50¢ 2,447
Commercial lines of cred 417 207
Other commercial and industri 71¢ 71z
Home equity and junior lier 48¢ 554
Other consume 3 -
Total $ 581 $ 5,07¢
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The following table presents the interest inconu®gaized on impaired loans for the years ended mbee 31:

(In thousands 2012 2011
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage 10¢ 64
Commercial real esta 71 86
Commercial lines of cred 14 31
Other commercial and industri 29 12
Home equity and junior lier 10 9
Other consume 1 -

Total 23< 20z
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NOTE 6: ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for tt@syended December 31, 2012 and 2011 and informp&daining to the allocation of the allowance lfman losses and
balances of the allowance for loan losses and loaosivable based on individual and collective impant evaluation by loan portfolio class at theigmted dates are

summarized in the tables below. An allocation @oation of the allowance to a given portfolio datoes not limit the Company’s ability to absorbskes in another portfolio
class.

December 31, 201

1-4 family
first-lien Residentie Othel
residentie constructiol Commercig Commercig commercie
(In thousands mortgag mortgag: real estat lines of credi and industrie
Allowance for loan losses
Beginning Balanc $ 664 $ - % 1,346 $ 46:  $ 64¢
Charg-offs (10¢) - (142) - (89)
Recoverie! 75 - 14 50 -
Provisions 18C - 53C (73) 19C
Ending balanci $ 811 $ - $ 1,74¢  $ 44C  $ 75C
Ending balance: related to loe
individually evaluated for impairmel $ 21t $ - 3 401 $ - 3 207
Ending balance: related to loe
collectively evaluated for impairme $ 50€ $ - $ 1347 $ 44C  $ 54:
Loans receivables:
Ending balanc $ 173,95 $ 2,65 $ 82,32¢ $ 13,746  $ 31,47%
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmel $ 2,151 $ - $ 2,73t $ 35¢ % 882
Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairmel $ 171,80 $ 2,65 $ 79,59! $ 13,39C $ 30,59¢
Home equit Othel
Municipal and junior lien Consume Unallocate: Total
Allowance for loan losses
Beginning Balanc $ 2 % 501 $ 16z $ 19¢ % 3,98(
Charg-offs - 8 (163) - (508)
Recoverie: - 6 59 - 204
Provisions - (5) 10¢ (105) 82E
Ending balanc $ 2 $ 494 $ 166 $ 88 $ 4,501
Ending balance: related to loe
individually evaluated for impairmel $ - $ %5 $ 5 $ - $ 922
Ending balance: related to loe
collectively evaluated for impairme $ 2 $ 39¢ $ 162 $ 88 $ 3,57¢
Loans receivables:
Ending balanci $ 358t $ 22,071 $ 3,46¢ $ - $ 333,29:
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmel $ - 3 53t $ 5 $ - 3 6,667
Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairmel $ 3,58t $ 21,53t $ 3,46¢ $ - 3 326,62
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December 31, 20:

1-4 family
first-lien Residentie Othel
residentie constructiol Commercig Commercig commercie
(In thousands) mortgag: mortgag real estat lines of credi and industrie
Allowance for loan losses
Beginning Balanc 75C % - 1,204 57¢ % 501
Charg-offs (237) - (20%) (65) (34)
Recoverie! 49 - - 1 -
Provisions 10z - 347 (52) 182
Ending balanc 664 $ - 1,34¢€ 46 $ 64¢
Ending balance: related to loe
individually evaluated for impairme| 14¢ 3 - 10¢ 17¢ 3 122
Ending balance: related to loe
collectively evaluated for impairme 51t $ - 1,237 28 $ 527
Loans receivables:
Ending balanc 158,38 $ 3,93t 73,42( 13,790  $ 22,70:
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmel 1,29¢ $ - 1,70% 45z  $ 37¢
Ending balance: collective!
evaluated for impairmet 157,08t $ 3,93t 71,710 13,33¢ $ 22,32
Home equit Othel
Municipal and junior lien CONSUMe Unallocate: Total
Allowance for loan losses
Beginning Balanc 3 3 424 89 98 $ 3,64¢
Charg-offs - (43 (223 - (707)
Recoverie! - 10 39 - 99
Provisions (1) 11C 157 95 94C
Ending balanc 2 3% 501 162 195§ 3,98(
Ending balance: related to loe
individually evaluated for impairme! - $ 61 - - $ 61¢
Ending balance: related to loe
collectively evaluated for impairme 2 % 44C 162 195 8 3,361
Loans receivables:
Ending balanci 3,61¢ $ 24,17 4,14C - $ 304,16:
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairmel - 3 44¢ - - 3 4,28(
Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairmel 3,61¢ $ 23,720 4,14( - $ 299,88:
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NOTE 7: SERVICING

Loans serviced for others are not included in t@mpanying consolidated statements of conditibime unpaid principal balances of mortgage and ddgers serviced for othe
were $24,775,000 and $31,241,000 at December 3P, @0d 2011, respectively. The balance of capédliservicing rights included in other assets ateber 31, 2012 a
2011, was $2,000 and $8,000, respectively.

The following summarizes mortgage servicing rigtgpitalized and amortized:

(In thousands 201z 2011
Mortgage servicing rights capitaliz: $ 2 3 =
Mortgage servicing rights amortiz: $ 7 $ 27

NOTE 8: PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of premises and equipment at Decembds 2, follows:

(In thousands 2012 2011
Land $ 154 % 1,54¢
Buildings 10,05¢ 10,05¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 9,051 8,70
Construction in progres 18€ 353
20,831 20,65¢

Less: Accumulated depreciati 10,72¢ 9,95¢
$ 10,10¢ $ 10,691

NOTE 9: GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acquisdier the fair value of the net assets acquiBsshdwill is not amortized, but is evaluated annuédr impairment or betwet
annual evaluations in certain circumstances. Mamagé performs an annual assessment of the Compaogdwill to determine whether or not any impaintnef the carryin
value may exist. The Company is permitted to asgeafitative factors to determine if it is moredii than not that the fair value of the reportingtus less than the carryi
value. For purposes of this assessment, manageroaniders the Company and its subsidiaries as @ewto be the reporting unit. Based on the resoiltthe assessme
management has determined that the carrying vélgeaalwill in the amount of $3.8 million is not iraped as of December 31, 2012.
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NOTE 10: DEPOSITS

A summary of deposits at December 31, is as follows

(In thousands 2012 2011
Savings accouni 63,50: 58,68¢
Time account: 78,17¢ 83,78¢
Time accounts of $100,000 or mc 85,14¢ 69,55¢
Money management accoul 14,44 14,24¢
MMDA accounts 73,51¢ 70,58¢
Demand deposit intere-bearing 29,69: 28,62
Demand deposit noninter-bearing 43,91 37,15:
Mortgage escrow func 3,417 3,481
Total Deposits 391,80! 366,12¢
At December 31, 2012, the scheduled maturitiegved eposits are as follows:
(In thousands
Year of Maturity:
2013 108,11:
2014 35,54
2015 7,12¢
2016 4,54¢
2017 1,79¢
Thereatftel 6,20(
Total 163,32:
NOTE 11: BORROWED FUNDS
The composition of borrowings (excluding junior eutinated debentures) at December 31 is as follows:
(In thousands 201z 2011
Shor-term:
FHLB Advances 9,00( -
Long-term:
FHLB advance: 20,00( 20,00(
ESOP loan payab 964 1,07¢
Citigroup Repurchase agreeme 5,00( 5,00(
Total lon¢-term borrowings 25,96/ 26,07«

Terms of the ESOP loan payable, which is basedwariable rate, are detailed in Note 14.
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The principal balances, interest rates and magsrdf the remaining borrowings, all of which ara ditked rate, at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Term Principa Rates
(Dollars in thousands
Long-term:
Repurchase agreements (due in 2( $ 5,00( 2.95%
Advances with FHLE
due within 1 yea 4,00( 4.46%-4.5%
due within 2 year 5,00(¢ 2.85%-3.01%
due within 3 year 2,00( 2.7%
due within 4 year 3,00( 2.12%
due within 5 year 4,00( 1.36%-2.5€%
due within 10 year 2,00( 2.56%
Total advances with FHL| 20,00(
Total lon¢-term borrowings $ 25,00(

At December 31, 2012, scheduled repayments of feng-debt are as follows (in thousands):

2013 $ 9,11(
2014 5,11(
2015 2,11(
2016 3,11(
2017 4,11C
Thereaftel 2,41¢

$ 25,96«

The repurchase agreement with Citigroup is coldditezd by certain investment securities havingiavalue of $5.7 million at December 31, 2012. Tdwdlateral is under tt
Companys control. The Company also has access to Federak Loan Bank advances, under which it can boabwarious terms and interest rates. Residentiaigage loar
with a carrying value of $58.5 million and FHLB skowith a carrying value of $1.9 million have bgdadged by the Company under a blanket collateyadement to secure 1
Companys borrowings at December 31, 2012. The total antihg indebtedness under borrowing facilities wite FHLB cannot exceed the total value of thetagsiedge
under the blanket collateral agreement. The Compas a $32.2 million line of credit available atd@mber 31, 2012 with the Federal Reserve Bankewf Mork through it
Discount Window and has pledged various corporatd rmunicipal securities against the line. The Camgphas an $11.0 million line of credit availabletiwihree othe
correspondent banks. $4.0 million of that line i@fdit is available on an unsecured basis and thaireng $7.0 million must be collateralized with tketable investment securiti
Interest on the lines is determined at the timeasfowing.

The Company has a naonsolidated subsidiary trust, Pathfinder Statuftmyst Il, of which the Company owns 100% of thencoon equity. The Trust issued $5,000,000 ¢
year floating rate Compa-obligated pooled capital securities of Pathfindet®Bory Trust Il. The Company borrowed the pralseef the capital securities from its subsidiar
issuing floating rate junior subordinated defereainiterest debentures having substantially sinlems. The capital securities mature in 2037 ardraated as Tier 1 capital
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and dueial Reserve Board (“FRB”)The capital securities of the trust are a pooladttpreferred fund of Preferred Term Secur
VI, Ltd. and are tied to the 3-month LIBOR plus3% (1.96%) at December 31, 2012) with a five-yedrgrovision. The Company guarantees all of treesmirities.
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The Company's equity interest in the trust subgyda $155,000 is reported in "Other assets". Fagulatory reporting purposes, the Federal Reskageindicated that t
preferred securities will continue to qualify a®iTl Capital subject to previously specified litidas, until further notice. If regulators make etetmination that Trust Prefer
Securities can no longer be considered in regylatapital, the securities become callable and thagany may redeem them.

NOTE 12: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND DEFERRED COMPENSATI ON AND SUPPLEMENTAL

RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefitsipn plan covering substantially all employeese Pplan provides defined benefits based on yeasewfice and fin:
average salary. On May 14, 2012, the Company irddrits employees of its decision to freeze pawibgmn and benefit accruals under the plan, primaadlreduce some of t
volatility in earnings that can accompany the nexiance of a defined benefit plan. The freeze becffective June 30, 2012. Compensation earnezhiptoyees up to June
2012 is used for purposes of calculating benefiiden the plan but there will be no future benefitraals after this date. Participants as of Juhe2812 will continue to ea
vesting credit with respect to their frozen accrbedefits as they continue to work. In additio @ompany provides certain health and life inswarenefits for a limited numk
of eligible retired employees. The healthcare pdacontributory with participantgontributions adjusted annually; the life insuraptan is noncontributory. Employees with |

than 14 years of service as of January 1, 1995 atreligible for the health and life insurancersghent benefits.

The following tables set forth the changes in tlaag benefit obligations, fair value of plan assatd the plans’ funded status as of December 31:

(In thousands

Pension Benefit

Postretirement Benefi

2012 2011 2012 2011
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligations at beginning of ye $ 10,167 $ 7,53¢ 401 $ 364
Service cos 16€ 32¢ - -
Interest cos 397 414 17 19
Actuarial loss 86¢ 2,08t 68 47
Curtailment gair (1,919 - - -
Benefits paic (209) (199) (36) (29)
Benefit obligations at end of ye 9,46t 10,167 45C 401
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y 7,54¢ 7,89( - -
Actual return on plan asse 84¢€ (142) - -
Benefits paic (20¢9) (199 (36) (29
Employer contribution 2,60( - 36 29
Fair value of plan assets at end of y 10,78¢ 7,54¢ - -
Funded Statu- asset (liability) $ 1,321 $ (2,619 (450 $ (401)
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other compreliensss as of December 31 are as follows:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
(In thousands 2012 2011 2012 2011
Unrecognized transition obligatic $ - % - $ - % 2
Net loss, net of curtailment ge 4,46¢€ 5,94( 142 86
4,46¢€ 5,94( 14z 88
Tax Effect 1,78¢€ 2,37¢ 57 35
$ 2,68 $ 356/ $ 85 $ 53

Gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greatbedienefit obligation or the fair value of assets amortized over the average remaining senedeg of active participants.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defibedefit pension plan was $9,465,000 and $8,2450@kcember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Dis&rgtirement plan hi
an accumulated benefit obligation of $450,000 a4@{l$000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively

The significant assumptions used in determiningoirgefit obligations as of December 31, are asvidll

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
2012 2011 2017 2011
Weighted average discount ri 4.05% 4.4(% 4.05% 4.4(%
Rate of increase in future compensation le - 3.5(% - -

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the pastreent health care plan. The annual rates oéase in the per capita cos
covered medical and prescription drug benefit§ifure years were assumed to be 7.5% for 2013 pugtlyddecreasing to 5.00% in 2018 and remain dtléval thereafter.

The composition of the net periodic benefit plastdor the years ended December 31 is as follows:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi

2012 2011 2012 2011
(In thousands
Service cos $ 166 $ 326 % - % -
Interest cos 397 414 17 19
Expected return on plan ass (809) (625) - -
Amortization of transition obligatio - - 2 18
Amortization of net losse 381 247 13 1
Net periodic benefit plan co $ 13t $ 364 $ 32 3 38
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The significant assumptions used in determiningniteperiodic benefit plan cost for years endedebdmer 31 were as follows:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
2012 2011 2012 2011
Weighted average discount ri 4.4% 5.54% 4.4% 5.5/%
Expected long term rate of return on plan as 8.0(% 8.0(% - -
Rate of increase in future compensation le - 3.5(% - -

The long term rate of return on assets assumptamset based on historical returns earned by eguitid fixed income securities, adjusted to refi&pectations of future retui
as applied to the plan’s target allocation of astetses. Equities and fixed income securitiegewassumed to earn real rates of return in the sa0y®.0%-9.0% and 2.0%0%
respectively. The long-term inflation rate wasmeated to be 3.0%. When these overall return egtieas are applied to the plartarget allocation, the expected rate of returs
determined to be in the range of 7.0% to 11.0%n&gament has chosen to use an 8% expected longetrrof return to reflect current economic comdii and expected returns.

The estimated net actuarial loss that will be aipedt from accumulated other comprehensive loss retoperiodic benefit plan cost during 2013 is $860. The estimat:
amortization of the unrecognized transition obligiand actuarial loss for the post retirementthealan in 2013 is $20,000. The expected net daribenefit plan cost for 2013
estimated at a $76,000 negative expense for botbment plans.

Plan assets are invested in diversified investriemds of the RSI Retirement Trust (the “Trus#)private placement investment fund. The investriamds include a series
equity and bond mutual funds or commingled trustdij each with its own investment objectives, itmest strategies and risks, as detailed in theei@mt of Investme
Objectives and Guidelines. The Trust has beemgilgcretion by the Plan Sponsor to determine gpeapriate strategic asset allocation versus pédilities, as governed by t
Trust's Statement of Investment Objectives and €linds.

The long-term investment objectives are to mainpdém assets at a level that will sufficiently col@ngterm obligations and to generate a return on pémeta that will meet
exceed the rate at which lotgrm obligations will grow. A broadly diversifiembmbination of equity and fixed income portfoliosdavarious risk management techniques are
to help achieve these objectives.

In addition, significant consideration is paid ke tplan’s funding levels when determining the oNasset allocation. If the plan is consideredé&wellfunded, approximate
65% of the plan’s assets are allocated to equatiesapproximately 35% allocated to fixed-incomiethé plan does not satisfy the criteria for a vietided plan, approximate
50% of the plan’s assets are allocated to equatielsapproximately 50% allocated to fixed-incomessét rebalancing normally occurs when the equityfexed-income allocatior
vary by more than 10% from their respective tar@iets, a 20% policy range guideline).

The investment goal is to achieve investment reghht will contribute to the proper funding of ghension plan by exceeding the rate of inflatioerahe longterm. In additior

investment managers for the Trust are expected ruvige above average performance when comparedhéir tpeer managers. Performance volatility is
monitored. Risk/volatility is further managed tetdistinct investment objectives of each of thesTfunds and the diversification within each fund.
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Pension plan assets measured at fair value are atineh below:

At December 31, 201

Total Fail

(In thousands Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Asset Category
Mutual funds- equity

Large-cap value (a $ 1,01¢ % - % - % 1,01¢

Smal-cap core (b 1,33¢ - - 1,33¢

Large-cap core (c 752 - - 752

Large-cap value (d 1,23¢ - - 1,23¢
Common/collective trusi- equity

Large-cap core (e - 1,191 - 1,191

Large-cap value (f - 59t - 59t

Large-cap growth (g - 792 - 792
Common/collective trusi- fixed income

Market duration fixed (h - 3,86( - 3,86(
Cash Equivalen-Money marke - - - -
Total $ 4,348 $ 6,43t $ - $ 10,78¢

(a) This category consists of investments whose seator industry exposures are maintained within aomarband around Russell 1000 index. The portfolibd¢
approximately 150 stock

(b) This category contains stocks whose sector weightare maintained within a narrow band around tledslee Russell 2000 index. The portfolio will tgally hold mort
than 150 stocks

(c) This category consists of a mutual fund that séasisgrowing larg-cap companies with sustainable franchises andip®gitice momentum. The portfolio holds 60 tc
stocks.

(d) This category has investments in medium to largeW® companies, including high quality, durable gifowbmpanies and companies based in countries vetile
economic and political systern

(e) This fund tracks the performance of the S&P 50@indy purchasing the securities represented imtlex in approximately the same weightings as tiokex.

(f) This category contains lar-cap stocks with abo-average yields. The portfolio typically holds beem 60 and 70 stock

(g) This category consists of a portfolio of betweera88 55 stocks of fast growing, predictable, arglicgl large cap growth companie

(h) This category consists of an index fund that trabksBarclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond IndeRke Tund invests in Treasury, agency, corporatefgage-backed an
asse-backed securitie!
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At December 31, 201

Total Fail

(In thousands Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Asset Category
Mutual funds- equity

Large-cap value (a $ 67 $ - 8 - 8 675

Smal-cap core (b 89t - - 89t
Common/collective trust- equity

Large-cap core (c - 79¢ - 79¢

Large-cap value (d - 39¢ - 39¢

Large-cap growth (e - 1,087 - 1,087

International core (f - 83C - 83C
Common/collective trusi- fixed income

Market duration fixed (g - 2,871 - 2,871
Total $ 157C $ 597¢ $ - $ 7,54¢

(a) This category consists of investments whose semtor industry exposures are maintained within aomarband around Russell 1000 index. The portfolibd¢
approximately 150 stock

(b) This category contains stocks whose sector weightare maintained within a narrow band around tlebslee Russell 2000 index. The portfolio will tgally hold mort
than 150 stocks

(c) This fund tracks the performance of the S&P 50@inbly purchasing the securities represented itnidhex in approximately the same weightings as tiagex.

(d) This category contains lar-cap stocks with abo-average yields. The portfolio typically holds beem 60 and 70 stock

(e) This category consists of a portfolio of betweera#l 65 stocks that will typically overweight teckogy and health car

() This category consists of a broadly diversifiedtfodio of nor-U.S. domiciled stocks. The portfolio will typicglhold more than 200 stocks, with (- 35% invested i
emerging markets securitie

(g) This category consists of an index fund that trabksBarclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Indeke Tund invests in Treasury, agency, corporatetgagebacked an
asse-backed securitie:

Funds that are mutual funds and actively tradedifgues “Level 1" assets because market valuesraaelily available and accessible (“using quotedgwiin active markets”
Funds referred to as “common/collective trusisé proprietary funds that are not available to dbaeral public, and therefore classified as L&elThe value of these
determined based on underlying assets which magterities having quoted prices in active markatstual funds, or fixed income securities whose méthogy for determinin
fair value is described in Note 20.

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013, tekBexpects to contribute approximately $35,00thépostretirement plan. In January 2012, the Baalle a contribution

$2.6 million to the pension plan in response touh&inded pension liability of $2.6 million recortiat December 31, 2011. No additional contributimese made in 2012. T
Company may consider an additional contributiog0a 3.
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The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectee fmaid from both retirement plans:

Pensior Postretiremen
Benefits Benefits Total
Years endir
December 31
(In thousands
2013 $ 234 $ 35 $ 26¢
2014 244 36 28C
2015 258 36 28¢
2016 264 36 30C
2017 29¢ 37 33¢
Years 201¢- 2022 1,67¢ 165 1,84:

The Company also offers a 401(k) plan to its emgdsy Contributions to this plan by the Companyev§208,000 and $176,000 for 2012 and 2011, reseécti

The Company maintains optional deferred compensatians for its directors and certain executivécefs, whereby fees and income normally receiveddaferred and paid
the Company based upon a payment schedule commyestcage 65 and continuing monthly for 10 yearse@ors must serve on the board for a minimum pédrs to be eligib
for the Plan. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, ofiadilities include approximately $1,979,000 and,%B,000, respectively, relating to deferred conspéion. Deferre
compensation expense for the years ended Decerhp2082 and 2011 amounted to approximately $217a0@06224,000, respectively.

The Company has a supplemental executive retireplent(“SERP”)for the benefit of a retired Chief Executive Offiag December 31, 2012. A SERP was in place b#nefi
of the present Chief Executive Officer at Decenifer2011 but was terminated on December 31, 202t proceeds of the trust distributed on thé¢.dét December 31, 20
and 2011, other liabilities included approximat#l73,000 and $218,000, respectively, accrued uthiemplan related only to the retired CEO. Compéns expense includ
approximately $16,000 relating to the supplemesakutive retirement plan for the year ended Deeer@h, 2012 and $19,000 for the year ended DeceBihe&011.

To assist in the funding of the Compasyenefits under the supplemental executive reéngémplan, the Company is the owner of single premlite insurance policies on selec
participants. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, #si surrender values of these policies were $808&nd $7,939,000, respectively.

NOTE 13: STOCK BASED COMPENSATION PLANS
The February 1997 Stock Option Plan
In February 1997, the Board of Directors approvedgtion plan and granted options thereunder witkxercise price equal to the market value of tbe@anys shares at the di

of grant. Under the Stock Option Plan, up to 13892,@ptions had been authorized for grant of ineenstock options and nonqualified stock optionandlof the original optiol
granted prior to July 2001 remain outstanding atébgber 31, 2012 or December 31, 2011.

In July 2001, the Board approved the issuance gf®Bstock options remaining in the 1997 Stock @pRlan. The exercise price was equal to the rhaedee of the Compan
shares at the date of grant ($8.34). The optiomstgd under the issuance had a 10-year term goictebon July 31, 2011.
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The April 2010 Stock Option Plan

In June 2011, the Board of Directors of the Compapgroved the grant of stock option awards to ited@ors and Executive Officers under the 2010 IS®Option Plan that wi
approved at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders pril 28, 2010 when 150,000 shares were authoriaedward. A total of 45,000 stock option awardsengranted to the nil
directors of the Company and 75,000 stock optioards; in total, were granted to the Chief Execu@¥ficer and the Compang’four Senior Vice Presidents. The awards wilt
ratably over five years (20% per year for each wpéahe participant’s service with the Company) avilll expire ten years from the date of the gramtjune 2021.

The fair value of each option grant was establisitetie date of grant using the Black-Scholes aptiicing model. The Blackcholes model used the following weighted ave
assumptions: riskeee interest rate of 2.2%; volatility factors betexpected market price of the Company's comnuwk &if .45; weighted average expected lives ofoiht&ons o
7.0 years: cash dividend yield of 1.49%. Based upese assumptions, the weighted average fair \wdlaptions granted was $3.77.

The compensation expense of the awards is bas#gtkedair value of the instruments on the date ahgr The Company recorded compensation experibe imamount of $81,0(
and $47,000 in 2012 and 2011, respectively, ardpected to record $79,000 in each of the year8 #tfbugh 2015, and $38,000 in 2016.

At December 31, 2012, there were 106,000 optionstanding, of which 22,000 were exercisable atxerase price of $9.00, and an average remainimgractual life of 8.
years. Expiring options in 2012 were the resubéctor attrition.

Activity in the stock option plans is as follows:

Weightec

Options Average Share

(Shares in thousand Outstandin Exercise Pric Exercisabl
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 19 $ 8.34 19
Grantec 12¢ 9.0C -
Exercisec 8 8.34 8
Expired (112) 8.34 (112)
Qutstanding at December 31, 2( 12C 3 9.0C -
Grantec - % - -
Newly Vestec - 9.0C 23
Exercisec (@) 9.0C (@)
Expired (13) 9.0C -
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 106 $ 9.0C 22

The aggregate intrinsic value of a stock optiorresents the total pitax intrinsic value (the amount by which the cutmerarket value of the underlying stock exceedsetkercis:
price of the option) that would have been receigdhe option holders had all option holders exsagitheir options prior to the expiration date.e Tiitrinsic value can chan
based on fluctuations in the market value of thenany’s stock. At December 31, 2012, the intrinsic valfithe stock options was $138,000. At DecembefB11, the value
the Company’s stock was less than the stock ojptiime, therefore the outstanding and exercisablekstptions had no intrinsic value.
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NOTE 14: EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

The Company established the Pathfinder Bank Empl&teck Ownership Plan (“Plant) purchase stock of the Company for the benefitsoémployees. In July 2011, the F
received a $1.1 million loan from Community BankAN guaranteed by the Company, to fund the Plpoishase of 125,000 shares of the Compatgasury stock. The loar
being repaid in equal quarterly installments ohpipal plus interest over ten years beginning OCetdh 2011. Interest accrues at the Wall Streetndd Prime Rate plus 1.00
and is secured by the unallocated shares of thePE$azk. In accordance with the payment of priaogm the loan, a proportionate number of sharesfocated to the employe
over the ten year time horizon of the loan. Paguicts’vesting interest in the shares of Company stoek fke rate of 20% per year. The Company reco$d@d,000 and $72,0
in compensation expense in 2012 and 2011, respégtimcluding $13,000 and $7,000 for dividendsumallocated shares in these same time period®efember 31, 2012, the

were 106,250 unearned ESOP shares with a fair wdilfig.1 million.
NOTE 15: INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the years erldedember 31, is as follows:

(In thousands 2017 2011
Current $ 1,20¢ (149
Deferred (27€) 1,19:
$ 92¢ 1,04¢
The provision for income taxes includes the follogui
(In thousands 2012 2011
Federal Income Ta $ 87¢ 96¢
New York State Franchise Ti 56 76
$ 92¢ 1,04¢
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The components of the net deferred tax (liability3et, included in other assets or other lialslitie of December 31, are as follows:

(In thousands

2012 2011

Assets:
Deferred compensatic $ 83: $ 832
Allowance for loan losse 1,741 1,54(
Postretirement benefi 174 15€

Mortgage recording tax credit carryforwe 20¢€

2717
Impairment losses on investment securi 337 342
Capital loss carryforwar 292 307
AMT credit carryforwarc - 59
Pension liability - 85
Other 284 10€
Total 3,86¢ 3,70
Liabilities:
Pension asst (517) -
Depreciatior (703) (74¢
Accretion (52) (45)
Loan origination fee (17¢€) (221)
Intangible asset (1,486 (1,40¢
Investment securities and financial derivat (1,009 (63€)
Prepaid expense¢ (52) (1149
Total (3,98%) (3,179
(120 53C
Less: deferred tax asset valuation allowe (45€) (45€)
Net deferred tax (liability) ass $ (57¢) $ 72

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent thpw generation of future taxable income or thisterce of sufficient taxable income within thergavack period. A valuatic
allowance is provided when it is more likely thaot that some portion, or all of the deferred tagess, will not be realized. In assessing the rfee@ valuation allowanc
management considers the scheduled reversal defieered tax liabilities, the level of historicakeble income and the projected future level oldexincome over the periods
which the temporary differences comprising the defittax assets will be deductible. The judgméocuathe level of future taxable income is inhelgestibjective and is review

on a continual basis as regulatory and businessréachange. The valuation allowance of $458,0@@esents the portion of the deferred tax assettlatagement believes n
not be realizable, as the Company may not gensudfieient capital gains to offset its capital less

A reconciliation of the federal statutory incomg tate to the effective income tax rate for thergeanded December 31, is as follows:

2012 2011
Federal statutory income tax ri 34.(% 34.(%
State tax, net of federal bene 1.C 1kt
Tax-exempt interest incorr (7.9) 4.9
Increase in value of bank owned life insurance peesiums paic (2.3 (1.€
Gain on proceeds from bank owned life insure (0.4) -
Other 1.C 1.
Effective income tax rat 26.(% 31.(%
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At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company didhaeé¢ any uncertain tax positions. The Companyliey to recognize interest and penalties, if,@dnyincome tax expense
in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Theé¢axs subject to examination by the Federal and Xesk State taxing authorities are the years erdectember 31, 2009
through 2011.

NOTE 16: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to financial instrument$witf-balance sheet risk in the normal course of busittes®eet the financing needs of its customers. g fieancial instrumen
include commitments to extend credit and standtigrie of credit. Such commitments involve, to wagydegrees, elements of credit risk in excess@ftmount recognized in 1
consolidated statement of condition. The contrdanzount of those commitments to extend crediermfl the extent of involvement the Company hasis garticular class
financial instrument. The Compaisyexposure to credit loss in the event of nonperéorce by the other party to the financial instrutrfen commitments to extend credit
represented by the contractual amount of the imstni. The Company uses the same credit policiegking commitments as it does for on-balance shegtiments.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the following finahinstruments were outstanding whose contractuatsorepresent credit risk:

Contract Amoun

(In thousands 201z 2011
Commitments to grant loai $ 25,14t  $ 9,01(
Unfunded commitments under lines of cre 19,017 17,17«
Standby letters of crec 1,481 1,59¢

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to tieredcustomer as long as there is no violatioanyf condition established in the contract. Commitis@enerally have fixe
expiration dates or other termination clauses aag raquire payment of a fee. Since some of the dtment amounts are expected to expire without beiragvn upon, the tot
commitment amounts do not necessarily representdutash requirements. The Company evaluates emstbneer’'s creditworthiness on a caseelage basis. The amount
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the f@omy upon extension of credit, is based on manageésneredit evaluation of the counter party. Colldtéeld varies but me
include residential real estate and incqmneducing commercial properties. Loan commitmenttstanding at December 31, 2012 with fixed intemeges amounted
approximately $4.5 million. Loan commitments, irdilig unused lines of credit and standby lettersredlit, outstanding at December 31, 2012 with Wéeinterest rates amoun
to approximately $41.1 million. These outstandien commitments carry current market rates.

Unfunded commitments under standby letters of treelolving credit lines and overdraft protectmgreements are commitments for possible futurensidaes of credit to existir
customers. These lines of credit usually do nataia a specified maturity date and may not be drapon to the total extent to which the Compamgoimmitted.

Letters of credit written are conditional commitrteissued by the Company to guarantee the perfarenaina customer to a third party. Generally|eters of credit, when issu
have expiration dates within one year. The cregk involved in issuing letters of credit is essally the same as those that are involved in editep loan facilities t
customers. The Company generally holds collataral/or personal guarantees supporting these conemtitmManagement believes that the proceeds ebitaimough
liquidation of collateral and the enforcement ofiantees would be sufficient to cover the potemtimbunt of future payments required under the spoeding guarantees. 1
amount of the liability as of December 31, 2012 a6d1 for guarantees under standby letters of tiggiied is not material.
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The Company leases land and leasehold improvenuemksr agreements that expire in various years reitlewal options over the next 30 years. Rentakes@, included
building occupancy expense, amounted to $65,002Gd2 and $73,000 for 2011.

Approximate minimum rental commitments for non-calable operating leases are as follows:

Years Ending December 3
(In thousands

2013 $ 63
2014 33
2015 33
2016 33
2017 33

Total minimum lease paymer $ 19t

The total amount of minimum rents to be receivethnfuture under non-cancelable subleases is 5,00
NOTE 17: DIVIDENDS AND RESTRICTIONS

The Board of Directors of Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.@etermines whether the Holding Company will veaor receive dividends declared by the Companyjestiko regulator
approval, each time the Company declares a dividehith is expected to be on a quarterly basis. Hbkling Company may elect to receive dividends atilize such funds 1
pay expenses or for other allowable purposes. R Ras indicated that (i) the Holding Company spatlvide the FRB annually with written notice of ihtent to waive i
dividends prior to the proposed date of the divitland the FRB shall have the authority to appravdemy any dividend waiver request; (ii) if a waiie granted, divident
waived by the Holding Company will be excluded fréime Companyg capital accounts for purposes of calculatingdgind payments to minority shareholders. During22éxic
2011, the Company paid or accrued dividends ta@&$h90,000 to the Holding Company in each of theseyears. The Holding Company did not waive tlghtito receive i
portion of the cash dividends declared during 2612011.

The Company's ability to pay dividends to its shatders is largely dependent on the Bank's ailitpay dividends to the Company. In addition &iestaw requirements and
capital requirements discussed in Note 18, fedgteltes, regulations and policies limit the cirstamces under which the Bank may pay dividend® &mount of retaine
earnings legally available under these regulatapoximated $6,268,000 as of December 31, 2012idéhds paid by the Bank to the Company would fmhibited if the effec
thereof would cause the Baslc¢apital to be reduced below applicable minimupitahrequirements. The Company is prohibited fitaepting or directing the Bank to declar
pay a dividend or other capital distributions withgrior written approval of the Federal Reserve.

Since the Company has chosen to participate i thasurys SBLF program, it is permitted to pay dividendsitsSncommon stock provided certain Tier 1 capit@imums ar
exceeded and SBLF dividends have been declaredaaddo Treasury as of the most recent dividendbger
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NOTE 18: REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capigjuirements administered by the federal bankingegs. Failure to meet minimum capital requiremeras initiate certa
mandatory and possibly additional discretionaryoaet by regulators that, if undertaken, could hawtirect material effect on the Compasygonsolidated financial stateme
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regyldtamework for prompt corrective action, the Bankst meet specific capital guidelines that invajuantitative measures of
assets, liabilities, and certain dfflance sheet items as calculated under regulamryunting practices. The capital amounts and ifizgtons are also subject to qualital
judgments by the regulators about componentswesghtings, and other factol

Quantitative measures established by regulati@msuire capital adequacy require the Bank to maimat@iounts and ratios (set forth in the table beloitdtal and Tier 1 capital (
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted as¢atsdefined), and of Tier 1 capital (as definedterage assets (as defined).

As of December 31, 2012, the Bank’s most recerification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Cogbion categorized the Bank as “well-capitalizedider the regulato
framework for prompt corrective action. To be gaigzed as “well-capitalized”, the Bank must maintgotal risk based, Tier 1 ridkased and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set fo
the tables below. There are no conditions or ev@nte that notification that management belie\agelthanged the Bank’s category.

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios d3ezember 31, 2012 and 2011 are presented in tlosving table.

Minimum
To Be "Wel-
Minimum Capitalized"
For Capital Under Promp
Actual Adequacy Purpose Corrective Provision
(Dollars in thousands Amoun Ratic Amoun Ratic Amoun Ratic
As of December 31, 201
Total Core Capital (to Ri-Weighted Assets $ 45,76: 14.2% $ 25,80¢ 8.C% $ 32,25¢ 10.(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets $ 41,57+ 12.¢% $ 12,90« 4% $ 19,35¢ 6.C%
Tier 1 Capital (to Asset: $ 41,57« 8.8% $ 18,83: 4.% $ 23,53¢ 5.C%
As of December 31, 201
Total Core Capital (to Ri-Weighted Assets $ 43,67( 14% $ 23,38¢ 8.C% $ 29,23 10.(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets $ 39,917 13.7% $ 11,69: 4% $ 17,54( 6.C%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Asse! $ 39,91% 9.4% $ 17,04: 4.C% $ 21,30: 5.C%

On September 11, 2009, the Company entered int@uihehase Agreement with the United States Depattofethe Treasury pursuant to which the Compasyad and sold
Treasury: (i) 6,771 shares of the Companixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred StBekies A, par value $0.01 per share, having adajion amount per share equé
$1,000, for a total price of $6,771,000; and (ifVarrant to purchase 154,354 shares of the Compammyhmon stock, par value $0.01 per share, at ertieg price per share
$6.58. The Company contributed to the Bank, itsiliary, $5,500,000 or 81.23% of the proceeds@fsale of the Series A Preferred Stock.

The $6,771,000 of proceeds was allocated to thesSarPreferred Stock and the Warrant based on takitive fair values at issuance ($6,065,000 alkxated to the Series
Preferred Stock and $706,000 to the Warrant).

On September 1, 2011, the Company redeemed all 8f7ares of its Fixed Rate Cumulative PerpetudieRredl Stock Series A. The Company paid $6,786100be Treasul
Department to redeem the Series A Preferred Statich included the original investment of $6,7700plus accrued dividends.
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In connection with this redemption, on Septembe2Qil1, the Company entered into a Securities PeecAgreement with the Secretary of the Treasurye@3ury”)pursuant t
which the Company sold to the Treasury, 13,000eshaf its Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual Prefeéntck, Series B (“Series B Preferred Stockiyving a liquidatio
preference of $1,000 per share for aggregate pisagfe$13,000,000. This transaction was enteredas part of the Treasury’s Small Business Lenéfimgd Program (“SBLF”).

Accordingly, the Company is no longer subject ttrietions of the CPP program. The SBLF programsduave its own requirements, which are summabtizéulv:

The Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to recaimecumulative dividends payable quarterly, on eactudgnl, April 1, July 1 and October 1, beginningdber 1, 2011. Tt
dividend rate, which is calculated on the aggregajaidation Amount, was initially set at 4.2% prnum based upon the current level of “QualifiecabBusiness Lending’or
“QSBL" (as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreet) by the Compang’wholly owned subsidiary, the Bank. The divideate for future dividend periods will be set bz
upon the “Percentage Change in Qualified Lendiag’defined in the Securities Purchase Agreemetwelea each dividend period and the “Baseli@SBL level. Such divider
rate may vary from 1% per annum to 5% per annunthi®isecond through tenth dividend periods, frompEyeannum to 7% per annum for the eleventh thrahgHirst half of th
nineteenth dividend periods. If the Series B &refl Stock remains outstanding for more than &nga-onehalf years, the dividend rate will be fixed at 9®rior to that time, i
general, the dividend rate decreases as the léuwleoBank’s QSBL increases. The Companglividend rate as of the date of this report 86%. Such dividends are |
cumulative, but the Company may only declare anddigdends on its common stock (or any other sgsécurities junior to the Series B Preferred Stdtck has declared ai
paid dividends for the current dividend period ba Series B Preferred Stock, and will be subjecther restrictions on its ability to repurchaseesteem other securities.

The Company may redeem the shares of Series Briz@f8tock, in whole or in part, at any time aedemption price equal to the sum of the Liquidafdmmount per share and t
per-share amount of any unpaid dividends for tlee-tturrent period, subject to any required prigirapal by the Company’s primary federal bankingutatpr.

The Companys ability to pay common stock dividends is conditibon payment of the Series B Preferred Stockdeivis described above. In addition, the SBLF o
requires the Company to file quarterly reports @®BQ lending reported on by its Auditor annuallyheTCompany must also outreach and advertise thkalality of QSBL tc
organizations and individuals who represent mifesgjtwoman and veterans. The Company must anncedtify that no business loans are made to praisipf businesses w
have been convicted of a sex crime against a miRorally, the SBLF program requires the Companyfile® quarterly, annual and other reports providedshareholde
concurrently with the Treasury.

The Companys goal is to maintain a strong capital positiomsistent with the risk profile of its subsidiarynta that supports growth and expansion activitibgeaat the sarr
time exceeding regulatory standards. At Decemiler2812, the Bank exceeded all regulatory requimétimum capital ratios and met the regulatory déén of a “well-
capitalized” institution, i.e. a leverage capitaio exceeding 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based capitabraxiceeding 6% and a total risk-based capital exteeeding 10%.

The Bank is required to maintain average balanodsand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. At Deaerith, 2012 and 2011, these reserve balances amtoin$2,811,000 a
$2,582,000, respectively.
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NOTE 19: INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVE

Derivative instruments are entered into primargyaarisk management tool of the Company. Finamgdbatives are recorded at fair value as otheztasmd other liabilities. T
accounting for changes in the fair value of a dgivwe depends on whether it has been designateduaiifies as part of a hedging relationship. Féaiavalue hedge, changes
the fair value of the derivative instrument andrajes in the fair value of the hedged asset orlitiplaire recognized currently in earnings. For shciow hedge, changes in the
value of the derivative instrument, to the extdwtt it is effective, are recorded in other compnsiee income and subsequently reclassified to egsnas the hedged transac
impacts net income. Any ineffective portion of sstedlow hedge is recognized currently in earninee Note 20 for further discussion of the fairueabf the interest re
derivative.

The Company has $5 million of floating rate trustfprred debt indexed torBenth LIBOR. As a result, it is exposed to vaiii@pin cash flows related to changes in proje
interest payments caused by changes in the benkhimterest rate. During the fourth quarter o€$52009, the Company entered into an interestswat® agreement, with a $
million notional amount, to convert a portion oéthariablerate junior subordinated debentures to a fixedfata term of approximately 7 years at a rate.86%. The derivati\
is designated as a cash flow hedge. The hedgiaigggy ensures that changes in cash flows frondehigative will be highly effective at offsettindianges in interest expense fi
the hedged exposure.

The following table summarizes the fair value ofstanding derivatives and their presentation orstatements of condition as of December 31:

(In thousands 201z 2011
Cash flow hedge

Other liabilities $ 198§ 20C

The change in accumulated other comprehensivedass pretax basis, and the impact on earnings fhenmterest rate swap that qualifies as a cashliledge for the year ended
December 31 were as follows:

(In thousands 201z 2011
Balance as of January $ (200 $ (110
Amount of losses recognized in other compreheriss@me (53 (157)
Amount of loss reclassified from other compreheasincome
and recognized as interest expe 58 61
Balance as of December & $ (195 $ (200

No amount of ineffectiveness has been includediniegs and the changes in fair value have beanrded in other comprehensive income. Some orrtieeeamount included
accumulated other comprehensive loss would be ssifiled into current earnings should a portion a@fthe entire hedge no longer be considered effecbut at this tim
management expects the hedge to remain fully @éfeeduring the remaining term of the swap.

The Company posted cash, of $200,000, under callaerangements to satisfy collateral requiremass®ciated with the interest rate swap contract.
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NOTE 20: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

Accounting guidance related to fair value measurgmand disclosures specifies a hierarchy of valnaechniques based on whether the inputs to thakmtion techniques ¢
observable or unobservable. Observable inputscteftarket data obtained from independent sourckse wnobservable inputs reflect the Companyiarket assumptions. Th
two types of inputs have created the following feitue hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identasdets or liabilities in active markets that thtghas the ability to access as of the measuréntes.

Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar assets andlit@s in active markets; quoted prices for ideatior similar assets or liabilities in marketsttaee not active; and modeérivec
valuations in which all significant inputs and sfgrant value drivers are observable in active retsk

Level 3 — Model-derived valuations in which onenwre significant inputs or significant value drigere unobservable.
An asset’s or liability’s level within the fair ua hierarchy is based on the lowest level of irtpat is significant to the fair value measurement.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizesualon techniques that maximize the use of obséviaputs, minimize the use of unobservable inpotthe extent possible a
considers counterparty credit risk in its assessmiefair value.

The Company used the following methods and sigaifi@ssumptions to estimate fair value:

Investment securities: The fair values of se@sitivailable for sale are obtained from an indegetithird party and are based on quoted pricesationally recognized exchar
where available (Level 1). If quoted prices aré aailable, fair values are measured by utilizimatrix pricing, which is a mathematical technicqsed widely in the industry
value debt securities without relying exclusively gquoted prices for specific securities but raterelying on the securitieselationship to other benchmark quoted secu
(Level 2). Management made no adjustment to tinevddue quotes that were received from the indepenthird party pricing service.

Interest rate swap derivative: The fair valuehaf interest rate swap derivative is calculated dasea discounted cash flow model. All future flogtcash flows are projected ¢
both floating and fixed cash flows are discountedhe valuation date. The curve utilized for distting and projecting is built by obtaining pubjicivailable third party mark
quotes for various swap maturity terms.

Impaired loans: Impaired loans are those loanshitlwthe Company has measured impairment gendsaligd on the fair value of the loarcollateral. Fair value is gener:
determined based upon independent third party &g@saof the properties and/or estimates by managemf working capital collateral or discounted led®ws based upc
expected proceeds. These appraisals may inclutthpee approaches to value: the sales compaajgproach, the income approach (for incgmeducing property) and the ¢
approach. Management modifies the appraised vaiuaseded, to take into account recent developsnenthe market or other factors, such as changebsorption rates
market conditions from the time of valuation, amticipated sales values considering managermm@féns for disposition. Such modifications to dpgraised values could resul
lower valuations of such collateral. Estimated sdstsell are based on current amounts of disposas for similar assets. These measurementdamsfied as Level 3 within tl
valuation hierarchy. Impaired loans are subjectdorecurring fair value adjustment upon initialogoition or subsequent impairment. A portion & gllowance for loan losses
allocated to impaired loans if the value of sudm®is deemed to be less than the unpaid balance.
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Foreclosed real estate: Fair values for foreclosed estate are initially recorded based on marte evaluations by third parties, less costselb (“initial cost basis”).Any
write-downs required when the related loan receivablexéhanged for the underlying real estate collatatahe time of transfer to foreclosed real estate charged to tl
allowance for loan losses. Values are derived fappraisals, similar to impaired loans, of undedytollateral or discounted cash flow analysisibsgequent to foreclosu
valuations are updated periodically and assetsramded to current fair value, not to exceed th&ahcost basis. In the determination of fair \eakubsequent to foreclost
management also considers other factors or reemi@bments, such as changes in absorption ratesarket conditions from the time of valuation, amdicipated sales valt
considering managemestplans for disposition, which could result in adjnent to lower the property value estimates intditan the appraisals. These measuremen
classified as Level 3 within the fair value hietarc

The following tables summarize assets measurediratvdlue on a recurring basis as of December &gJregated by the level of valuation inputs withie hierarchy utilized -

measure fair value:

2012
Total Fail
(In thousands Level 1 Level z Level & Value
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ = 6,18: $ = 6,18
State and political subdivisiol - 27,47 - 27,47
Corporate - 23,00¢ - 23,00¢
Residential mortga-backec- US agency - 48,25 - 48,25
Residential mortga-backec- private labe - 30t - 30¢E
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 1,291 - - 1,291
Large cap equity fun 1,081 - - 1,081
Other mutual fund - 31¢ - 31¢
Common stocl- financial services indust 33 39¢ - 432
Total investment securitie $ 2,40¢ 105,93 $ - 108,33¢
Interest rate swap derivati $ - (195 $ - (19%)
2011
Total Fail
(In thousands Level 1 Level z Level & Value
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ = 507: $ = 5,07
State and political subdivisiol - 20,30¢ - 20,30¢
Corporate - 20,43¢ - 20,43¢
Residential mortga-backec- US agency - 51,05¢ - 51,05¢
Residential mortga-backec- private labe - 51¢ - 51¢
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 1,29¢ - - 1,29¢
Large cap equity fun 1,02¢ - - 1,02¢
Other mutual fund - 242 - 242
Common stocl- financial services indust 25 41¢ - 444
Total investment securitie $ 2,34 98,04¢ $ - 100,39!
Interest rate swap derivati' $ - (200 $ - (200
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Certain assets and liabilities are measured av#ire on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the imsémnts are not measured at fair value on an ondmsig but are subject to fair va
adjustments in certain circumstances (for exanvglieen there is evidence of impairment).

The following tables summarize assets measuregira¢dlue on a nonrecurring basis as of Decembgs@jregated by the level of valuation inputs witthie hierarchy utilized
measure fair value:

2012
Total Fail
(In thousands Level 1 Level z Level & Value
Impaired loan: $ - $ - % 1951 $ 1,951
Foreclosed real este $ - % -8 301 % 301
2011
Total Fail
(In thousands Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Impaired loan: $ - $ - % 1,606 $ 1,60¢
Foreclosed real este $ - $ - % 165 $ 165

The following table presents additional quantitatinformation about assets measured at fair vaiue monrecurring basis and for which Level 3 inputse used to determine fair
value.

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Valuedsurement

Valuation Unobservable Range
(Weighted
Techniques Input Avg.)
At December 31, 201
Impaired loan: Appraisal of collatere Appraisal Adjustment 5%- 30%(21%,
Costs to Sel 6% - 15%(12%,
Foreclosed real este Appraisal of collatere Appraisal Adjustment 15%- 15%(15%;
Costs to Sel 6% - 7%(6%)

There have been no transfers of assets in or arnyofair value measurement level.

Required disclosures include fair value informatafnfinancial instruments, whether or not recogdize the consolidated statement of condition, fdviol it is practicable 1
estimate that value. In cases where quoted mprlasts are not available, fair values are baseestimates using present value or other valuaticmigues. Those techniques
significantly affected by the assumptions usedyuitiog the discount rate and estimates of futushdows. In that regard, the derived fair valugnestes cannot be substantie
by comparison to independent markets and, in masgs; could not be realized in immediate settlemiethte instrument.

Management uses its best judgment in estimating ftire value of the Compang’ financial instruments; however, there are inhenepaknesses in any estimal
technique. Therefore, for substantially all fin@hdinstruments, the fair value estimates herearast necessarily indicative of the amounts the @amg could have realized it
sales transaction on the dates indicated. Theatd fair value amounts have been measured diofrespective period-ends, and have not beavakiated or updated -
purposes of these financial statements subseqoiéhose respective dates. As such, the estimateddlues of these financial instruments subseigteethe respective reporti
dates may be different than the amounts reporteddit period-end.
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The following information should not be interpretasian estimate of the fair value of the entire Gamy since a fair value calculation is only prodder a limited portion of tt
Company'’s assets and liabilities. Due to a widegeaof valuation techniques and the degree of stibijy used in making the estimates, comparisoetsvben the Comparg’
disclosures and those of other companies may natdaingful. The Company, in estimating its fatue disclosures for financial instruments, usedfthlowing methods ar
assumptions:

Cash and cash equivalents — The carrying amounksesé assets approximate their fair value.
Interest earning time deposits — The carrying arteoahthese assets approximate their fair value.

Investment securities Fhe fair values of securities available for sake @tained from an independent third party andbased on quoted prices on nationally recognizetiang
where available (Level 1). If quoted prices aré anailable, fair values are measured by utilizimgtrix pricing, which is a mathematical technigsed widely in the industry
value debt securities without relying exclusively guoted prices for specific securities, but ratmerelying on the securitiesélationship to other benchmark quoted secu
(Level 2). Management made no adjustment to tinevddue quotes that were received from the indepenthird party pricing service.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock — The carrying amofititese assets approximates their fair value.

Loans — For variable-rate loans that re-price festly, fair value is based on carrying amountse Tdir value of other loans (for example, fixede commercial real estate lo¢
mortgage loans, and commercial and industrial lpanestimated using discounted cash flow analysised on interest rates currently being offeretthénmarket for loans wi
similar terms to borrowers of similar credit qualitLoan value estimates include judgments baseéxpected prepayment rates. The measurement daithealue of loan:
including impaired loans, is classified within Lé@eof the fair value hierarchy.

Accrued interest receivable and payable — The cay@mount of these assets approximates theivédire.

Deposits — The fair values disclosed for demandosiép (e.g., interest-bearing and nonintebesiring checking, passbook savings and certainstgbenoney manageme
accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amoumaple on demand at the reporting date (i.e., tbairying amounts) and are classified within Letebf the fair valu
hierarchy. Fair values for fixegte certificates of deposit are estimated usidgeounted cash flow calculation that applies ederates currently being offered in the marke
certificates of deposits to a schedule of aggrebexpected monthly maturities on time deposits.asfeements of the fair value of time deposits &ssdied within Level 2 of tt
fair value hierarchy.

Borrowings — Fixed/variable term “bulletstructures are valued using a replacement cosumdsf approach. These borrowings are discountethdoFHLBNY advanc
curve. Option structured borrowing&ir values are determined by the FHLB for borraggirthat include a call or conversion option. Ifrked pricing is not available from tt
source, current market indications from the FHLBMEM obtained and the borrowings are discountetidd=HLBNY advance curve less an appropriate spreadljust for th
option. These measurements are classified as Pewéhin the fair value hierarchy.

Junior subordinated debenture€urrent economic conditions have rendered the né#okehis liability inactive. As such, the Compais unable to determine a good estima
fair value. Since the rate paid on the debentheds is lower than what would be required to se@urénterest in the same debt at year end, andevarable to obtain a curn
fair value, we have disclosed that the carryingigapproximates the fair value, resulting in a L8velassification.

Interest rate swap derivativelhe fair value of the interest rate swap derivativebtained from a third party pricing agent andalculated based on a discounted cash flow n

All future floating cash flows are projected andtfioating and fixed cash flows are discountedh®s valuation date. The curve utilized for disding and projecting is built
obtaining publicly available third party market ¢e® for various swap maturity terms, and thereifodassified within Level 2 of the fair value raechy.
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Off-balance sheet instruments — Fair values folGbmpany'’s offealance sheet instruments are based on fees dyrrhatged to enter into similar agreements, talkig accour
the remaining terms of the agreements and the erqpanties’ credit standing. Such fees were noensdtat December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Com{safityancial instruments as of December 31 arequreesl in the following table:

2012 2011

Fair Value Carrying Carrying
(Dollars In thousands Hierarchy Amounts Fair Value: Amounts Fair Value:
Financial asset:
Cash and cash equivale 1 3 8,66t $ 8,66t $ 10,21¢  $ 10,21¢
Interest earning time depos 1 2,00( 2,00( 2,00( 2,00(
Investment securitie 1 2,40¢ 2,40¢ 2,347 2,347
Investment securitie 2 105,93« 105,93« 98,04¢ 98,04¢
Federal Home Loan Bank sto 2 1,92¢ 1,92¢ 1,52¢ 1,52¢
Net loans 3 329,24 341,38t¢ 300,77( 310,21¢
Accrued interest receivab 1 1,717 1,717 1,68t 1,68t
Financial liabilities:
Demand Deposits, Savings, NOW and MMI 1 3 228,48: $ 228,48: $ 21431t $ 214,31¢
Time Deposits 2 163,32: 165,49: 151,81: 154,83¢
Borrowings 2 34,96« 36,05¢ 26,07« 27,32
Junior subordinated debentu 3 5,15¢ 5,15¢ 5,15¢ 5,15¢
Accrued interest payab 1 14C 14C 14t 14t
Interest rate swap derivati 2 19t 195 20C 20C
Off-balance sheet instrumen
Standby letters of crec $ - % - $ - $ =
Commitments to extend cres $ - $ - $ - $ -

NOTE 21: PARENT COMPANY — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following represents the condensed financiarimation of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. as of andtfe years ended December 31:

Statements of Condition 201z 2011
(In thousands
Assets
Cash $ 1,48: $ 1,72¢
Investment: 33 23
Investment in bank subsidia 44,20¢ 41,218
Investment in nc-bank subsidiar 55 55
Other asset 39C 32¢
Total asset $ 46,26¢ $ 43,44¢
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Accrued liabilities $ 364 $ 452
Junior subordinated debentu 5,15¢ 5,15¢
Shareholders' equii 40,745 37,84
Total liabilities and shareholders' eqL $ 46,26¢ $ 43,44¢
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Statements of Income 201Z 2011
(In thousands
Income
Dividends from bank subsidia 1,20( -
Dividends from no-bank subsidiar 3 4
Total income 1,208 4
Expenses
Interest 16¢ 162
Operating 114 20C
Total expense 282 362
Income(loss) before taxes and equity in undistributedimedme of subsidiarie 921 (359)
Tax benefit 72 10¢
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed nebime of subsidiarie 99: (251)
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidial 1,65¢ 2,574
Net income 2,64¢ 2,32
Statements of Cash Flow 201Z 2011
(In thousands
Operating Activities
Net Income 2,64¢ 2,328
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidial (1,65¢ (2,574
Stock based compensation and ESOP exg 19z 112
Net change in other assets and liabili (93) 29
Net cash flows from operating activiti 1,09: (110)
Investing Activities
Capital contributed to whol-owned bank subsidial - (4,900
Net cash flows from investing activitir - (4,900
Financing activities
Proceeds from sale of preferred st-SBLF - 13,00(
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 5 66
Purchase of CPP Warrants from Treasury and redempfiCPP Preferred sto (537 (6,777
Cash dividends paid to preferred sharehol (507) (457)
Cash dividends paid to common sharehols (301) (29¢)
Net cash flows from financing activiti¢ (1,340 5,54(
Change in cash and cash equivali (247) 53C
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 1,72¢ 1,19¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 1,482 1,72¢
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NOTE 22: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyteasted loans to certain directors, executiveeceff and their affiliates (collectively referredat® “related parties”)These loar
were made on substantially the same terms, induiditerest rates and collateral, as those prewgdirthe time for comparable transactions with otimaffiliated parties and do r
involve more than normal risk of collectibility.

The following represents the activity associatethwians to related parties during the year endecebber 31, 2012:

(In thousands

Balance at the beginning of the y: $ 3,75
Originations 2,97¢
Principal payment (812
Decrease due to Director attriti (88)

Balance at the end of the ye $ 5,82¢

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, thd& Bad a loan receivable from the Holding Companyb0 million and $1.1 million, respectively. émnést paid by tt
Holding Company for the years ended 2012 and 204s.$%3,000 and $59,000, respectively.

Deposits of related parties at December 31, 20tiZDmtember 31, 2011 were $1.9 million and $2.4iomIrespectively.
In October 2002, the Company entered into a laagdavith one of its directors, now retired, on ensdength basis. In January 2006, the Company eniatedh lease with tt
Holding Company for the use of a training facilityhis lease was executed on an arms-length bBsiseng 2010, the Company entered into an arlahgth lease with the Holdi

Company for space that is then sub-leased by tmep@oy to a charitable organization at belmarket rents. Rent expense paid to the relateiepaturing 2012 and 2011 v
$21,000 and $23,000, respectively.
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ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A : CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

REPORT OF MANAGEMENS RESPONSIBILITY

The Company’s management, including the Compangiigipal executive officer and principal financiaffficer, have evaluated the effectiveness of then@any’s ‘disclosur:
controls and procedures,” as such term is definedule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securitieh&nge Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchang®.ABased upon the
evaluation, the principal executive officer andnpipal financial officer concluded that, as of #wd of the period covered by this report, the Caomgfsadisclosure controls a
procedures were effective for the purpose of enguthat the information required to be disclosethmreports that the Company files or submits oittiee Exchange Act with tl
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)igTpcorded, processed, summarized and reportéihwite time periods specified in the SECules and forms, and (2]
accumulated and communicated to the Commamanagement, including its principal executive pridcipal financial officers, as appropriate ttoel timely decisions regardi
required disclosure.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN®EPORTING

Management’s report on internal control over finaheporting is contained in “Item 8 — Financiah®ments and Supplementary Data” in this annymrtén Form 10-K.

This annual report does not include an attestagport of the Compang’independent registered public accounting firnareipg internal control over financial reportingrpuan
to the rules of the Dodd-Frank Act that exemptsGbenpany from such attestation and requires onlyagement’s report.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN

There were no changes in the Company’s internafrabover financial reporting that occurred durittee Companys last fiscal quarter that have materially affected are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Comparipternal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B : OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PAR T Il
ITEM 10: DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS, CONTROL PERSONS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, COMPLIANC E WITH SECTIONS
16 (A) OF EXCHANGE ACT

(a) Information concerning the directors of the Companincorporated by reference hereunder in the Gay'p Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of &tioolders.
(b) Set forth below is information concerning the ExeaiOfficers of the Company at December 31, 2(

Name Age Positions Held With the Company

Thomas W. Schneidi 51 President and Chief Executive Offic

James A. Dowd, CP. 45 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic
Edward A. Mervine 56 Senior Vice President, General Cour
Melissa A. Miller 55 Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Offi
Ronald Tascarella 54 Senior Vice President, Chief Credit Officer

ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to management compensatiwh transactions required under this item is ipo@ted by reference hereunder in the CompanysyRvtaterials for th
Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captionrffpensation Committee".

ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTER S

The information required by this item is incorpadity reference hereunder in the Comparroxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockless under the caption "Voti
Securities and Principal Holders Thereof".

ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorpedtby reference hereunder in the Comparptoxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockless under the capti
"Transactions with Certain Related Persons”.

ITEM 14: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorpechby reference hereunder in the Compsudroxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stocktess under the caption "Audit &
Related Fees".
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PART IV

ITEM 15: EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

@)

@)

(b)
3.1

3.2

10.1
10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Financial Statements - The Compangonsolidated financial statements, for the yeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011, together witlRéport of Independe
Registered Public Accounting Firm are filed as péthis Form 10-K report. See “ltem 8: Finan@satements and Supplementary Data.”

Financial Statement Schedules - All finahatatement schedules have been omitted as tlhwreégnformation is inapplicable or has been ideld in ‘item 7
Management Discussion and Analysis.”

Exhibits
Certificate of Incorporation of Pathfinder Barp, Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference toGbenpany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on J25e2001)

Bylaws of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (Incorpechherein by reference to the Company's QuarteglyoR on Form 1@ filed on August 15, 2005 and November
2007)

Form of Stock Certificate of Pathfinder Bancorgs.Ifincorporated herein by reference to the Comga@yrrent Report on Forn-K dated June 25, 200
Pathfinder Bank 1997 Stock Option Plan (Ipocated herein by reference to the Company's &8d. 333-53027)
2010 Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. Stock OpticanRIncorporated by reference to the Company'fig&0. 333-178590)

2003 Executive Deferred Compensation Plaro(fyorated herein by reference to the Company’'suAhReport on Form 18-for the year ended December 31, 2
file no. 000-23601)

2003 Trustee Deferred Fee Plan (Incorporated hénemeference to the Compé's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file no-
23601)

Employment Agreement between the Bank and ThomaSahneider, President and Chief Executive Offidecdqrporated by reference to the Company's Ar
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeBQ8 file no. 000-23601)

Employment Agreement between the Bank and Edwaidekvine, Vice President, General Counsel and $agréincorporated by reference to the Companysua
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeBQ8 file no. 000-23601)

Change of Control Agreement between the Bank anthioTascarella (Incorporated by reference to thm@any’s Annual Report on Form ¥0for the year ende
December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)

Change of Control Agreement between the Bank antedaA. Dowd (Incorporated by reference to the CamjsaAnnual Report on Form 1R-for the year ende
December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)

Page 94




Table of Contents
10.9 Change of Control Agreement between the Bank aniis&&eA. Miller (Incorporated by reference to then@pany’s Annual Report on Form XOfor the year ende
December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)
10.10
Executive Supplemental Retirement Agreement betwieefank and Chris C. Gagas (Incorporated by eafar to the Company’s Annual Report on FornK1ior
10.11 the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601

Executive Supplemental Retirement Agreement betweerBank and Thomas W. Schneider (Incorporatedefgrence to the ComparsyAnnual Report on For
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 file00®-23601

14 Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference to then@anys Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20
21 Subsidiaries of Company

23 Consent of Bonadio & Co., LL

311 Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificationta# Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14(apd-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial @#r

321 Section 1350tfieation of the Chief Executive and Chief FinaaldDfficer
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of theuffties Exchange Act of 1934, the Company hag dalsed this report to be signed on its behalfheyundersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

Date:

March 18, 2013

Pathfinder Bancorp, In(

By: /sl Thomas W. Schneider
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh of 1934, this report has been signed belothdyollowing persons on behalf of the Registrard a the capacities and
on the dates indicate

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:
Date
By:
Date
By:

Date

/sl Thomas W. Schneid

Thomas W. Schneider, President
Chief Executive Office

(Principal Executive Officer

March 18, 201!

/sl Janette Resnic

Janette Resnick, Direct
Chairman of the Boar

March 18, 201!

/s/ L. William Nelson

L. William Nelson, Directol
March 18, 201!

/sl Lloyd Stemple

Lloyd Stemple, Directo
March 18, 201:

/s/John P. Funiciell

John Funiciello, Directc
March 18, 201:

/s/ David A. Ayouk

David Ayoub, Directol
March 18, 201:

By: /sl James A. Dow
James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President .
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer
Date March 18, 201!

By: /s/ Richard M. Jablonk
Richard M. Jablonka, Vice President ¢
Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer
Date March 18, 201:

By: /s/ William A. Barclay
William A. Barclay, Directol
Date March 18, 201!

By: /s/ Chris R. Burrit
Chris R. Burritt, Directo
Date March 18, 201!

By: /sl George P. Joy(
George P. Joyce, Direct
Date March 18, 201!
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EXHIBIT 21: SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Jurisdiction or State of Incorporation

Company Percent Owne

Pathfinder Banl 100% New York
Pathfinder Statutory Trust 100% Delaware
Pathfinder Commercial Bank ( 100% New York
Pathfinder REIT, Inc. (1 100% New York
Whispering Oaks Development Corp. 100% New York
Pathfinder Risk Management Company Inc. 100% New York

(1) Wholly owned subsidiary of Pathfinder Bank.

EXHIBIT 23: CONSENT OF BONADIO & CO., LLP

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

Pathfinder Bancorp, In(
Oswego, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢ke Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8:-BB590) and Form S-8 (No. 333-53027) of PathfirRincorp, Inc. of

our report, dated March 18, 2013, relating to thiesolidated financial statements, which appedni;iAnnual Report on Form 10-K.

Bonadio & Co., LLP
Syracuse, New York
March 18, 201:

/sl BONADIO & CO., LLP
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EXHIBIT 31.1: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificabn of the Chief Executive Officer
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
I, Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exee@ifficer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual report on FormKL0f Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to makettteraents
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthsstatements were made, not misleading with respehbe period covered by this report;

3.  Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finantiéments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material pests the
consolidated financial condition, results of opiereg and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfie periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant's other certifying officer drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as definecan&nhge Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cowotrel financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under our supervision, to ensure
material information relating to the registrantliding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtows by others within those entities, partidylduring the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control oveauicial reporting, to be designed under our supienvj to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfyabilfinancial reporting and the preparation ofisolidated financial statements for external psegan
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and pregémthis report our conclusions about the eféectess of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étitegeriod covered by this report based on suetuation; anc

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regisanternal control over financial reporting tleacurred during the registrant's most recent figoarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the caserofanual report) that has materially affectedsaeasonably likely to materially affect, the régiat's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registsatard of directors:

(@)  All significant deficiencies and materiataknesses in the design or operation of interngraloover financial reporting which are reasondidgly to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to recgmibcess, summarize and report financial inforomgtand

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a signifioéin the registrant's internal control overaficial
reporting.

March 18, 2013 /sl Thomas W. Schneider
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic
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EXHIBIT 31.2: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificabn of the Chief Financial Officer
Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
I, James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Chie&ncial Officer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual report on FormKL6f Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to maketiéements
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthsstatements were made, not misleading with respehbe period covered by this report;

3.  Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finantiéments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material pests the
consolidated financial condition, results of opiereg and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfie periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant's other certifying officer drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as definecan&nhge Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cowotrel financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under our supervision, to ensure
material information relating to the registrantliding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtows by others within those entities, partidylduring the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control oveauicial reporting, to be designed under our supienvj to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfyabilfinancial reporting and the preparation ofisolidated financial statements for external psegan
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and pregémthis report our conclusions about the eféectess of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étitegeriod covered by this report based on suetuation; anc

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regisanternal control over financial reporting tleacurred during the registrant's most recent figoarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the caserofanual report) that has materially affectedsaeasonably likely to materially affect, the régiat's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registsatard of directors:

(@)  All significant deficiencies and materiataknesses in the design or operation of interngraloover financial reporting which are reasondidgly to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to recgmibcess, summarize and report financial inforomgtand

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a signifioéin the registrant's internal control overaficial
reporting.

March 18, 2013 [s/ James A. Dowd
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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EXHIBIT 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chéf Executive and Chief Financial Officers

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarkes+@ct of 2002
Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exec@fiieer, and James A. Dowd, Senior Vice Presidewt @hief Financial Officer of Pathfinder Bancorpg. (the "Company"
each certify in his capacity as an officer of then@any that he has reviewed the Annual Reporte@fbmpany on Form 1R-for the year ended December 31, 2012 and thite
best of his knowledge:

1.  the report fully complies with the requirentenf Sections 13(a) of the Securities ExchangeoA&934; and

2. the information contained in the report faphgsents, in all material respects, the cons@dlihancial condition and results of operationghef Company.
The purpose of this statement is solely to compth Witle 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the UthiBtates Code, as amended by Section 906 of theigz-Oxley Act of 2002
March 18, 201: [s/ Thomas W. Schneid

Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 18, 2013 [s/ James A. Dowd
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi







EXHIBIT 31.1: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificabn of the Chief Executive Officer
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
I, Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exee@ifficer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual report on FormKL0f Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to makettteraents
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthsstatements were made, not misleading with regpehbe period covered by this report;

3.  Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finantiéments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material pests the
consolidated financial condition, results of opiereg and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfie periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant's other certifying officer drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as definecan&nhge Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cowotrel financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under our supervision, to ensure
material information relating to the registrantliding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtows by others within those entities, partidylduring the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control oveauicial reporting, to be designed under our supienvj to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfyabilfinancial reporting and the preparation ofisolidated financial statements for external psegadn
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regidsalisclosure controls and procedures and pregémthis report our conclusions about the eféectess of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étitegeriod covered by this report based on sueluation; anc

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrégistrant's internal control over financial refragtthat occurred during the registrant's mostmefiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the casan annual report) that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, tfegjistrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registsatard of directors:

(@)  All significant deficiencies and materiataknesses in the design or operation of interngraloover financial reporting which are reasondidgly to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to re¢gmibcess, summarize and report financial inforomgtand

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a signifioéin the registrant's internal control overaficial
reporting.

March 18, 2013 /sl Thomas W. Schneider
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic










EXHIBIT 31.2: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificabn of the Chief Financial Officer
Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
I, James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Chie&ncial Officer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual report on FormKL6f Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to maketiéements
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthsstatements were made, not misleading with regpehbe period covered by this report;

3.  Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finantiéments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material pests the
consolidated financial condition, results of opiereg and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfie periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant's other certifying officer drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as definecan&nhge Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cowotrel financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under our supervision, to ensure
material information relating to the registrantliding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtows by others within those entities, partidylduring the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control oveauicial reporting, to be designed under our supienvj to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfyabilfinancial reporting and the preparation ofisolidated financial statements for external psegadn
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regidsalisclosure controls and procedures and pregémthis report our conclusions about the eféectess of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étitegeriod covered by this report based on sueluation; anc

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrégistrant's internal control over financial refragtthat occurred during the registrant's mostmefiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the casan annual report) that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, tfegjistrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registsatard of directors:

(@)  All significant deficiencies and materiataknesses in the design or operation of interngraloover financial reporting which are reasondidgly to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to re¢gmibcess, summarize and report financial inforomgtand

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a signifioéin the registrant's internal control overaficial
reporting.

March 18, 2013 /sl James A. Dowd
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi










EXHIBIT 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chéf Executive and Chief Financial Officers
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarksr@ct of 2002

Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exec@ffieer, and James A. Dowd, Senior Vice Presidewt @hief Financial Officer of Pathfinder Bancorpg! (the "Company’
each certify in his capacity as an officer of ttmmpany that he has reviewed the Annual Reportefbmpany on Form 1R-for the year ended December 31, 2012 and thite
best of his knowledge:

1.  thereport fully complies with the requirerrgent Sections 13(a) of the Securities ExchangeoA&034; and

2. the information contained in the report faphesents, in all material respects, the cons@daifihancial condition and results of operationghef Company.
The purpose of this statement is solely to compti Witle 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the Uthiftates Code, as amended by Section 906 of tiarge-Oxley Act of 2002
March 18, 2013 /sl Thomas W. Schneider

Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 18, 201! /sl James A. Dow
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi







